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Chairman’s Statement

TRBE

Hong Kong went through a difficult year in 2019. The
economy decelerated in the first half amid sluggish global
economic growth and elevated US-Mainland trade tensions,
only to worsen sharply in the second half as the repeated
social incidents brought many economic activities to a
standstill. The labour market came under pressure with the
deterioration in economic conditions in the second half.
The local stock market exhibited considerable volatility in
2019, while the property market quietened visibly since June.
Overall, the Hong Kong economy entered recession in 2019
and experienced its first annual contraction since a decade
ago.

Against this bleak economic backdrop, the Hong Kong
advertising market saw a decline of 8% in 2019. According to
admanGo, all media categories (with the exception of mobile
and social) experienced negative growth, especially in the
second half. The newspaper and outdoor categories’ declines
were the most severe on record, and the radio category saw
its first drop on record. Given these industry circumstances,
the Group was not immune from the difficulties and the 2019
results were adversely affected.

Despite the depressing market conditions, the Group remained
resolute and continued to focus on its core businesses. The
Group maintained its lead in the print media market, including
Chinese and English newspapers, magazines and recruitment
publications. In each of these media segments, the Group was
committed to providing excellent content and high added-
value services to our readers and advertisers, to continue to
be their media of choice. In 2019, Headline Daily remained
as the number 1 newspaper in Hong Kong as well as the
most cost-effective print advertising medium, while Sing Tao
Daily enjoyed consistent growth in circulation with readership
reaching a recent year high. The Standard was able to buck
the trend and improved its profitability, while the Magazine
unit made further progress in achieving a sustainable business
model. Meanwhile, the Group continued to invest in new
media businesses which have generated growth in revenue.

On 1 and 5 November 2019, it was announced that
preliminary discussions were being held with an independent
potential purchaser regarding, amongst others, a possible
sale of an interest in the Company, and monthly update
announcements have been made thereafter to keep
shareholders informed. Please refer to the relevant section in
the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for details.
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Chairman’s Statement

Entering 2020, the spread of the novel coronavirus infection
has become a new cause for deep concern. The disruption to
economic activities and damage on economic sentiment will
exert downward pressure on the global and local economy,
increasing the probability of another year of economic
contraction in Hong Kong. However, we must respond to
the challenges with determination, vision and prudence. The
Group will stay strong on its competitive edge and remain
committed as a provider of high-quality media platforms.
Given our strengths built over the years, we are confident
that we can overcome the challenges and turn crises into
opportunities.

Taking this opportunity, I would like to thank our directors,
management and staff for their dedication and hard work,
as well as our advertisers, readers and shareholders for their
continuing support.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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[2019F I BMIEE IRFABANER T REITERESER - 2E
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The winners of the five categories of "Leader of the Year 2019", namely
Commerce & Industry / Finance, Community / Public Affairs / Environment
& Conservation, Education / Professions / Technology & Innovation, Sports /
Culture / Performing Arts and Young Entrepreneur, have been selected by
the judging panel chaired by Sir CK Chow and comprising Mr. Chan Wing-
kee, Mr. Philip Chen Nan-lok, Dr. Choi Yuen-wan, Honourable Andrew Leung,
Professor Arthur Li Kwok-cheung, Dr. Donald Li and Professor Tsui Lap-chee.
In view of the novel coronavirus outbreak, the award presentation ceremony
has been rescheduled.

: BERhEARLNEZEL+EE | (28 BH)R(GER BB
ﬂm} HIRLHELE  UREESE LTS EARKANEL+EHENER -
ﬂ& (EXERYTRSLREZEM SRR hERRN L TE o

?:'.:-":'.f:'.ﬁ::'.:;:-" To commemorate the 70™ anniversary of the People's Republic of China, Sing Tao Daily

= and Headline Daily published a special memorial photobook as a record of the country's
journey over seven decades. At the same time, The Standard published "Standing Tall on
the World Stage" to celebrate China's 70 years of development.
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Maijor Events of the Year
EE K &

[EEE=1TNEZBERERALE H(ESEHRIR
(EIURBIGH ; B (RS BRE B LA BP0
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The "34™ Sing Tao Inter-School Debating Competition" was
jointly organised by Sing Tao Daily and The Standard; Sing
Tao Daily also partnered with Bastille Post in the 3™ "Inter-
School Chinese History Competition".

(EBEH-MEHRRBEEHERASER  BEREESHEA pseszs
BIERRAE - RS OREEAREE - okt

Sing Tao Daily is committed to providing high-quality content in the
education / student sector, covering a variety of practical guidebooks
and seminars to serve students from kindergarten to university levels.

(RXEHR)TRBERESHAERBEMEERY BRI FOE
RYHBAMFLBEEEN\BRUEELE ERAR  [ERER
HERIRIDRBER] -

The Standard was also active in organising a number of events
in the education / student sector, including the "4™ Story Writing
Competition and 8" English Writing Competition" award ceremony,
"International Schools Fair" and "Kindergarten Fair".

P
W= A
"'Fi | GRF I )EES tEE(Marketing Magazine)#EE A
J| | [FEREERZ IRFBERER) -
NG o A S Smart Parents was voted as Magazine of the Year (Local
u:.—-l = . . . . th
201 200 BETEE Parentmg Magazine) by Marketing Magazine for the 7
BERTRE consecutive year.
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Headline Daily organised the first "Headline No.1
Awards 2019", as well as "Winter Tour Carnival
2019" and "No.1 Car Awards 2019". Its anniversary
celebration included "Guess and Win Game", special

gift redemption and ice-cream giveaways.

C R BOKSEE

wo MR " dete T

BT EHEE AE2019]  (JobMarketsRE;
BS)YRERTASXEREASENAREREH
S BERENTE  BERIaK - BE&H
BRBEBE2019 R BFEELEELERE
REFrEt#12019]

In addition to "The Employer of Choice Award
2019" JobMarket also hosted events relating
to graduate students to provide education
information and promote job opportunities for
them, including "The Higher Education & Youth
Career Expo 2019" and "The Best Graduate
Employers 2019"
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[BEffetso [ERBXAAFFRERTE » SEIYREHE] -
(ERA®H) EB=FE | - [5fletso [RIZHEFHAEE ] X
84¥[ The Spark Awards 2019 |RIE® % » E2EH—EEMES
RWFHERARR - KM Mob-Ex Awards 2019 J#[ Best App -
News [$R32 o

RIBFRERBRBE B R ABRNBEHERE2019]
(EIFEH)TRBERNEERINZBZT -

Headline Daily "Jetso" app offered "Prizes for Everyone", Headline Daily's
anniversary promotion, "Classified Jetso" and "Jetso of the Town". In
"The Spark Awards 2019", Headline Daily "Jetso" app was the only
mobile app awarded with two gold prizes. It also won the silver prize in
"Best App - News" presented by "Mob-Ex Awards 2019"

According to the Digital News Report 2019 by The University of
Oxford's Reuters Institute, Headline Daily was again ranked the top
brand newspaper in Hong Kong.

“ EmOm geEoar ez v 1 Jongoaer FOIIRNE Tt W wr b -




Maijor Events of the Year

SN S NI

AEEET BB FREBEFAION B IR Marketing
Magazine) A i VIR BB IR & P H2019/ FERER THHE
B2 | I The Spark Awards 2019 |fESE B EE =15 K€ -
RER > [Oh BiF [ENZEHIESHEIEBB - ZREFE]
R/ HEBEIE -

Ohpama.com, the Group's one-stop parenting and education
platform, was awarded "No.1 Parenting Digital Media of the Year"
by Marketing Magazine's Media Report 2019, and won three
awards in "The Spark Awards 2019". During the year, it organised a
range of pioneering activities including "Expectant Mothers & BB
Carnivals" and "Kindergarten and Primary Expo".
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The Magazine unit organised a range of
events including East Week's "Outstanding
Corporate Strategy Awards 2019", "Hong
Kong Service Awards 2019" and the 6"
"Kids Drawing Contest", as well as Caz
Buyer's "The Best of Cars 2019"

1)

1

l y'{l - '”I
3514

e

+FR

s
epucATIONISY

EBOH (EBRE)BINRBEE—ERIREM

EARY - FREELERIMIEESR
WMBIEALEE - EBINEALERY

Sing Tao Daily's overseas offices have been an integral part of overseas Chinese
communities, and have been enthusiastic in organising various cultural activities, to
foster a strong network with readers and advertisers.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2019 (9




'W’ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
7 SR

Hong Kong News Awards 2019
2019 FERRENER

Best News Writing (Chinese)
REFMBE (PxHE)
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE : (EBR®)
TR WAREKAERIESE ZRAERYE)
= 2" Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
ZE (EBRA®)
TR BRI AR BERE —IRITE

Best Scoop
REBRKTE
= 1% Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE(EBA®R)
R NHAERSI B ANBFENEH
= 2" Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
FE (EBA®R)
TR WEESTRBEREE AR
BT BRAE B HR #61E

L i
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Best Photograph (Sports)
RIEER (RE@F4)
= 1% Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE(EBAHR)
FE HEER
= 2™ Runner-up © Sing Tao Daily
FE  (EBA®R)
IR : OH! My God

Best Young Reporter
REHA
=1 Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE:(ERE®R)
TR 1. HRERBEEERR
B ABEFE
2. BINEERE R
3. BARZ RS

L W )

RCRRNE TS MOR A
9"#&%&##&

Best Photograph (News)
RIEE R (FRHE)
= 1% Runner-up : Headline Daily
TE : (CEIEAHR)
ES RN IES
= 2™ Runner-up © Sing Tao Daily
FE (EBAHR)
TR BEEE

Annual Report 2019

T mzam TOPHEWS 7

Palace caught with pantsdoWn asgeid toilet stolen

P
T

Best Headline (English)
RERE (FEX#HE)
= 1" Runner-up : The Standard
DE  (EIURR)
F 78 : Palace caught with pants down as gold
toilet stolen

Best Business News Writing (Chinese)
REREHREANE (FxxH)
= Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE  (EBRHR)
R mEit 20 FRIER
BIZEMROT EARA I BR

"Focus At The Frontline 2018"
Photo Contest
(g - £252018) TR LE

Sports

BEEd

= 1" Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
DE: (EBEBR)
R REmT

General News
—ReH R
22" Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
FE (EBHAW)
T KIBHEE
=Honorable Mention : Sing Tao Daily
BERZ (EBHWR)
T BE SR

Spot News

REHEE

= Honorable Mention : Sing Taa Daily
BRI (EESA®R)
TR TR



Consumer Rights
Reporting Awards 2019
FEthEHERERERER

Category : Press Photo
HE - FEES
= Silver Award : Headline Daily
1% - GBIEAH)
TR ARER

The Society for News Design
40" Best of News Design
Creative Competition
EIPREER T E
ENt+iEt R RERE

et RlEXE

Category : Special News Topics
#31 : WBIHEEHE

= Award of Excellence : Sing Tao Daily
BAEE : (EBRA®R)
TR RIERR

Reader's Digest Hong Kong
Trusted Brand 2019
(BEXHE)FEEERM 2019
Finance & Media - Free Newspaper

SRMEEE — 2881
= Gold : Headline Daily

©1% : CRIRE®R)

The Spark Awards 2019

Best Use of App

= Gold : Headline Daily "Jetso" App
© 4% : [ZEfK Jetso] FEMIER
/B [E(K Jetso] FEMIER

Major Awards of the Year

SO =3 3|

Best Media Campaign - Mobile
= Gold : Headline Daily "Jetso" App

1%« [ZE{K Jetso| JEARER
T EHERRXEED

Best Media Campaign - Social
= Gold : Ohpama.com
&€ : [Onh! £15]
TH BB RHE [H2EMH 2018]

Best Fast-Growing Media
= Silver : Ohpama.com

$R4E : [Oh! 45
& [onl &5 ] s RXEAFA

Best Influential Media
= Bronze : Ohpama.com

$f4E : [Oh! &15 ]
*RE : [Ohl 815 s KENTFE

2018 HSUHK Business
Journalism Awards

2018 ERBEHELE

Best Business News Series
Reporting (Text)
EEFEMERTIHRERE (3XFH)
= Gold Award : Sing Tao Daily

28 (EBRH)
TR BRIRNERERFS

AENTN FEREE

BIRAZISERE

Best Economic & Financial Policy
News Reporting (Text)
BRERKEREMBEFEBER (XFH)
= Silver Award : Sing Tao Daily

R (REB®)

TR BRI RS

Mob-Ex Awards 2019

Best App - News

= Silver : Headline Daily "Jetso" App
$RHE : [SE{K Jetso] FEAFRRZ
ERE  FHRAR (RN Jetso] EAER

SRo20RTEFEER
: F_ERSaNRe ¥
HKOE 208 B A%2019,
. :"‘& 2masn

The Hong Kong 020

E-Commerce Federation

2019 020 Award

EE 020 EYHHEE

2019 020 Ei B KE

=Winner : Shimba Digital Limited
KEE - PSR EAR AR
R : [315 Jetso) FERAZX

Asian Americans Advancing

Justice Annual Awards 2019

SERAFMEPOEEKE 2019

Community Impact Award

HEXEHE

= Winner : Sing Tao Daily Los Angeles Office
K (ESAR) SEMBER

2552 EHNERLERIA
(T

f  omomEmee

AR TERE NS
TazEIEAN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB Mo

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year”) amounted to approximately HK$1,262 million as
compared with approximately HK$1,432 million last year.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$23 million as compared with profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$24 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend during
the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been conducted
cautiously.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) did not
recommend the payment of final and special dividends for the
Year. The Company paid the interim dividend of HK3.5 cents
per ordinary share to shareholders on 24 September 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio and
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a cash
position throughout the Year. During the Year, the Group paid
approximately HK$31 million for deposits and purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had a cash balance of approximately HK$480
million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$528 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings
(including non-current lease liabilities) to equity, was 0.8%
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: zero). As at
31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not pledge any
asset.

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange
Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any

contingent liability or claim which the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) considered to be material.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Hong Kong economy sank into recession in 2019, with
negative 1.2% growth which was the first annual decline since
2009. Decelerated growth in the first half amid an austere
global economic environment worsened to sharp contractions
in the third and fourth quarters as the local social incidents
dealt a heavy blow to economic sentiment and consumption-
related activities. In terms of Hong Kong’s advertising market
in 2019, what set out to be a relatively stable first half (with
1% vyear-on-year growth) turned downhill sharply with the
second half reversing to a decline of 17%. According to
admanGo, for 2019 as a whole, total advertising spending in
Hong Kong dropped by 8% and all media categories including
online (with the exception of social and mobile) experienced
negative growth. Given this poor industry environment, the
Group reported a decrease in consolidated revenue from
approximately HK$1,431.7 million in 2018 to approximately
HK$1,261.8 million in 2019, and consolidated loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$22.7 million
in 2019 as compared with consolidated profit of approximately
HK$24.2 million in 2018.

Newspapers

According to admanGo, the total newspaper advertising
market suffered a 14% decline in 2019, with marked
deteriorations in the second half as the continuous social
incidents took its toll on Hong Kong’s economic activities and
consequently advertising spending.

Headline Daily continued to be Hong Kong’s number 1
free newspaper, established as the industry leader in terms
of circulation, readership and advertising. According to
Ipsos Media Atlas 2019Q3 report, Headline Daily’s average
daily readership of 1,066,000 was the highest amongst all
newspapers in Hong Kong. Headline Daily was the only
Chinese free daily that did not record a drop in readership
in this report. Read by 78% of total Chinese free newspaper
readers, Headline Daily commanded a readership that was
28% more than the net total of the other three Chinese free
newspapers combined, and remained as the only newspaper
in Hong Kong with a readership of over one million. Although
the overall free newspaper market recorded a 13% fall in
advertising revenue in 2019, Headline Daily managed to
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minimise its decrease which was the mildest among Chinese
daily free newspapers (according to admanGo). Headline Daily
continued to occupy the largest portion of the market and
remained the market leader in a range of categories, while
also recording growth in some of them including Property,
Restaurants and Media. As the free newspaper most-recognised
by advertisers and readers alike, Headline Daily was again
ranked by The University of Oxford’s Reuters Institute’s Digital
News Report 2019 as the top brand newspaper in Hong Kong.
In addition, Headline Finance paper recorded a 4% growth
in readership (according to Ipsos Media Atlas 2019Q3 report)
and continued to be the most widely-read finance newspaper
in Hong Kong.

Paid newspapers in Hong Kong saw a decline in advertising
revenue of 14% in 2019, similar to free newspapers, with the
second half being worse than the first half due to the negative
impact of the social incidents which started in June. According
to admanGo, paid newspapers’ advertising revenue fell by
9% year-on-year in the first half of 2019, worsening to 19%
year-on-year in the second half. All major paid newspapers
saw a drop in advertising revenue in 2019 and Sing Tao
Daily was not exempted from this blow on the market. On
the other hand, the circulation sales and revenue of Sing
Tao Daily increased in 2019, as it continued to enhance and
diversify its content to satisfy readers’ needs, such as in its
Sports and Horseracing sections. Its dedication as a high-
quality newspaper offering reliable and objective content
won the support and loyalty of readers, especially those who
increasingly looked to trustworthy media to keep them abreast
of the social events. According to Ipsos Media Atlas 2019Q3
report, Sing Tao Daily increased its readership by 8%, the
highest growth out of all Hong Kong newspapers. To provide
the best value to its readers, Sing Tao Daily maintained its
cover price at HK$8 when all other paid newspapers have
raised their prices in 2019. In addition, Smart Parents was
again voted as the number 1 parenting magazine in Hong
Kong by Marketing Magazine in 2019.

The Standard achieved satisfactory financial performance
in 2019. According to Ipsos Media Atlas 2019Q3 report,
readership of The Standard increased by 7%, one of the
highest among all newspapers in that survey. It was also
one of very few daily newspapers that recorded growth
in advertising revenue in 2019, according to admanGo. It
recorded a significant increase in Overseas Property which
continued to be a major advertising category for The Standard.
Government advertisements also increased substantially.
With efforts on broadening its income base, coupled with
initiatives on cost saving, The Standard managed to improve
its profitability in 2019.
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In 2019, the overseas operations of Sing Tao Daily remained
under pressure from the global economic slowdown and the
industry’s shift to digital media, which adversely affected
advertising and circulation revenue. To mitigate against the
negative impact on financial performance, restructuring of the
overseas operations continued including rigorous measures
to streamline work flow and control cost, while new income
sources were opened up leveraging on the established market
presence and reputation of the Sing Tao brand. Taking
into account the overall overseas operational environment,
in February 2020 Sing Tao Daily ceased its operations
in Australia as part of a business adjustment to focus on
segments with development potential.

Magazines

According to admanGo, the magazine advertising market in
Hong Kong continued to weaken in 2019, especially in the
second half, and recorded a 23% decline. Nevertheless, the
Group’s flagship magazine East Week maintained relatively
stable financial results, thanks to its committed efforts on
managing costs and developing new revenue models. It
achieved an increase of 4% in readership in 2019, according
to Ipsos Media Atlas 2019Q3 report, and was one of only
few weekly magazines of the genre that recorded readership
growth in that survey. As part of an overall restructuring
of the Group’s magazine unit to focus on the infotainment
category, the operations of the Group’s monthly magazines,
namely JET and Spiral, were outsourced under licence from
the beginning of 2020.

Recruitment Media

The Group remained as the market leader in Hong Kong’s
recruitment print media industry in 2019. JobMarket continued
to be the top recruitment publication with a readership more
than doubling that of the next competitor, according to Ipsos
Media Atlas 2019Q3 report. According to admanGo, in 2019
the Group’s recruitment publications including JobMarket and
“Headline Hot Jobs” continued to occupy the largest share
of advertising spending among recruitment publications.
However, the recruitment advertising market in Hong Kong
generally underwent a decline in the 2019 which adversely
affected the financial performance of the Group’s recruitment
media business.

New Media Business Development

During the year, the Group’s new media business continued
to grow and increased its contribution to the Group’s revenue,
complementing the traditional media business to expand their
combined presence in the media industry.
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The Group’s newspaper websites achieved significant growth
in traffic in 2019, attributable to the teams’ active efforts on
enriching the content and improving the sites’ user experience,
interest and engagement. The emergence of a number of
prominent happenings during the year also attracted readers’
attention and helped to boost traffic. Headline Daily’s website
(hd.stheadline.com) saw year-on-year increases of 70% or
above in both monthly browsers and monthly pageviews in
2019; whereas monthly browsers and monthly pageviews grew
by 71% and 67%, respectively, for Sing Tao Daily’s website
(std.stheadline.com). The video site “Headline POPNews” also
recorded an increase of 67% in video views.

Ohpama.com, the one-stop education and parenting media
platform, continued to strengthen its business performance in
2019. New sections on the website including “Trial Centre”,
“Product Safety Testing Centre” and “Pretty Mama” were launched
in early and mid 2019, and received good response from users
and clients. In addition to expanding its client base to cover a
variety of industry categories, Ohpama.com also continued to
draw a larger target audience. Web traffic in the second half
improved against the first half in terms of both monthly browsers
and monthly pageviews. Social media followers continued to
increase solidly, with total Facebook fans (Ohpama.com and
24parent.com) reaching 546,000 as of December 2019. Since the
launch of its mobile app in late 2018, offering location-specific
information and personalised calendars for parenting activities,
downloads have continued to grow and accumulated up to
38,000 as of December 2019. As the number 1 parenting digital
media in Hong Kong, Ohpama.com was awarded the “No.l
Parenting Digital Media of the Year” by Marketing Magazine’s
Media Report 2019, the second time in two consecutive years. It
also won three awards in “The Spark Awards 2019”, namely “Best
Influential Media”, “Best Fast-Growing Media” and “Best Media
Campaign — Social”. These accolades confirmed Ohpama.com’s
reputation and popularity among readers and advertisers as a
leading education and parenting media platform.

In 2019, the Headline Daily “Jetso” app continued to expand
its market presence, having achieved cumulative downloads
of over 490,000 and a membership base exceeding 90,000
up to the end of 2019. During the year, it hosted over 150
campaigns with over 80 brands and partners, attracting up to
4 million participations. Following a major campaign “Prizes
for Everyone” in March and April 2019, the app was ranked
Top 5 in Google Play Trending Apps. In the first quarter of
2019, the “Headline Daily Jetso App eShop” was launched,
providing a new online sales channel to brands and clients.
Renowned for its creativity and popularity, the Headline Daily
“Jetso” app won two gold awards in “The Spark Awards
2019”7, namely “Best Use of App” and “Best Media Campaign
— Mobile”; it was also awarded the silver prize in “Best App
— News” presented by “Mob-Ex Awards 2019”.
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The digital marketing company, Shimba Digital Limited,
achieved revenue growth in revenue in 2019 by effectively
bringing together the sales and marketing of the Group’s
cross-media platforms, offering advertisers a total reach in
excess of 139 million monthly pageviews and 1.9 million
Facebook fans (as at December 2019). It also extended its
network by working in affiliation with third-party digital
platforms, and enhanced its one-stop digital marketing
solutions encompassing content development and production,
social media account management, and media placement. As a
recognition by the industry for its achievement in combining
offline and online businesses, Shimba Digital Limited won
the “O20 Award” from the Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation in March 2019.

PROSPECTS

Global economic growth in 2019 was the weakest since the
financial crisis of 2009, and the 2020 outlook is now under
threat especially from the global pandemic of the novel
coronavirus infection, in addition to uncertainty surrounding
US-Mainland trade tensions, Brexit and geopolitical tensions in
the Middle East. For the Hong Kong economy, already hard
hit by months of social unrest, the outlook in 2020 will hinge
critically on control of the coronavirus infection as well as
development of the social incidents. The Group’s prospects
for 2020 are subject to these factors and their impact on the
advertising market.

Under the current difficult business conditions, which are
not expected to improve soon, the Group is continuing its
efforts on expenditure saving and streamlining its operations
to achieve an efficient and sustainable cost structure. Savings
on production costs can also be expected from the softening
of newsprint prices. We shall remain focused on our core
strengths in providing high-quality content and cost-effective
advertising platforms to serve the needs of our readers and
advertisers.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 1,425
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus, share
options and provident fund schemes.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, GBM (70) has been the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company since
2000. Mr. Ho was awarded the “Grand Bauhinia Medal”
by The Government of the HKSAR in 2014. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Shun Tak Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Ho contributes much to public affairs. He is a member
of the Standing Committee of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. In
addition, Mr. Ho is an honorary general committee member
of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an
economic consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of
the People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International Business
and Economics in China. He is the father of Mr. Ho Kent
Ching Tak, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Siu Sai Wo, (57) has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company since 2013. Mr. Siu
has joined the Group for more than 20 years and was the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily
and Headline Daily prior to his appointment as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group as
the Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. Prior
to joining the Group, he held various senior positions at a
number of leading Chinese newspaper companies in Hong
Kong. He has worked in the print media industry over 30
years. Mr. Siu is the vice chairman of The Newspaper Society
of Hong Kong and the vice chairman of The Chinese Language
Press Institute. He is active in joining social services. He is
currently a member of the Steering Committee on Promotion
of Volunteer Service of the Social Welfare Department of
The Government of the HKSAR. He obtained a Bachelor of
Journalism and Communication Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1985.
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Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (39) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2014. He is responsible for development
of digital media and related businesses for the Group. Mr. Ho
was a Non-executive Director of the Company from 2010 to
2014; and worked for Sing Tao Newspaper in San Francisco.
He has years of experience in media business development,
technology investments and wealth management. Mr. Ho
is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of s28 Capital,
a US$170 million technology venture capital fund based in
Silicon Valley. Previously, he worked for Goldman Sachs and
was the founding partner of Harbor Pacific Capital. Mr. Ho
serves on the board of directors of Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP), and the Innovation
and Technology Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC), and is also an honorary
trustee at Peking University. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Grace Wine Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, since June 2018. Mr. Ho has also been named a
2018 Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum
(WEF). Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Economics from Duke University and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Stanford Graduate School of
Business. He is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hongping (50) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2000. He is the Chief Representative of
the Beijing office of the Group and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with him a wealth
of experience in management, investment and government
relations to the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in various capacities in the government departments under
the China State Council. In 1998, Mr. Jia joined the Lear
Corporation China Limited as executive director and chief
representative of its Beijing office. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree from the Beijing Institute of Technology University.
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Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (61) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and overall operations of the Group.
He is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce and Administration from Victoria University of
Wellington in New Zealand. He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience in
corporate management, accounting and finance. Mr. Lau was
an independent non-executive director of AviChina Industry
& Technology Company Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period from August
2006 to June 2018.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung, (57) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2002. From 2005 to 2013, Mr. Lo was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the
Group as Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. He was
the Chief Executive Officer of the newspaper group of the
Company prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
the media industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
a number of major newspaper and television companies in
Hong Kong. He is a spokesman of The Newspaper Society of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lo graduated from the School of Journalism
and Communication at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and holds a Master’s degree in Government and Public
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Judy Chan (42) has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2013. Ms. Chan is the
chairlady, chief executive officer and an executive director
of Grace Wine Holdings Limited (“GWH”"), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange since 27 June 2018.
She is also a director of Shanxi Grace Vineyard Company
Limited (“GV”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GWH,
responsible for the business development and operations for
the winery and wine business. Under her leadership, GV is
considered as one of the best wine producers from China.
Ms. Chan is also a director of Origin Holdings (HK) Limited,
responsible for the management and financial operations of
its businesses of power generation, waste-water treatment
plant, property development and investments in Indonesia.
She was an independent and non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee of Memories Group
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited, for the period from December 2017 to
November 2018. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
marketing, branding and trading in the Asia Pacific Region.
Prior to joining GV since 2002, she had worked in the human
resources department of Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong.
She currently serves as a member of the Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
The University of Michigan. She was awarded the Ernst &
Young — Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year in 2010 and
Entrepreneur of the Year 2010 for China Hong Kong/Macau
Region, and the Asian Wine Personality of the Year 2012 by
the drinks business and the Institute of Masters of Wine.
Ms. Chan was included in Fortune’s “Asia’s 25 hottest people
in business” rankings in 2012 and was ranked among the
50 most influential persons in the global wine industry by
Decanter Magazine in 2013. Ms. Chan was also honoured with
the “Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs Award 2017” from
Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, JP (57) has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2001. She runs key offices at various public listed and
private enterprises, including group executive chairman and
managing director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited, chairman,
chief executive officer and director of Shun Tak - China
Travel Shipping Investments Limited, director of Sociedade
de Turismo e Diversdes de Macau, S.A., chairman of Macau
Tower Convention & Entertainment Centre, executive director
of Air Macau Company Limited, vice-chairman of the board
of directors of Macau International Airport Co. Ltd. as well
as co-chairperson and executive director of MGM China
Holdings Limited. Besides gearing her efforts in business
endeavors, Ms. Ho actively serves on a host of economic,
social and public services. In mainland China, she is a
standing committee member of Beijing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
an executive president of the Chamber of Tourism and a
vice president of the Women’s Chamber of Commerce under
All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce. In Hong
Kong, she is the chairperson of Hong Kong Federation of
Women, and is extensively involved in supporting educational
programs through her roles as founding honorary advisor
and a member of the board of directors of The University
of Hong Kong Foundation for Educational Development and
Research, court member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and advisory committee member on Hotel and
Tourism Management at The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Internationally, she is an executive member of the World
Travel and Tourism Council, and was appointed as Tourism
Ambassador of The World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) in
2018.

Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Marketing and
International Business Management from the Santa Clara
University in the United States. She was appointed Justice of
the Peace by the Government of the HKSAR in 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (52) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. Mr. King
is a vice chairman, corporate client solutions — Asia at UBS
AG. He is principally responsible for providing corporate
finance services to clients in China and Hong Kong. Mr.
King has over 20 years of investment banking experience
in advising corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in
financing strategies. Previously, he was a senior member of JP
Morgan’s investment banking team in Asia, and was a member
of the board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held senior positions
at various renowned institutions including Credit Lyonnais
Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited, a Hong
Kong listed conglomerate. Mr. King holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from Columbia University in New York.

Mr. Lee Cho Jat, GBS, SBS (87) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005. Mr.
Lee was awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” and the “Gold
Bauhinia Star” by The Government of the HKSAR in 1998
and 2013 respectively. He is currently director and founder
member of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited, president of The
Newspaper Society of Hong Kong, president of The Chinese
Language Press Institute, permanent honorary chairman of the
Hong Kong Publishing Federation and honorary chairman of
Sino United Publishing (Holdings) Limited, The Commercial
Press (Hong Kong) Limited and Hong Kong Commercial
Newspapers Company Limited. He is also the vice chairman
of Board of Governors, Chu Hai College. Mr. Lee started his
career in newspaper publishing industry after graduated from
secondary school in 1952 and has over 50 years of experience
in the media industry devoting to promote Chinese culture.
He was awarded Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong
Kong Print Awards in 1997. Mr. Lee successfully changed
traditional state-owned companies such as The Commercial
Press (Hong Kong) Limited, Joint Publishing (Hong Kong)
Company Limited, Chung Hwa Book Company (Hong Kong)
Limited and C & C Joint Printing Company (H.K. Limited, into
fast-developing modernised international enterprises, which,
under his leadership, become paragons of the industry. Mr.
Lee was appointed a committee member of The Preliminary
Working Committee for The Preparatory Committee for the
HKSAR of The Standing Committee of The National People’s
Congress in 1994 and was further appointed as a member of
The Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR of The National
People’s Congress, participated in the preparation of the
establishment of The Government of the HKSAR. He was
appointed as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board
of the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was appointed a member of
8th, 9th and 10th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. In 2009, Mr. Lee has been
elected the “Hundred of the Greats of Publishing in the
60 years of New China” which is the greatest honor in the
publishing industry in China. He was granted an Honorary
Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai College in July 2011.
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Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong King Lim (64) is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group’s China operations (Publications), the Chief
Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily overseas region, the
Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily overseas, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
Jinan University. He joined the Group in 2003. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the vice chairman of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong and held senior positions in various
media companies. He has extensive experience in editorial,
operations and administration.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (68) has been the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily and Headline Daily
since 2013, responsible for the operation and business of these
two newspapers, and also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. For the period from 2004 to 2013, Mr. Lai
was an Executive Director of the Company. Prior to his re-
designation as the Chief Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily
and Headline Daily, he was the Chief Executive Officer of
the magazine group responsible for overseeing the publication
of magazines of the Group. He joined the Group in 1999 as
the Vice Editor-in-Chief and afterwards, was promoted to the
Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lai held key positions in various renowned media
companies.

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (53) is a Director
(Printing Operations) of the Group and also a director
of wvarious subsidiaries of the Company, responsible for
developing the Group’s printing operations and other
investments. For the period from 2001 to 2013, Mr. Yang
was an Executive Director of the Company. He gained
wealth of experience in finance and investment arena, and
had participated in numerous corporate finance activities for
several listed companies in Hong Kong as well as worked at
a leading international bank. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yang held senior positions in Leefung Asco Printers Holdings
Limited, responsible for the group’s financial affairs and
business development.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

BREERE

BEREEOCHREASE R BEXHEE (TIY)
FRCEBRW)BINEITRAENMBINR AR - LA
RARBRZEMBARZES - BEERENER
RERXZR - FR_ZTE=FMALEE - £MNE
AEHEA > BETEEBREAGRER  LEZH
REETESEER &£RK KERTHRIES
BHEL=ENRR -

BEBEXEOGCHE T =FEEC(ESEHIM
(RIEEB)ITRARFERE  AEZMOBEZ
BIERER  BARARFAZEMBRARZES -
R-ZETNEE_T-=FHH REELGLER
NRAIZHTESR - RAER(ESBHHR)MCAKH
WITHAAER  RELEAEEBRABEB TR
mE - BEEEAKEMELRES - BRR NN
NEMBAEEERI(ESBREERE - RITE
RPTRRE -PNMBEXREER  BELENEX
EEMERATEETER -

BRRALEGHREAKE 2 ES (FIRIED) AR
AZEAMBARZES  BEMRASREZHR %
BREEMKRE R_TTE-—FE_FT-=FHH"
BREGHEARBZHNITES - REMBEREKE
BHRABZFLELR  HE2EMLFELTR
AIMEXRERS  YEE-RANZANBERIETE
B MIMBAKHEA HRERENEHRFHHKE
BAERAREESEBL BEEEXKEZMIK
EHBREHRE -



Corporate Governance Report

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) will benefit from the high standard of
corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and complied with the CG
Code throughout the review period with deviations from
certain code provisions of the CG Code specified and
explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2019, the Board consists of ten directors
including six executive directors (the “ED(s)”) and four
independent non-executive directors (the “INED(s)”). Names
and biographical details of the Directors, which include
relationship(s) between the Directors, are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
18 to 24.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the management of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles and
the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) of the Group is Mr. Siu
Sai Wo. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separate,
and their respective roles and responsibilities were clearly
established and set out in writing. The Chairman is primarily
responsible for the management and effective performance of
the Board. The CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-
day management of the business of the Group.
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TEERMSE

All INEDs were appointed for a fixed term ending on
31 December 2020 with renewal option subject to retirement
and re-election by rotation under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has adopted its own policy on Directors’
CPD. During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors
to attend or give speeches at training courses, seminars or
conferences which were relevant to their respective duties
and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided
relevant materials and updates for their viewing. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following CPD programmes during the
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board held
as required by
consideration during the Year. Due to the civil unrest and the
escalating trade tensions between China and the United States,
the Board meeting on the annual budget of the Group was
postponed to January 2020. The regular Board meetings were
held to consider and approve, among other things, the final
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Board
considered that sufficient meetings had been held as business

two regular meetings instead of four

the code provision A.1.1 for efficiency

operations were under the management and the supervision of
the EDs. The Board was consulted for every crucial decision
and the written resolutions were also circulated to all Directors
to obtain the Board’s consents.

According to the code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, the
Chairman of the Board and all INEDs shall attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board and all INEDs, except Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, were unable to attend the Company’s AGM held
in 2019 due to prior or unexpected business or overseas
engagements.

Attendance record of each Director in 2019 is set out below:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and
its terms of reference are available on both websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee comprised three members and a majority of the
members are INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ho
Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, with Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1  to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and

(iii) determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. approved the discretionary bonus for the EDs and senior
management based on their performances.

The remuneration of each Director are set out in this annual
report on pages 150 to 152.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and its
terms of reference are available on both websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee
comprised four members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee Cho Jat, with
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.
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The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

@

€

>iiD

@iv)

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board,

to assess the independence of INEDs; and

to review the Nomination Policy (as defined below)
and the Board Diversity Policy (the “BDP”) and make
recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board, and monitor its implementation so as to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Company’s nomination policy is constituted by the

provisions set out in paragraphs () and (i1 above, as the

key nomination criteria and principles of the Company

for the nomination of Directors (the “Nomination Policy).

The nomination procedures for the appointment and re-

appointment of Directors are summarised as below:

6]

)

For appointment of Directors, the Committee shall
identify and upon receipt an appointment proposal,
individual(s),

the Nomination Policy and BDP,

evaluate such having due regard to
and assess the
independence of the proposed INED(s) as appropriate,
then make recommendation(s) to the Board. The Board
may confirm the appointment of such individual(s) as
Director(s) or recommend such individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall be subject to re-election by the
Shareholders at the next general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Bye-laws.

For re-appointment of Directors, the Committee
shall review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of each retiring Director, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and BDP, and assess
the independence of each retiring INED, then make
the Board. The Board may

recommend such retiring Director to stand for re-

recommendation(s) to

election at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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The Board has adopted its own BDP. The BDP aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates on the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective selection criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity. The Committee will monitor the implementation
of the BDP and from time to time review it, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, the Nomination Policy and the BDP;

. assessed the independence of the INEDs, including
those served more than 9 years and subject to re-
election at the AGM; and

. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance committee
which comprises two members. The Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, with the Company Secretary, Ms.
Ip Ka Yee as a member.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

1) to develop, review, implement and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board so
as to comply with the legal and regulatory requirements;

(i) to review and monitor the training and CPD of
Directors;

(iii)  to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

(iv) to develop, review, implement and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

(v)  to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the annual Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s 2018 annual report; and

. prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ viewing in compliance
with the code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ CPD.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee comprised
three members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, with Ms. Ho Chiu
King, Pansy Catilina and Mr. Lee Cho Jat as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1 to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor and
assessing their independence and performance;

(i) to review the Group’s financial information and
compliance; and

(i) to review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and their
effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018;

. reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2019; and

. reviewed the internal audit reports including the review
and evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems.

The Committee met with the Group’s external auditor once
during the Year instead of twice as required by the code
provision C.3.3, due to the postponement of the Board
meeting to January 2020.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:

B BET B &

WARERER - BT TS 2 SN BB 22k & 3
MEH ML MM T

Fee payable

Services rendered R ZR%E EAE R
HK$°000

FET

Audit services EETIR 4,743
Non-audit services IEBEFT RS 55
Total &5t 4,798

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
in presenting balanced and clear interim and annual financial
statements, other financial statements and announcements of
inside information disclosures. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor are set out in this annual report on
pages 73 to 81.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Our risk management approach
combines a top down strategic review with a complementary
bottom up operational process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks.
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The Board through its Audit Committee oversees and reviews
regularly the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, practices and compliance procedures.

The Internal Audit Department independently reviews
major operating, financial and compliance control and risk
management system of the Group on an on-going basis and
covered all major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis. The Internal Audit Department reports twice each
year to the Audit Committee and the Directors on significant
findings on risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Board has conducted an annual review
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and their effectiveness and considers the systems are
adequate and effective.

The Company has adopted its policy and procedures for
disclosure of inside information including but not limited to
restricting access to inside information to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis so as to ensure the
disclosure requirement of inside information in compliance
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ip Ka Yee has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 2012. She is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company sets out the Shareholders’ rights on:

(@)

(b

How Shareholders
meeting (the “SGM”)

can convene a special general

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and section
74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended)
(the “Act”), Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company with voting right
can submit a written requisition to convene a SGM
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

The written requisition must:
(1 state the purposes of such SGM;

(i) be signed by the requisitionists (which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists); and

(ii)  be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a SGM.

How to put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, Shareholders

can submit a written requisition to move a resolution

at a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

) represent not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date

of the requisition a right to vote at the GM; or

(i) are not less than 100 Shareholders.
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©

The written requisition must:

@

@

6))

€9)

state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM;

be signed by the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several

documents in like form);

be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before such GM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than 1 week before such GM in the case of any
other requisition, however, if after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the
Company, a GM is called for a date 6 weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the time required as
referred to in the above shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof;
and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

How Shareholders can propose a person for election as

a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director

at a GM, please refer to the procedures available on

both websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(d) How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective and
efficient way of receiving enquiries from its Shareholders
through the corporate e-mail as well as its principal
office in Hong Kong and therefore, will continue these
channels of communication.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited

Sing Tao News Corporation Building, 7 Chun Cheong Street
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, Tseung Kwan O
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy during
the Year (the “Dividend Policy”) which is available on the
website of the Company. The Dividend Policy aims to provide
relatively steady dividend payout ratio and sustainable returns
to Shareholders, linked to the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, cash flows position, expenditure plans and
investments requirements as well as the business environment
and strategies, and future prospects.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim
dividends as it considers appropriate, and may recommend the
payment of final dividends to the Shareholders for approval
at the GM, subject to any restrictions under the Bye-laws and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends,
the form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial conditions, contractual restrictions, other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the
Company, and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year. The memorandum of association
and the Bye-laws are available on both websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

As a major media organisation in Hong Kong, the Group
attaches great importance to corporate social responsibility,
complies with relevant laws and regulations, and is committed
to ensuring that it conducts its business in a manner that takes
into account the impact on our people, the communities we
serve and the environment around us. Through implementing
practical policies and responsible business practices, we
establish ourselves as a responsible and reliable corporate
citizen for sustainable business growth and development while
safeguarding stakeholders’ interests and creating long-term
value for our shareholders.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report focuses on the Group’s core activities in Hong
Kong, namely newspaper and magazine publishing and related
digital media operations (which represents the majority of
the Group’s revenue and cash flow) and covers information
on how we address the most significant environmental and
social impact arising from our business operations here.
The reporting framework adopted is in accordance with
the disclosure requirements set forth in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”)
contained in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The reporting period is from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. In compliance with the ESG Guide, the Board has
overall responsibility for the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance strategy and reporting, including evaluating
and determining the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance-related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective Environmental, Social and Governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

In preparing this report, we identify Environmental, Social and
Governance subject areas and aspects that are of particular
importance and relevance by engaging with stakeholders
who have an interest in or are affected by our operations.
We define our key stakeholders as our staff, customers,
suppliers, shareholders, investors, and business partners. Our
engagement activities include focus groups, questionnaires
and surveys conducted with employees, readers, suppliers and
shareholders, to collect views from both internal and external
stakeholders so as to better understand their expectations
and identify opportunities and challenges in our operations.
The results of the stakeholder engagement are taken into
consideration when we assess and prioritise our issues. Health
and safety, anti-corruption and product responsibility were
ranked as the more important aspects by our stakeholders,
while environment-related issues and community investment
were ranked as relatively less relevant to the Group’s business
operations.
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RIE - ?\iéﬁ&’* AR E

Al.

38

ENVIRONMENTAL A. RE
Emissions Al. B
Consistent with our approach to long-term sustainable AERRMERAFZELSREREN I A&
business development, the Group takes active steps to BEEBETRIINRIEEENETIRIERE
adopt good environmental practices and comply with MEBEERENRER  HPNEBTE SR
relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental EIRFEER S R sAME S c EARHE
protection. Our businesses continually seek ways Bl REEY - ZFINBEEE EEH% 1 2 179 79
to improve energy efficiency, prevent pollution and BETAHREEANTANEZERZZK -
reduce, reuse and recycle wastes. It is the Group’s BNEFBENSHMERKRFEANRIR - Wi
policy to ensure that our business activities are carried BET(LERRFNRAIFHEI)NERR
out in a manner that causes minimum adverse impact = -
on the environment, to strive to continually improve
our environmental performance and to enhance
environmental protection awareness among our staff
especially those involved in our printing processes.
The Group’s production operations do not result in AREBMNEEEBEFEITSER RS ERNE I
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges TN mMAKE TR SSEERESE
into water and land or generation of hazardous and BEEMNELS RAEEFRARLDNELREAEE
non-hazardous waste. The Group is committed to MBS EEY  c AEENEREBERE
reducing these emissions, discharges or waste insofar ENRIAE 1E) L?Fﬁ*ﬁ}: BAMRENMBEER -
as they exist. The Group’s operations, including $ EFEBEHGFERNHTFE=HERE I
its newspaper printing operations, comply with all EEBABAOEREE R —NF K&
applicable environmental and related legislations. The BB REBEERY - MKk LA
Group outsources the printing of magazines to third- o EENEBEREEYNELE Z2EEETZE
party printers and has no data on emissions from such HEEUMERERTE -
activities. The Group is not aware of any confirmed
non-compliance incidents in relation to emissions,
discharges into water and land or generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in 2019 that had a
significant impact.
KPI Al.1 BREAEMERALL
The Group’s operations do not result in significant air REBMERBIEISER RS EITEN -
emissions. Emissions of nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur FHRAEBERMEEEHMEMNRALY
oxides (SO,) and respiratory suspended particles (RSP, (NOy * &M ESO) K B FFEN (RSP + 2 TH
also known as Particulate Matter (“PM”)) from the use BEANY (PM)UTBE BE_ET—HLE+
of vehicles owned by the Group are not significant. For ZA=+T—HBLFE FRAAKEEEBM
the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount of NO, BREEWMAEENRAALY  HELDERTE
emissions, SO, emissions and PM emissions generated by R E 5 Bl A&38,8085% 655%&3 11752 °
the use of vehicles owned by the Group in Hong Kong —TE-NFNHHRERYD  EERAERZ
were 38,808 g, 655 g and 3,117 g, respectively. The HifERE MK -
decrease in emissions in 2019 was due to a reduction
in the Group’s usage of vehicles.
2019 2018

—E-NF — )\
NO, emissions (g) Rty E (=) 38,808 44,867
SO, emissions (g) mattymEEm e (=) 655 692
PM emissions (g) BOFRERBENE (GR) 3,117 3,570
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Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The data only includes the use of vehicles
owned by the Group.

KPI Al.2

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are primarily
“energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased electricity for consumption by the Group’s
printing plant and office (Scope 2), as reported on
below. Greenhouse gas emissions resulting from
combustion of fuels by vehicles owned by the Group
(Scope 1) are also reported on below. Other greenhouse
gas emissions such as from business air travel by
employees (Scope 3) are not material and therefore are
not reported on.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, greenhouse
gas emissions from the use of vehicles owned by the
Group in Hong Kong amounted to 120,359 kg of total
CO, equivalent emissions (including CO,, CH; and N,O).
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased
electricity in Hong Kong amounted to 5,805,563 kg of
total CO, equivalent emissions. The decrease in Scope 1
emissions in 2019 was due to the reduction in the usage
of vehicles, and the decrease in Scope 2 emissions was
due to a reduction in electricity consumption.

BRI - wgMhERRE

Hrit: NLBRBEERBEABERZIME
BR 7 7] 48 uh P AT 8B KON f] AR 3R 3R
HERERARESZME - REHRE
e 2 EEE DA VNG R D &8 - -y
HRH - N ELBBEBRRASEMESR
BEWAEM -

HRANERAL2

ARE R T R B A RRE
B R e 7 o B ED R R BB TR 3 2 5 FE B
WAEATES(BE=) BEMT - Atk
B 7 8 R AR 2 A B B B
WOBE—) 5 R T HE - iR ER
BUROERMEAGTREREL 2AE
TR (BE =) T EA - [ 3 & 5 51
RS -

HE_Z-NE+-_A=1+—HIEE HiE
AAREEERBMBEEEMMEENAEZER
BB —_athEE(BE_atix - F
mEEER)B120359RT - REBBEAE
NIEENEZERAZERBENR 8 -8tk
B8 55805563R7T c —E—NFRRERE
R (EE )R EHERASE B HE
AERE maEREHE(EE )RR
EHRENEETR -

2019 2018
CO, equivalent emissions —EtHmEEHENK —E-h#E —E-N\F
Scope 1 (kg) #wE—(RT) 120,359 127,164
Scope 2 (kg) gE (XN 5,865,563 6,612,509
Scope 3 (kg) BE=(A) N/A T i#E N/AT i A

Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. For electricity purchased from CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited, the emission factor is based on
the 2018 sustainability report of CLP Power Hong
Kong Limited.

Kret: NLBRBEEREBEEEBERZIME
BR 7 ) 48 uh P T B9 KON ] AR B BR 3R
HekERMEIME —  RREERE
IR R E R 851D A3 R PR AR BET
BB -BRABATEENBRAFN
BN HUERRBD2RPEETNAR
RAZE-\FAHBERRRSE
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RIE - g MhERRE

KPI Al.3

The hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
newspaper printing operations in Hong Kong include
spent developer, spent ink and scrap zinc plates. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, a total amount
of approximately 92 tonnes of hazardous waste were
generated, including 149 tonnes of spent developer,
3.2 tonnes of spent ink and 74 tonnes of scrap zinc
plates. The increase in spent developer was due to an
adjustment in the mix of plates used (which resulted
in savings in the total quantity of plates consumed as
well as cost savings).

HRENERALS

AEEREENBRENREEMELENE S
BREYVEEERBNBEIH  BEhENER
BHERIFR - BE-_T-NF+-A=+—
BILFE  FMELBEREMALNR2AM
BEEABNBTII4ORNNE - BEHEI2A
WE K% 5 P 38 B EN R £ AR 74X MR o {5 B ED R
FEBFTIE N B R ERRM A A e E (i
REROHFROHEEEREHEKR) °

2019 2018

—s-nE  —T\E

Spent developer (tonnes) AR E 14.9 135

Spent ink (tonnes) EEm 2 (AHE) 3.2 4.4

Scrap zinc plates (tonnes) 155 AR 3@ A9 B il 83 4R (A E) 74.0 82.1
KPI Al.4 BREENIEEALS

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group,
including domestic waste, office waste and renovation
waste, was not material in 2019.

KPI Al15

The Group adopts appropriate measures to mitigate
emissions. In particular, the Group’s printing plant
adopts appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
and assign appropriate responsible staff in charge of
reducing emissions. Electricity consumption at our
printing plant and office account for the majority of
indirect greenhouse gas emissions in our operations
and we have implemented initiatives to increase energy
efficiency so as to control or reduce emissions. These
include the use of LED spotlights and T5 fluorescent
tubes to replace traditional lamps at the production
premises, using timers and automatic shut-off for
outdoor lighting systems, and regular cleaning of the
air-conditioning units and chiller plants to maximise
their efficiency and reduce energy loss. More of the
Group’s general energy use efficiency initiatives are
described under KPI A2.3 below. In addition, the waste
paper, used printing plates and waste ink generated
by our printing operations are collected by reputable
recycling companies, as described in more detail under
KPI A1.6 below, to reduce emissions from these sources.
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A2.

KPI Al1.6

Chemical wastes including spent developer are
generated during the Group’s printing processes and
our printing plant is registered as a chemical waste
producer with the Environmental Protection Department.
Spent developer and other chemical wastes are collected
by licensed chemical waste collectors in compliance
with the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation (Cap. 354C of the Laws of Hong Kong). To
reduce waste from source, our printing plant adopts
non-alcohol printing method to reduce the use of

chemicals.

Waste paper and used printing plates generated by our
printing operations are collected by a reputable recycling
company who specialises in waste management and
waste recycling. The recycling company, under an
annual contract with the Group, collects waste paper
from our printing plant for unloading to the allocated
depots. After sorting and packing, the baled waste
materials are shipped overseas or to mainland China
for further recycling. Similarly, used printing plates are
collected by the recycling company, sorted, packed,
and shipped to mainland China for further recycling. In
addition, waste ink is collected by the ink supplier for
resource recycling treatment.

The Group engages environmental recyclers to handle
scrapped electronic parts, and used printer cartridges
are collected by suppliers for recycling. Waste paper
generated by our office operations and other recyclable
office materials are also collected for recycling.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to use resources efficiently and
minimise waste generation in our operations. We strive
to strengthen our environmental protection efforts to
conserve resources and manage wastes when conducting
our business activities. In managing its use of resources,
it is the Group’s policy to:
exceed all

—  Meet or applicable environmental

standards;

—  Choose suppliers and sub-contractors that follow
appropriate environmentally-friendly practices;

— Promote environmental awareness among staff,
business partners and the public.

A2.

BRI - wgMhERRE

BEENIEEALG
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BT BERBEER KBENEEYNEEXE
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Paper and ink are the major raw materials used in
the printing of the Group’s publications. Caring for the
environment and optimising production cost are the two
main considerations in the selection and use of these
materials. Our aim is to use environmentally-friendly
products as much as possible, and at the same time
minimise consumption and wastage.

In 2019, the Group used 33,162 tonnes of newsprint
for the production of its newspapers in Hong Kong,
and 3,102 tonnes of newsprint was collected for
recycling. Around 50% of the paper used by the
Group for printing newspapers in Hong Kong in 2019
was recycled paper or contained recycled paper. The
paper used was supplied by reputable manufacturers in
Europe, Australasia and North America, all of whom are
members of the Forest Stewardship Council and adhere
strictly to manufacturing processes that create minimal
impact on the environment. Stringent supervision and
control on the efficient use of newsprint were exercised
at all times. The Group used organic-based printing ink
for printing newspapers in Hong Kong. This ink consists
of a composite of resin and vegetable oil that fulfils
environmental conservation objectives. All ink used was
supplied by manufacturers in Korea who comply with
ISO14000 and 14001 Environmental Management System
Standards as well as the ISO9000 and 9001 Quality
Management System Standards.

MR AR RERBAEETMAANTIER
M REERERZEMHE - RAOM
ARTEEZERAZAURERENEREEK
K- BZFMERERRERAREREZER
RKERENBERRERD -

RZZE—NF AEBREBDRBEE
FER AR A33,16220F - W E 310272 HE K
HHEEERKAR AEBR-_ZT—LFH
REBHRIREOMLR - 450%SBEHKLS
BEMAKD - FHEMERAFERITMEE
R o WmEN  RARIEEN ZEE
EEYERMERELZESNEE  TETY
RREENEOVENRERRF - AEE RS
EER MR AR BERSE o i AEME
BREBORREN AR B AL o td
BHEELREYBENEKRMAER  TEEER
REMBIZ - FrE{F A HHEEBEFA15014000
K 140013% 35 B 1R 88 RIF L K I1SO9000 % 90018
EEHERTENEERERIEMR -

Newsprint used (tonnes)

B ¥R 4K OH 7 (R WE)
Newsprint collected for recycling (tonnes) H ¥R 4% [ 4z (2 Mg )

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
33,162 42,090
3,102 4,640

KPI A2.1

Electricity used in the newspaper printing process at its
printing plant and in the office operations account for
the majority of the Group’s electricity consumption. The
Group purchases electricity from CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited. The electricity consumption by the Group in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
11,501,103 kWh.

REAENIEEZEA21

RNEBEZENHEMAEREDR M E R &&= LA
MM ARBIEMBNEN - AEERFPES
NEBRRRBAES - HEZT—NF+=A
=t —HALEFE AEBEEENENEE
428 11,501,103 T ELBF ©

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
Electricity consumption (kWh) BENEREE(TRE) 11,501,103 12,965,600
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KPI A2.2

The Group’s major water consumption is for its printing
operations and office operations. Water consumption
by the Group in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2019 was approximately 29,071 cubic
metres. The water consumption figure for 2019 is an
estimate only based on water bills up to October/
November as the Water Supplies Department has not
yet provided water bills for the remainder of the year.

RIE - HERERARSE

FEENIEEA2.2

REEBFZAKBORIEERMAZEERN
BEK - BEZZT—NF+-A=+—HLHF
B AEEERBE Eﬁﬁﬂd!%?%i’naonﬁﬁ
KeZE-—NEFHNBEKBEEYFTRBREHZ
ZETARtT—AMKEBEHFESEMNOE
l$%lm$wumm%%%mz¢%T%
R Hy 7K B B8

2019* 2018
—2-—nE —EN\%F
Water consumption (cubic metres) FEkweE (L hs 29,071 37,794
*Estimate %)%
KPI A2.3 BREEMERA23

As mentioned under KPI Al5, the Group adopts
appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
for energy use efficiency and assigns appropriate
responsible staff in charge of energy saving matters. In
general, the Group deploys energy-saving lightings, uses
natural sunlight as much as possible and urges staff
to switch off idle lightings, air-conditioning, computers
and other electrical equipment; in addition, staff are
encouraged to use recycled paper and to use telephone
or video conferencing to reduce local and overseas
travelling. Reminders and notices are regularly issued to
staff to remind them to use energy smartly as well as
to save water and to reduce sewage from the source.

KPI A2.4

Water is not a significant element in the Group’s
business operations and generation of waste water is
minimal.

KPI A25

The packaging materials used by the Group for its
finished products are immaterial.

IR A MERALSHM - AEERIUEE
HRRREREARSEIRER R A H

EEIE§%%$H RH L NEBEE
%%E%% BRI ABEAY  LHREE
IE&%A@%M@ﬁ%%%ﬁ‘ SIS
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A3.

B1.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to environmental protection.
It is the Group’s policy to minimise the impact of
its business activities on the environment and natural
resources.

KPI A3.1

The Group’s activities do not have a significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. Other than
the measures to mitigate emissions mentioned under
KPI Al5 and the energy use efficiency initiatives
mentioned under KPI A2.3 above, the Group continually
monitors and reviews its operations and processes to
minimise any impact on the environment. For example,
in 2019, a self-developed automated e-Photo system
was implemented to facilitate the selection, editing
and delivery of photos by the editorial and production
departments, thereby significantly reducing the physical
printing of photos as well as increasing workflow
efficiency. In addition, the Group’s IT Department
deployed “Virtual Patching” solution to avoid the need
for replacement of a large quantity of desktop computers
arising from Microsoft Windows 10 upgrade. These
initiatives represent optimising the use of resources and
reducing waste while minimising any negative impact
on the environment.

SOCIAL

Employment

It is the Group’s policy to recruit the best qualified
people and to maintain a pool of human resources

different
requirements and planning. It is also the Group’s policy

according to businesses’ manpower
to transfer or promote well performing and capable
employees to fill vacancies so that employees are
provided with opportunities to widen their exposure

and further their career development within the Group.
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The Group is dedicated to employment diversity and
anti-discrimination in the workplace, and adopts an
Equal Employment Opportunity policy. All applicants
for the Group’s positions have equal opportunities of
employment irrespective of their age, sex, marital status,
family status, disability, race, nationality or religion
(provided that these do not impede the abilities of the
prospective appointees to carry out normal job duties
or affect the health and safety of fellow employees). Job
applicants are treated fairly and equally. Employment
is offered only to the best qualified applicants with
reference to their merits and abilities to meet the
requirements of the jobs irrespective of whether they
are referrals or direct applicants.

The Group’s Human Resources Department provides
recruitment advice and related services to all
departments and line managers are responsible for
ensuring that these policies are implemented in their
operations. The Human Resources Department is
consulted before any action is taken in relation to
any employee and confirmation of full time and part-
time employment is offered by the Human Resources
Department.

We offer remuneration packages to staff taking into
account their performance, contribution and the
level of responsibility/empowerment pertinent to the
specific jobs. Remuneration packages are reviewed
according to individual performance, business unit
performance as well as the Group’s overall business
performance. We attract, retain and motivate high-
performing employees with incentive payments, such
as allowances, performance driven commissions and
bonuses, discretionary year-end bonuses and share
option scheme. We offer a comprehensive range of
employee benefits to full-time staff including insurance
and medical coverage, maternity and paternity benefits,
long service recognition awards, etc.; and we provide
mandatory provident fund schemes for all staff including
part-time staff.

Staff employment policies are adopted with approval
by management and confirmed by the Group’s Legal
Department to ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations including the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Updates to the relevant laws and
regulations, policies and procedures are posted to staff
via memoranda or company intranet.

BRI - wgMhERRE
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The collection, access, update, retention and/or transfer
of employees’ data for the process of employment
are conducted strictly in accordance with designated
procedures which are subject to regular reviews in
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group’s Human Resources Department has
appropriate systems and processes in place to ensure
compliance with the above policies and with Hong Kong
statutory provisions. It gives appropriate advice to all
operating units in following the standard procedures and
practices. All employment letters, time-sheets, overtime
forms, regular compensation, mandatory provident fund
contributions, sick leave and injury compensation, and
arrangements regarding working hours and rest periods
are subject to annual audit and regular review to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

KPI Bl1.1

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of
1,316 full-time employees including 1,006 in Hong Kong
and 310 in the Group’s mainland China and overseas
offices.

EEBETIE  EI - B RER X
BRENREENGEBERBRIETIEFET
ZF 2 TR RCEAE B (L) 1R 01D (F B A
{5 25486 %) E HIE % -

AEBANERBRBEAERR LR - #
RETLABRREBRBEEMKR - ANER
MERMAEZEEMRHTENERZERER
REHNEERER - MBRMEERE - HER -
BETER  BEEME  @fE|mSHR
AR -TEHE TESERKBLTHELA
ETFEEZNERER  UHERETER
FOERR »

A NIEEBLL

R-E—NFE+-_A=+—"H AEEHEHR
2HBEBI316A EFBEETEREE1006A
Ko AR B A BE RN SMME B 310A °

2019 2018

—g-hE T )\&

Full-time employees in Hong Kong 2HEEEB) 1,006 1,044
Full-time employees in mainland China 28 E B (P X EEFEIN

and overseas 310 336

Total number of full-time employees BEBES 1,316 1,380

The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s
employees in Hong Kong by age group and by gender:

TRR/AEERFHRAR LR E D OEFE
EE:

Full time employees by age group: RERANEINEZBEE A

2019 2018
Age Group F e 48 Bl —E-hF —ZE)\F
29 or under 203 B AT 17.6% 21.6%
30-39 307% £ 395% 15.9% 16.0%
40-49 4058 2495%, 34.8% 33.4%
50 or above 50BR s A 31.7% 29.0%
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Full time employees by gender: REBESINEBES AS:

2019 2018
Gender 4 Bl —E-h#E —E-N\F
Male S 57.2% 57.7%
Female 7% 42.8% 42.3%
KPI B1.2 AR ENIEEBL2

The Group’s employee turnover rate in Hong Kong in
2019 was 22.8%. The table below shows the Group’s
employee turnover rate by age group and by gender:

Employee turnover rate by age group:

AZE—NF AEENEBRERKILE
22.8% o NRAENEBIRF AR RIERE
%E@ﬁ/@\/llb%tt};'

BREREARNBINEER KL R

2019 2018
Age Group F i 48 Bl —E-hF —E-)\F
29 or under 205K AT 77.5% 66.4%
30-39 307% £ 395% 26.0% 31.1%
40-49 4058 2495%, 8.2% 12.1%
50 or above S50BR s A 4.3% 5.1%
Employee turnover rate by gender: RERBINWEERKLR:

2019 2018
Gender 4 Bl —E-AE —E-N\F
Male EERks 15.1% 15.0%
Female 7% 33.2% 40.0%

Health and Safety

The Group takes measures to provide and maintain
a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
through establishing an Occupational Health and Safety
Management System. We pledge to follow and observe
the following principles in implementing the system:

— To recognise that safety and health at work is
an integral part of our business performance and
to endeavor to achieve a high level of safety
performance;

— To accept the responsibility of providing and
maintaining a safe workplace for our employees
and contractors/suppliers working within our
premises;

B2. BERZETE

AEBREBRELRELEREERE  RE
BRHE—(E%X %&&KE’JIVEL@R AN
HITZBREKRBLERE TR :

— RAZELREETIESHEEBRRDN
Hep—#8n - W NZEDSKFORE
e NREFERR:

— AEEEAREIREAKEMBEEN
5 TR AR LMt R MRS
— Ml %2 MR TIES P

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g MhERRE

— To comply with the occupational health and safety
regulations and relevant legal requirements where
appropriate;

— To define safety organisational structure and
responsibilities and provide adequate and
appropriate resources for developing and
implementing the system;

— To provide appropriate training for our employees
in order to ensure the system is properly
implemented,

—  To ensure our employees and contractors/suppliers
working within our premises implement the
system;

— To periodically review the system and its
performance and implement appropriate follow up
actions in order to achieve continual improvement.

KPI B2.1 and KPI B2.2

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were a
total of 5 cases of work-related injuries representing an
average injury rate of 497 per 1,000 employees (defined
according to Occupational Safety and Health Branch,
Labour Department). There were a total of 164 days
lost due to work-related injuries. No work-related fatal
incidents occurred in 2019.

KPI B2.3

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
For example, in compliance with the Fire Services
Ordinance (Cap. 95 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has installed
adequate fire sprinklers and extinguishers in our
workplaces and emergency exit floor plans are clearly
posted; all emergency exits are checked frequently to
ensure no obstacles and we hold fire evacuation drills
and safety talks at regular intervals. All workplaces are
also equipped with first aid boxes and the printing
plant is equipped with an AED (automated external
defibrillator). In compliance with the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation (Cap.
S9AF of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have set up a
Safety Management Committee and a Safety Management
System to monitor all safety issues in the workplace,
audited by a registered safety auditor annually. In
addition, we hold regular factory-related drills (e.g.
chemical spillage) at our printing plant.
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Development and Training B3. R RIZFI
We encourage our staff members to improve their job BMERARBIENFINGE - TIEHKE
capabilities and career prospects by providing them BE - mBIIREEREREAKRRERO K
with opportunities for professional and personal growth g ZBEIRATIIERNLRBERS -
and development, through various training programmes,
workshops and seminars.
An induction training is organised for new employees to BMAMEIRMAARIE  ZMAMTHAR
apprise them of the Group’s businesses and the industry SEEBRAETENMRR - JH: S R API(R)
in which we operate. In addition, on-the-job training EEBEEEERSR)EHENEI - BXE
is offered to employees, including management and RARZERAMBERE ZFHRIEESR
directors, for the purpose of refreshing and developing BESTHBEERER - UEAER (FLE)
their knowledge and skills. These include training By (R BRR FINE B AP E362%) &
related to compliance with relevant laws and regulations HAth B &5 M R 88 A0 - BAMIIRE B4R T1E
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Trade e MREREN - ABREREMOEITH#
Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of Hong BRTENRHER  HATREBEEENR
Kong) as well as other advertising and media laws. NEBERMEREESIERS A8
Work safety and anti-bribery training is also provided & I SIS LI E RTISE RN
on a regular basis. To ensure that our staff are kept Al e
abreast of the developments in the media industry, we
also offer training on the latest editorial management
systems, office automation, online media technology as
well as digital sales and marketing, according to the
roles and responsibilities of the employees.
KPI B3.1 and KPI B3.2 REEARIEEB.IRBAREARIEEB3.2
For the year ended 31 December 2019, a total of 865 HE_T-NFT+A=T—HIEFE  #£F
employees attended training through both internal and 86)% =] I A B R AN FI AR IR R E R
external training course (representing 86% of full-time 2R EBRIS6%) + X 45,036/ NEER R -
employees), with a total of 45,036 hours of training.
2019 2018
—E-NE — )\
Number of employees who attended ZEINET A
training 865 950
Total hours of training 48 T 155 2R 45,036 47,410
B4. Labour Standards B4. BT #BH|

The Group adopts a “No Child Labour and No Forced

Labour” policy which:

—  Ensures that no person below the age of 15 is
employed in the workplace;

—  Prohibits the use of forced or compulsory labour;

REERRNTREBEIRTRESEIHEK:

— BEITEBTARATHOALTIE:

—  BIREREAHED:
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B5.

—  Ensures that no employee is made to work against
his/her will or to work as bonded/forced labour,
or subjected to corporal punishment or coercion
of any kind related to work;

—  Refrains from engaging with vendors and suppliers
who use child labour and forced labour in their
operations.

The Human Resources Department as well as
department heads will ensure implementation of this
policy, in compliance with Employment of Children
Regulations (Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations
(Cap. 57C of the Laws of Hong Kong), throughout the
process of recruitment and employment registration. Any
violation of related regulations and procedures will be
subject to warning, re-education or disciplinary action
and such other appropriate measures as the Group’s
management may decide to take.

KPI B4.1 and KPI B4.2

The Group has taken necessary measures to prevent
child labour and such measures are communicated
regularly to all departments and suppliers. The Human
Resources Department maintains appropriate procedures
to verify the date of birth of new joiners. Work time
sheets with details on job nature are required and kept
to ensure that young persons (as defined under the
Employment Ordinance) do not engage in night shifts
or hazardous jobs, and to ensure that minimum wages
are adhered to. Limits for working hours and overtime
are set taking into consideration the age of employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child labour or forced
labour.

Supply Chain Management

It is the Group’s policy to source materials from

sustainable sources managed or operated by
environmentally reputable suppliers who are in line
with the Group’s view to social responsibility and these
suppliers are diversified geographically to ensure the
source materials supply is not affected by change of
environmental policy of individual country or individual

region.
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BG.

KPI B5.1 and KPI B5.2

In 2019, the top 10 suppliers for the Group’s regular
business operations in Hong Kong (being suppliers of
products and/or services with an annual total contract
amount of HK$10 million or above) accounted for
approximately 36% of the Group’s total purchases of
products and/or services. These are mainly suppliers of
newsprint, ink, printing services and delivery services
and approximately 34%, 11%, 18% and 37% of them
are located,
America and the rest of the world including Europe and

respectively, in Hong Kong, Asia, North
Australasia.

Newsprint and ink are the major materials consumed
by the Group. Senior management staff responsible
for this role visits existing and potential suppliers
(who individually accounts for 20% or more of total
consumption) to examine and assess whether they
fulfil the industry’s expectations in the social and
environmental aspects, especially concerning the raw
materials and the natural resources they use to produce

their products.
Product Responsibility

The Group aims to provide products (inter alia,

newspapers, magazines, recruitment media and other

publications) and services (inter alia, advertising,

promotional events,
of the highest standards. As a content provider, the

printing and publishing services)

Group aims to produce high quality content to make
its products preferred and valued by readers. As an
advertising medium, the Group aims to be an effective
platform for advertisers to reach their target audience.
Also, the Group is committed to protecting the privacy

of individuals with respect to personal data.
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KPI B6.1, KPI B6.2, KPI B6.3 and KPI B6.4

For the year ended 31 December 2019, none of our
products sold or shipped was subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons, and the Group was not aware of
any products and service related complaints that would
have significant impact on the Group. It is the Group’s
policy to respect intellectual property rights (which is
also one of its valuable assets as a content provider),
not to use infringing articles in our business and only
use licensed software on office equipment. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Copyright Ordinance
(Cap. 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as stipulated in
the Employee Handbook, and are required to report any
suspected intellectual property rights infringement of
the Group. In terms of quality assurance, regular review
meetings are held by relevant staff to ensure provision
of high quality content to readers.

KPI B6.5

Brief updates and/or training are provided to keep
the relevant staff in pace with the developments in
the advertising and media laws, and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Regarding advertising service, advertisements of
suspicious nature are reviewed and commented before
publication so as to minimise the possibility of any
claims, allegations and/or contravention of the relevant
laws. In relation to privacy, a personal data policy is
set out in the Employee Handbook to which staff are
required to strictly adhere when handling personal
data. In compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, privacy policy statements are also included
in the Group’s websites and mobile applications, and
Personal Information Collection Statements are made
whenever personal data is collected. All personal data
is maintained with care and can only be accessed by
authorised staff, and protected by appropriate security
measures.
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BS.

Anti-corruption

It is the Group’s policy to ensure that its business
operates according to the highest standards of ethical
conduct and professional competence. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the code of conduct contained in the Employee
Handbook, in particular the conflict of interest and
anti-bribery provisions. Guidelines have been issued to
provide a practical guidance in relation to the operation
of the above anti-bribery provisions.

KPI B7.1

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
was not aware of any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

KPI B7.2

The Group encourages the reporting of any suspected
breach of the aforesaid to the Human Resources
Department through the whistle-blowing mechanism.
Such reports are kept confidential and the identity of
the reporting employee will not be divulged. The Group
will take all reasonable steps to ensure that the reporting
employee suffers no detriment. Also, different internal

audit assignments are conducted from time to time.
Community Investment

As a media organisation, the Group strives to provide
high quality journalism and an effective advertising
medium to ensure business success, while at the same
time the Group is committed to fulfilling its social
responsibility as a good corporate citizen that brings
benefits to the communities in which it operates. Our
community investment strategy is to leverage on and
align the resources of the Group (including our readers
and staff) with the needs of the communities we
serve. We focus on two core areas where we believe
our understanding of the needs and our support can
best contribute to the long term development and
sustainability of the community, namely, Education and
Charity & Community Care.
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KPI B8.1 and KPI BS8.2
Education

It is our belief to support and nurture today’s young
people who are our future, by providing them with
opportunities to formal education as well as personal
development. This section outlines our key educational
initiatives:

—  Students’ Loan Fund and Scholarship under
Sing Tao Charitable Foundation

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation was established in
1976 with the aim of providing financial assistance
to those in need, including student loans and
scholarships, which comprise:

* Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’ Loan
Fund

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’ Loan
Fund seeks to assist, by way of interest-free
loans, students who face financial difficulty and
are nominated by their education institutes.
The Loan Fund is composed of two parts —
loans to students of the eight University Grants
Committee-funded universities and Hong
Kong Shue Yan University, and emergency
loans to students of the aforementioned nine
universities, certain other tertiary institutions
and secondary schools recognised by the
Education Bureau. In addition to providing
funding to the Loan Fund, the Group also
participates in its selection committee. In the
2018/2019 academic year, Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation Students’ Loan Fund provided loans
of approximately HK$660,000 to 58 students.

* Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships
was set up to offer one-off scholarships to
outstanding students studying Journalism and
Communication at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, in order to nurture future
journalists and talents in the news industry.
In the 2018/2019 academic year, Sing Tao
Charitable Foundation Scholarships provided
scholarships of HK$40,000 to 8 students.
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The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund

The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund aims to provide
financial assistance, by way of interest-free
loans, to students in Medicine, Nursing and
Chinese Medicine at The University of Hong
Kong. In the 2018/2019 academic year, The
Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive Medical
Students Loan Fund approved loans of
approximately HK$220,000 to 12 students.

Education-related Activities

Since 1994 the Group has organised the annual
“Leader of the Year” Award to acknowledge
outstanding leaders and thereby encourage
the younger generation to strive for excellence
and contribute to the development of Hong
Kong. Up to 2018, a total of 121 awards have
been presented to individuals and groups in
recognition of their achievements in a range of
categories spanning Community/Public Affairs
to Education and Research. A new award
category “Young Entrepreneur” was added in
2017 to recognise young leaders and foster the
spirit of entrepreneurship and creativity. The
“Leader of the Year 2019” award presentation
ceremony will be held in June 2020.

The Group co-organises the annual “Sing Tao
Inter-School Debating Competition” with the
Education Bureau and the event reached its
34" year in 2019. The competition provides
an opportunity for students to hone their
skills in use of language, debating, analytical
thinking and organisation, as well as to raise
their awareness of current affairs and enrich
their experience in extra-curricular activities. In
2019, the competition attracted participation by
208 schools and approximately 2,500 students
and teachers.
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* In order to raise students’ interest in journalism
and allow young people to better understand
the operations of a newspaper, the Group
regularly organises visits from schools and
non-profit organisations. During the visits,
staff from the Group’s Editorial Department,
Art Department, Printing Department and
Information Centre interact with students to
explain and demonstrate their operations in
addition to answering questions from students.
In 2019, the Group hosted 14 visits by 390
visitors from schools and organisations.

* The book publication and distribution unit
of the Group makes donations of books to
schools, in order to promote healthy reading
habits among students to broaden their
knowledge, or cash donations from charity
book sales to charitable organisations. In
addition, the Group’s publications organise
various education-related activities regularly,
including seminars and fairs on school
admissions, contests on story writing and
drawing as well as other competitions
which encourage students to understand and
participate in their communities.

Charity & Community Care

The Group is committed to “giving back to society” by
supporting charitable activities and caring for those in
need. In our day-to-day news gathering and reporting
activities, the Group is frequently in touch with and
aware of the special and urgent needs in the community.
This section outlines our key charity and community
care initiatives:

—  Charity projects under Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation

In addition to education-related financial
assistance, Sing Tao Charitable Foundation also
provides aid to victims of accidents or disasters.
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Sing Tao Charitable Foundation — Readers’
Donations

Through the reporting in the Group’s
publications, readers become aware of the
needs of individuals and families struck by
adversities and want to provide financial
assistance to them. Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation serves as a channel to coordinate
readers’ donations and ensure that the process
is systematic and accountable. Readers can
choose to donate on a one-off or ongoing
basis and over the years the Foundation has
helped many individuals and families in need
to tide over their worst times. In 2019, Sing Tao
Charitable Foundation participated in 12 cases
and directed over HK$860,000 in donations
from our benevolent readers.

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation — Disaster
Relief

Another role played by Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation is disaster relief — the Foundation
has taken the lead to organise fund raising and
donation activities in times of major calamities
to help victims recover from their misfortune
and return to their normal lives. For example,
after the 2008 Sichuan Earthquake, Sing Tao
Charitable Foundation worked with Sowers
Action to rebuild 7 schools in the affected
areas with a view to assisting the victims to
improve their long term livelihood through
better education. In 2019, Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation and Sowers Action jointly continued
to sponsor ancillary facilities for 3 schools in
Sichuan.
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Charity and Community Care Activities

As a newspaper, Sing Tao Daily is at the
forefront in encountering happenings in society
and the needy. In 2009, it set up an Adversity
Support Scheme with Yan Oi Tong to provide
emergency financial assistance to those who
face sudden mishaps and hardships. Sing
Tao Daily’s reporters refer cases and contact
the individuals and families concerned, and
the Scheme also arranges support services
by professional social workers. In addition,
Sing Tao Daily is also the media sponsor
of the Scheme and assists in publicising
the cases requiring assistance to encourage
the public to care and donate. In 2019, the
Scheme participated in 4 cases and provided
HK$100,000 in donations.

Since 2011 Headline Daily has been a
media sponsor for The Community Chest
Rainbow Fund, which is involved in providing
immediate and short term financial assistance
to individuals and families with urgent and
critical needs. Headline Daily supports by
devoting editorial space to publish relevant
cases and to appeal for donations from readers,
as well as by referring cases to the Fund for
approval. In 2019, the Fund provided donations
of HK$595,000 to 9 cases.

We also encourage our employees to participate
in charitable activities, including blood
donation days, second-hand books donation
and charity book sales. In 2019, the Group
received a “Generous Giving Angel Bronze
Award” and “Long-term Giving Award” from
The Hong Kong Society for the Blind.

The Group’s education and parenting media
platform Ohpama.com has organised a
volunteers’ team to encourage parents and
children to do voluntary service together, such
as visiting and helping the elderly people. In
2019, a total of 90 volunteers participated in 2
visits to the elderly.

The Group’s different business units regularly
support various charitable activities by
organising, sponsoring or acting as a media
partner to promote the events among the
public, including the HKGCC Free Ride Day,
the 7" “Because I am a Girl — Donate a Pencil”
Campaign, Orbis Walk for Sight 2019, Lok
Sin Tong Charity Walk 2019, Hok Yau Club
Flag Day 2019, World Vision 30-Hour Famine,
amongst others.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the Year.

A fair review of the Group’s business as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 12 to 17 of this annual report.
In respect of the discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with stakeholders are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 37 to 58 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of the directors’ report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting
the environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill
social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Principal risk and uncertainties of the Group can be found in

the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
12 to 17 of this annual report.

EEFHRE

ExEREAKEHE_T-NAFT-_A=t—H
TEE(AFEDZEFRMEERMBRE -

ITRXBREBORE

ARRz EBEBRREZR  ETEMBLARZ
TEXBHABENMBHRRME - AEBZE
EEBHEERNAFEALEERES -

BREBTBRMERMRTRT  HAEEEBHD
FEER BRUAEEESHAEJERFNRKE
BB R  SRAEREREVEEEEBEN LD
MIN - BEAEENREBRRERE  HYHAHE
FERREBRNETER UARBEHEBERZ
WENAFRPEITESEHEE  teg kB ARE]
e ZETmBNRNAESEREN—BH -

AEBEHNETER ﬁLEE@ﬂA¥E R&
RELOELE  HEMETT B BERAFHE
BE - ANEEEET T$%lgﬁﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁ
MHERERIAR -

TERBEFAABEE

AEENETERAKETHPAAZHNAAFTFRERE
7EIEEBENmEDITIA -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Report of the Directors
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in this
annual report on pages 82 to 221.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend (2018: HK2 cents per ordinary share) and special
dividend (2018: HK10 cents per ordinary share) for the Year.
The Company paid the interim dividend of HK3.5 cents
(2018: HK2 cents) per ordinary share to shareholders on 24
September 2019.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 224 of this annual report. The summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 28 and 29
to the financial statements, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$1,152,637,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,291,355,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$182,000 (2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the Year, none of the Directors or their close associates
or the shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak
Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis
Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mr. Siu Sai Wo

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Judy Chan

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat
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According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Jia
Hongping, Mr. Lo Wing Hung, Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. King
Richard Yun Zing will retire by rotation, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “2020 AGM”). Details
of the Directors’ standing for re-election are set out in the
circular to the shareholders of the Company sent together
with this annual report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Judy Chan, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Lee Cho Jat,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 24 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has maintained directors and officers liability
insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every year. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, and the results of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

EEFHRE

EERESTHRAENES

RZFB-NFT+_A=+—B EFRARAES
TRABRARR R EBBZEZE(EEREFLY
B0 ([EH5EBEED ) EXVER) 2 I & iERE
e BAEREE SR BEGRIIE326A AR
ATHRENELMACHIBREBETEREIZM
BERAREZEMANTETRADMEAE 2
(EPBETAESTETEFRZNFREST DR
BFADDARTHEARANEEBREXIMA
RABI(BRAADE T

@ HEAXARTHER

Number of ordinary shares and underlying shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

FEEBRREBROYE SOREHRLE

Percentage

Interests in of the

underlying Company’s

Personal Corporate shares issued voting

Name of director Note interests interests (Note 2) Total shares
EHE HFEAQFE

R RONERERE

EEps i BAER ARER (B#2) #Y  RiezEst
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles AR % E 1 — 426,197,500 4,230,000 430,427,500 49.10%
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak WEEEE — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.68%
Mr. Jia Hongping BAFLE 2,000,000 — 4,500,000 6,500,000 0.74%
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Akt 3,000,000 — 6,000,000 9,000,000 1.03%
Mr. Lo Wing Hung B EE 18,000,000 — 1,500,000 19,500,000 2.22%
Mr. Siu Sai Wo BHMLAE 7,872,500 — 8,900,000 16,772,500 191%
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(b) Interests in associated corporations of the (b) EAXRBZEBEIEPHNER
Company
As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Lo Wing Hung (“Mr. Lo”), RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ARFEZFE
a director of the Company, held the corporate interests KERETELEEDRTIARRQR 2B
in shares of the following associated corporations of the R PR E L RE
Company:
Percentage of the
Total number of associated corporation’s
Name of associated corporation Notes shares held issued voting shares
hZRELE
BEZRH BRTNERER
BREELRE Wit EEEY R zERH
Bastille Heat Book Store Limited EIHANEEERAT 4 1 100%
Bastille JC Bookcity Limited ErHRYEAERAT 4 2 100%
Bastille Post Company Limited (“BPCL’) EroBaRAR(ETHR]) 3 25,400,000 70%
Bravo Link Limited (‘BLL’) BHRMERARRATAR) 4 1 100%
Bravo Link (HK) Limited (‘BLHKL) BRFRE(ER)BRAAERER) 5 1 100%
Bravo Link New Media Limited BRHMBERARLA 7 2 100%
eDescartes Digital (HK) Limited BREEBEEEBRDA 4 10,000,000 100%
Ticker Asia Limited 4 15 775%
Ticker International Limited 6 2,500 20%
Wanquren Company Limited (formerly EEABRAT
known as BasBuy Company Limited) (MBELHERUERLA) 4 2 100%
Notes: M 57 -
1. The corporate interests of 426,197,500 shares were 1. DAl 2 R 19426,197,5008% B Luckman

6.

held by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”),
which was beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok,
Charles.

These interests represented share options granted
under the share option scheme of the Company
which was adopted on 23 May 2012, details of which
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The corporate interests of 25,400,000 shares were
held by Bastille Post Holdings Limited (“BPHL"),
which was beneficially owned by Mr. Lo.

Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares
held through BPCL, which was owned by BPHL and
the Group as to 70% and 30% respectively.

Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in the one
share held through BLL, which was wholly-owned
by BPCL.

Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in 2,500 shares
held through Ticker Asia Limited, which was owned
by BPCL as to 77.5%.

Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares
held through BPCL and BLHKL as to 90% and 10%
respectively. BLHKL was wholly-owned by BLL.
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Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures in
note 29 to the financial statements, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interested or were deemed to be interested in 5% or more of
the issued voting shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EEFHRE

BRAXHBEESN  BEEFERARRESTHA
BERBRIBRRAEBARF X EEMABEEE
BEREFRBAEGRMFEXVER) H I A8 B 7
FoMBREBEESRBEERMNFE2EARRATH
FHELMALE  ARBGEETRDESRTH
ERAYNCIDNE By AR CIE: 9 8 Y-

EESTARBRONER

B BB A AR At BI N A IS R MY A 20 BB S - AR Ak
HLAT: {a] P8 2 A 43 4 A AN 4R JE AL ) B 1R 2 ERAE ]
ZH AEREFREBALRTSEMEMEAR
BB EREEMRERME -

TERREEMATHES

R-B—AF+=A=+—B RESXRERGE
BIEsHART AT BTN B RMAEE - 75
AL EFRARARSTHA BB SN 5 SRR
BEEARTERTHERFEBRB%IN L2

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and  ordinary shares issued voting

Name Notes ~ nature of interest held shares

EEAREE

FHK FEEER BONEREE

1 it BHEitE 8B RB2BDH

Luckman (D Beneficial owner 426,197,500 48.62%
BEREBA

Hong Kong Tobacco Company Limited & &EEHR A E] 2 Deemed interest 426,197,500 48.62%
(“HK Tobacco”) (BFEEE] WRAEBZER

Stagelight Group Limited Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.35%

EafEA
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Notes:

(€Y)

(@)

.

The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through
a controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests”
above.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001
and ten supplemental agreements entered into between
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003,
19 July 2006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008, 19 July 2010,
19 July 2012, 19 July 2014, 19 July 2016 and 19 July
2018 respectively, HK Tobacco was granted an option to
purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company. Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, HK
Tobacco is deemed to be interested in all the 426,197,500
ordinary shares of the Company held by Luckman.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been notified

of any other interests or short positions being held by any

person in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

BPHL is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lo, an executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lo, through BPHL, holds 70%
interest in BPCL. The Group indirectly holds the remaining
30% interest in BPCL. BPHL and BPCL (together with its

subsidiaries and associates,

the “BP Group”) are therefore

connected persons of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with BPCL and the BP Group (as the case may be):

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP Group
entered into a Group Master Services Agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 19 December
2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020 (the “Group
Master Services Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to, from time to time, provide the BP
Group with various services, including but not limited
to the following categories:

(@  Sharing of administrative services relating to
accounting services support, office administration
support,
technology support, general company secretarial

human resources support, information

support and legal support between the Group and
the BP Group;
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(b)  Provision of office space by the Group to the BP
Group to accommodate its employees;

(00  Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group for its own use;

(d) Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

()  Distribution of books published by the BP Group
through the Group;

(f)  Provision of information technology system
services by the Group to the BP Group for the
development of websites, mobile sites and mobile
applications;

(g) Provision of content being owned by the Group
to the BP Group;

(h)  Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the Group to the BP Group; and

(1  Provision of marketing related services and
products by the Group to the BP Group.

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP Group
also entered into a BP Group Master Services Agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 19
December 2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020
(the “BP Group Master Services Agreement”) pursuant
to which the BP Group agreed to, from time to time,
provide the Group with various services, including but
not limited to the following categories:

(@  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group for its own use;

(b)  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

(© Distribution of books published by the Group
through the BP Group;

(d) Provision of content being owned by the BP Group
to the Group;

(e) Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the BP Group to the Group; and

D) Provision of marketing related services and
products by the BP Group to the Group.
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As stated in the announcements of the Company dated 11
December 2017 and 22 December 2017, the pricing policy
under the Group Master Services Agreement and the BP Group
Master Services Agreement will be based on the nature of
transactions from time to time entered into between the Group
and the BP Group as follows:

(@  relating to the transactions on provision of office space
by the Group to the BP Group, the Group will have
regard to the then prevailing market licence fee for
similar type and size of space in the nearby locations,
and/or consult reputable agents for benchmarks of
assessment for at least two comparables;

(b) relating to the transactions on provision of advertising
spaces by the Group to the BP Group and by the BP
Group to the Group for its own use by way of booking,
the price will be determined by the business team of the
Group based on the then prevailing market conditions,
industry practices and rate offered to independent third
parties; and

© relating to the other transactions, the Group will from
time to time obtain quotations from suppliers and/
or make price enquiries for the same or similar type
of service for at least two comparables so as to offer
the same or more favourable terms in the Group’s
perspective, to the BP Group.

Proper internal control measures have been in place to review,
approve and access all these transactions.

At any time during the terms of the Group Master Services
Agreement and the BP Group Master Services Agreement,
the Group and the BP Group may enter into individual
agreement(s) in relation to any of the services contemplated
thereunder upon and subject to the terms and conditions
thereof.

The Company set the annual caps for each of the following
categories of the transactions for the three years from 19
December 2017 to 18 December 2020 (both dates inclusive):

(@  Provision of various services by the Group to the BP
Group; and

(b)  Provision of various services by the BP Group to the
Group.
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Report of the Directors

During the Year, the approximate aggregate service fees
received or paid by the Group and the annual caps in respect
of each category of the transactions are set out below:

EEFHRE

RAFER » AEEEER SR W]
MERGERRFE LREINMT

Approximate aggregate

services fees for the Annual cap for the

financial year ended financial year ended

Category 31 December 2019 31 December 2019

BRNEREER FELR

BE-Z-h&F BE-Z-h&

+=-—A=+—H1L +=-A=+—H1L

Rl B FE BBEE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Provision of various services by the ZANE&EBEFELARE 1,354 10,000
Group to the BP Group R EERS

Provision of various services by the 1 #) 3 & B [ A &% 1,440 7,600
BP Group to the Group e % & AR S

The Directors considered that the transactions mentioned
in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above will benefit the Group
in maximising operational efficiency and management
effectiveness, enhance versatility in content production and
distribution, and provide increased exposure in the internet
related media business, to further strengthen the Group’s
operations and maximise the Group’s media business value.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions
mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above constituted
continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) of the Group
for the Year which require disclosures in this annual
report. Details of such transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 December 2017 and
22 December 2017.
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The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on the Group’s
CCT for the Year in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor have issued a letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the Group’s
CCT mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group; and

(iii) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps
disclosed in previous announcements of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s CCT for the Year and the Group’s
internal audit report, and confirmed that the Group’s CCT for
the Year were entered into:

1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(ii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements applicable for the CCT in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected transactions
or CCT, which were required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules, entered into between the Company or its subsidiaries
and a connected person during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the Group’s connected transaction and CCT
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the Year are
disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” above.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or his or her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during or at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business during the Year are set out in note 34
to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions” above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Change of Address of Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office

As announced on 25 June 2019, the address of Tricor Tengis
Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, was changed to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effect from 11 July 2019.
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Report of the Directors

EEFWE

Change of Address of Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in Bermuda

As announced on 19 July 2019, the address of MUFG Fund
Services (Bermuda) Limited, the Company’s principal share
registrar and transfer office in Bermuda, was changed to 4th
Floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda with effect from 19 July 2019.

Potential Disposal of Shares

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated
1 November 2019, 5 November 2019, 5 December 2019, 3
January 2020, 4 February 2020 and 4 March 2020 respectively
(the “Previous Announcements”). As disclosed in the Previous
Announcements, Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (“Mr. Ho”), an
executive director of the Company, the chairman of the
Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company, was in
preliminary discussion with an independent potential purchaser
(the “Potential Purchaser”) regarding, amongst others, a possible
sale of an interest in the Company (the “Possible Transaction”).
The discussion between Mr. Ho and the Potential Purchaser in
relation to the Possible Transaction are still ongoing, and Mr. Ho
has not entered into any formal or legally binding agreement in
respect of the Possible Transaction. Please refer to the Previous
Announcements for further details of the Possible Transaction.

Liquidation of a Subsidiary in Australia

Details of liquidation of Sing Tao Newspapers Pty. Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and incorporated in Australia, are set out in note 38 to
the financial statements and disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 February 2020.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young ZXKEBFEE AT TelE 3E: +852 2846 9888

22/F, CITIC Tower EBPRAFZEIR Fax{# E: +852 2868 4432
ﬁﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue i KE221 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 221, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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MRERER(E

Key audit matter

MEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RERTEERREELSEANG

Valuation of properties

YE 1 1E

As at 31 December 2019, property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties held by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,305,676,000 in aggregate, of which
HK$915,757,000 related to owner-occupied land and
buildings measured at fair value, HK$23,050,000 related
to prepaid land lease payments measured at fair value
and HK$119,122,000 related to investment properties. The
valuation process was inherently subjective and dependent
on a number of estimates. The Group engaged an
external valuer to perform the valuation for the properties
measured at fair value.

RZZ—AF+-_A=Z+—H  BS£EEEDE K
B R AR IR E Y E A £ 491,305,676,0000 7T - B A
915,757,000 LB Z A FEFENER I RIEFTHE -
23,050,000 L IZ A FEFENEN LA ERER
B ' 119,122,000 TTAIE I EMEBRE - (HEEFAFE
FEM WEOARZHEMG - BEEBECEBININEME
M A FEFEOWEEITHE -

The related disclosures are included in notes 3, 13 and
14 to the financial statements.

BRABRBERNVHEHERRMES - 13%14 -

Our audit included the
independence and competence of the external valuer
employed by the Group;

methodology and the assumptions adopted by the valuer,

procedures considering

evaluating the wvaluation
with the assistance from our internal valuation expert;
evaluating the data used as inputs for the valuation and
comparing such data with market data of comparable
properties;
assumptions and judgements used in the valuation.

and discussing with management on key
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MRERER(E

Key audit matter

HMREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RERTEERBEELSEANG

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

JE AR 5 8L 18 AT 1

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded trade
receivables of approximately HK$298,403,000 before
impairment of HK$12,667,000. The Group’s accounting for
impairment on trade receivables was based on a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach, and the
measurement on the Group’s trade receivables under
such approach was estimated by management through
an application of judgement and use of highly subjective
assumptions. The impact of economic factors, both current
and future, and forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors were also considered in management’s assessment
of the likelihood of recovery from customers.

RZZE-AFE+-A=+—H  BEEHEEKERY
298,403,000 7T (41 & 8k (B12,667,00078 TTRT) ©» B &
RRAEENEHREABX(ERERABRDEX AE
WERFUREAR  MAERERNT - 8 BEBERIER
MErESREBEBEDINGBTRAL  HEFTFEEH - F
BEFGEREPWE AT IER - JREE BB AT &R KK
BERENFEUARAEERREBANAERE -

Due to the significance of trade receivables and the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates, we considered this
as a key audit matter.

HRERERNEZEELZSEEBNTETEME - &
MRA/U T —EREZEE -

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 21 to
the financial statements.

BERBRBESRN Y BHRME3R21 -

Our audit procedures included assessing the controls
over the monitoring of trade receivables; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the expected
impairment allowance, understanding and discussing
with management judgements used under the
ECL approach; assessing historical pattern and
management’s basis of judgement applied on this
data under the ECL approach; and assessing the
adequacy of the impairment recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the year end.
We also evaluated whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on the current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.

credit loss
for
loss

allowance

BANBEREFEREFHEEREBURIRRE R R
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BUHERIELEERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if]
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

8 S % BEM R S

BRBMRERGREMBRRARENER(F)

BPREESEZEAETERNIHEZ - BE
REXHE  EREEFZERTREEREREE -
BAPIIR -

o BRI B ERGE S SR B AR A M
BREFEERERFOAORER - ReT AT
ERRFAREZERR - ARG RM
BENEZEE FARMERNER - i
REFFARESRERR RiE E2EF &
B - HEERABEZE 2 £ B R#E
HRAMGFMERNEANHERRANRA RS
REAFERMEMNEANERR AW E g -

c THREFZHEBOARBERE  ARTEEN
EZERF BEMNYLFEYE SEEANIEE
MMEBERRER -

- HEEFEARASHERENBEMNERMEL
SRT AT MMER R EN AR -

s HEBFERAUFELCERERMEIER
BRE  UYRECEDRNEZERE BER
LTRARYE BEEEFBELENREIBRE
REHENEARBEREFERTEEEE - i
ERMRER/BEERTEERSR - &fIH
BEGBMBETRBIBEAVHREA
FMERRE K RMEREBEETRE - AMERT
BPMWER - RANEREENEEZBED
BREBHMESHNERER - AT AKF
HHBERAEER EXETHAGHER

s o
L HIBE ST o

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Independent Auditor’s Report

8 S % BEM R S

e
EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S A4E 22
%/T\m E\ﬁﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ - ZF—NWF+ _-_HA=+—HIFFEZF

Notes 2019 2018
N3 —E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
REVENUE L ON 5 1,261,779 1,431,704
Cost of sales £ & B AN (794,656) (895,401)
Gross profit E 7 467,123 536,303
Other income and gains, net E AU A Rz 558 5 18,579 18,528
Distribution expenses 7 8H B (213,569) (235,176)
Administrative expenses TR X (275,180) (280,636)
Other expenses Hth 7 % (11,971) (5,358)
Finance costs A& KA 6 (2,418) (€))
Share of profits and losses of: T RRRF REE:
Joint ventures aehE (3,204) 4,238
Associates ERRNE]| 3,873 7,137
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ADER(BIE) 7 (16,767) 45,035
Income tax expense FrisfiM X 10 (5,909) (20,792)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AATEE AEAL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF REEHRN(FR)
THE COMPANY (22,676) 24,243
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ARTEBRESEAEWN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BRBEF (EE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE — (B
COMPANY - (HK cents) 12
Basic BN (2.61) 2.80
Diluted g (2.61) 2.80
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ - ZF—NWF+ _-_HA=+—HIFFZF

Notes 2019 2018
= L = 2\
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEERF (R (22,676) 24,243
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H it 2 H W &
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that A& BifEIATgL E ¥ HiHEE =
may be reclassified to profit or loss WEAMEE R (BE)
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of HEBINEREHIE H E58
foreign operations 2,725 (7,286)
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign F R LB INEFFIHE R
operation deregistered during the VEH 2 EF D EFAE
year 1,677) -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) VA& HAfRIAJge B Hn BB =
that may be reclassified to profit or MEMEEKE(EE)
loss in subsequent periods PR} 1,048 (7,286)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that A& Biff] NaE E ¥ B =
will not be reclassified to profit or MmEMEEkKE(EE) -
loss in subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation L ER: ALl & 13 11,787 71,344
Income tax effect PRiSTH & 27 (2,057) (11,239
Net other comprehensive income that Nz EET HHERR
will not be reclassified to profit or Y H th 2 U 2R F R
loss in subsequent periods 9,730 60,105
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR BEZFEHth 2 mEUk &
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 10,778 52,819
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ ARARAEEAREFERZA
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR Wi (R AHE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (11,898) 77,062
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

Notes 2019 2018
o &t —E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEE&E 13 1,186,554 1,256,862
Investment properties wEME 14 119,122 65,5260
Other intangible assets E iz EE 16 100 100
Investments in joint ventures BEDNEZIRE 17 56,661 57,666
Investments in associates E’\ Hﬁﬁ ERAIZRE 18 20,572 16,997
Equity investments designated at EERBRAFEFTAEAM
fair value through other PHKZEZERTERE
comprehensive income 19 47 47
Financial assets at fair value through  ERAFEFTABZEZ
profit or loss s EE 23 10,651 11,249
Deferred tax assets REFIBE E 27 3,179 3,900
Other deposits paid He ke 22 75,903 65,953
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,472,789 1,478,300
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T7E 20 35,574 59,475
Trade receivables & IR BR 3R 21 285,736 363,186
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE - B b JE YR IE [
other assets Hi&E 22 35,335 34,306
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEFABSEERZ
profit or loss B E = 23 76,439 85,129
Loan to an associate m—EEERARRENER 18 - 4,543
Tax recoverable A] Y [0 F5 1R 5,050 2,433
Cash and cash equivalents BekIRE&EEER 24 479,840 527,627
Total current assets mEEERE 917,974 1,076,699
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEME
Trade and bills payables JENEER R EE 25 37,579 80,660
Other payables and accruals Ho b & RRIE K FE 5T R IE 26 183,028 201,201
Lease liabilities fﬁ EAaE 15 29,328 -
Tax payable JERI B IR 1,577 13,299
Total current liabilities mEaERE 251,512 301,160
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 666,462 775,539
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEMEZ
LIABILITIES EE#E 2,139,251 2,253,839
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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31 December 2019 —ZFE— N F+_-_A=+—H

Notes 2019 2018
s —g-nF  —T)\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEEZ
LIABILITIES EE#E 2,139,251 2,253,839
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FREHIBEAE 27 120,188 117,543
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 15,715 -
Total non-current liabilities IEMEBBERE 135,903 117,543
Net assets BEFE 2,003,348 2,136,296
EQUITY % #E
Equity attributable to owners RRTHER N AL MR HE
of the Company
Issued capital BETRAR 28 175,325 173,222
Reserves & & 30 1,828,023 1,963,074
Total equity % #E 48 58 2,003,348 2,136,296
Siu Sai Wo Lau Chung Man, Louis
A 8 fth 32
Director Director
EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ - ZF—NWF+ _-_HA=+—HIFFEZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREFAES
Issued
ordinary Share Share Asset  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRT & BRE BE ERRD
Wi EBRE i E R HABH i ERER #E  RERN REAE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
FET FET FET  FEZ FET FET FET FET
(Note 28)  (Note 28) (Note 30)
(Watzs)  (Hitzs) (Hit30)
At 1 January 2018 -N\$¥—-A—H 173,222 25,442 407,890 22,732 233,490 (37591) 1316347 2,141,532
Profit for the year KERRF - - - - - - 24,243 24,243
Other comprehensive income for the year: FFEE 2 HEY % :
Gains on property revaluation, MEEHYE  NBHRE
net of tax - - - - 60,105 - - 60,105
Exchange differences related to HENEREENELER
foreign operations - - - - - (7,286) - (7,286)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2ENE/(BB)EE
for the year - - - - 60,105 (7,280) 24,243 77,062
Equity-settled share option arrangements H%E HEBREZY 29 - - - 4,312 - - - 4,312
Transfer of share option reserve upon REMBERERERER
the forfeiture of share options FE - - - (991) - - 991 -
Final 2017 dividend paid BRNZZ-tERERE 11 - - - - - - (34,644) (34,644
Special 2017 dividend paid BERNZZ—tEHAIRE 1 - - - - - - (4044 (34,644)
Interim 2018 dividend —“NERBRE 11 - - - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
At 31 December 2018 “E-\#+tZA=+—-H 173,222 25,442¢ 407,890* 26,053* 293,595 (44,877 1,254971% 2,136,296
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019 # 72— %

I\‘/ \

1_—”— A4 %}J ig
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Attributable to owners of the Company

~hEF=AE+—AILFE

ARREFAES
Issued
ordinary Share Share Asset  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRT & 6 BRE BE ERKD
Wi EBRE B LONA] e EREE HE REEN REAE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET  FEZ FET FET FET FET
(Note 28) (Note 30)
(hi#28) (Hi#30)
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—-A—-H 173,22 25,442 407,890 26,053 293,595 (44,877)  1,254971 2,136,296
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (22,676) (22,676)
Other comprehensive income for the year: & E E 2 Mz :
Gains on propety revaluation, mEEFENRE TD BRR
net of tax - - - - 9,730 - - 9,730
Exchange differences related to HBNEBEBNELEZR
foreign operations - - - - - 2,725 - 2,725
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign — FEINEB T HERLIEL
operation upon deregistration ZENHERE - - - - - (1,677 - (1,677)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ErENz/(58)E8
for the year - - - - 9,730 1,048 (22,676) (11,898)
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR 28 2,103 13,219 - (3,725) - - - 11,597
Equity-settled share option arrangements W EEERRERH 29 - - - 1,625 - - - 1,625
Transfer of share option reserve upon RRRERERERBRE
the forfeiture of share options & - - - (276) - - 251 (25
Final 2018 dividend paid BERAZZ-N\ERARE 11 - - - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
Special 2018 dividend paid BRNZZ-N\EHHIRE 11 - - - - - - (86,611) (86,611)
Interim 2019 dividend “NERBRE 11 - - - - - - (30,314) (30,314)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AF+=A=1+-H 175,325 38,061 407,890 23,677* 303,325¢ (43,829 1,098,299* 2,003,348
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ELREREBK TGV B ARTHERE F
of HK$1,828,023,000 (2018: HK$1,963,074,000) in the 1#1,828,023,00078 7 (= T — /A4 : 1,963,074,000
consolidated statement of financial position. BT e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

—hEF= A=+ —AILFE

Notes 2019 2018
Bt it ZE-1F —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BBIRTR R (E1E) (16,767) 45,035
Adjustments for: EER TSR
Finance costs B & AR 6 2,418 1
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures BEEECERNNEE 3,204 (4,238)
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAGEE & A Rlm N & B 1E (3,873) (7,137)
Bank interest income RITH BB A 5 (5,372) (4,046)
Investment income wEWA 5 (3,955) (3,781
Dividend income from equity investments X BE=MEE ZREKRA 5 (190) 1,752)
Fair value losses/(gains), net on: NEEEE (W) F88:
Investment properties REME 2,959 (7,21D
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABREZ
profit or loss MEEE 5 832 3,376
Derivative financial instruments MEEBMIE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges - MREEHEHPER LIRS 5 397 (302)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B —ENBAR ZWE 5 1,677) —
Gain on disposal of an investment property — HE — IR EWE 2 W= 5 — (4,780)
Loss on disposal of an unlisted equity HEFLTHRSEREZ
investment BB 1,222 —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEME  BMERRKHEIER
property, plant and equipment ZEBR (W) 5 (2,029) 1,752
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZETE
equipment (other than right-of-use assets) (ER#EEERIN 7 85,466 86,690
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREENE 7 32,075 —
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR FOR B 7 8,198 6,827
Impairment of items of property, plant and W BERZBEERE
equipment (other than right-of-use assets) (fEREEERIN 7 1,160 —
Impairment of inventories FERE 7 5 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 7 4,401 —
Reversal of impairment of ol A —fE B A A
a loan to an associate REMERZRE 5 1,057) -
Write-off of trade receivables JRE MK B S5 8 7 160 —
Write-off of lease liabilities HE &8 EMH 7 (4,610) —
Reversal of long outstanding payables B Ol R EAR R RIB 5 (6,006) —
Recovery of a loan receivable Y [a] e U & R 7 — 1,500
Equity-settled share option expense 1% 4 4 5 B P i A <2 7 1,625 4,312
98,586 113,240
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD(E j]l]) 23,896 (3,815)
Decrease in trade receivables, prepayments,  FEW IR FK + FET 5K Hith
other receivables and other assets FEWRIE R ,Etﬂﬂ é E DR 80,078 53,196
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BRATEFABREZ
through profit or loss MEEERD 3,932 10,198
Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial PTESB T AR 9\/ (32 hn)
instruments (397) 302
Decrease in trade and bills payables, other — JEfTERF N T - g
payables and accruals BN FEET A /UE A+ (73,322) (40,032)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2019 &% —
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~hEF=AE+—AILFE

Notes 2019 2018
Bt it —E-NF —_T—)\%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash generated from operations KEXBREER S 132,773 133,089
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEENEH (18,472) (16,424)
Overseas tax refunded/(paid) BiR (B 8INEIEA (515) 1,407
Interest element on lease liabilities HEBEZMNBIBH 6 (2,418) —
Net cash flows from operating activities REXBEEZ
REenmEFR 111,368 118,072
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBELEZRERE
Interest received B F B 5,372 4,046
Investment income ‘ERA 3,955 3,781
Dividends received from joint ventures EREEREEZRE — 6,488
Dividends received from listed equity P EERERE R E
investments 190 1,752
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME BMELEZEIEE
equipment (21,221) (25,450)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEWE BERRBERZ
property, plant and equipment B (9,950) (10,458)
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—EREMEMETIE
property — 10,436
Proceeds from disposal of an equity investment H&E¥ETE AIZ A FEFAEBZRER
designed at fair value through profit or loss — Z#E w4 & TS 3K I8 3,302 —
Repayment of a loan from an associate A — Rl Bk & 2 B4R (it &Y
BERZER 5,600 —
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - HELE&HIER
plant and equipment Fr18 5018 3,213 3,736
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time HEVS H—H? FEAE BB =1EA
deposits with original maturity of more than ZEMMTEBER
three months when acquired B, (3% hn) (40,612) 2,578
Net cash flows used in investing activities WEEBFERAZRESREFHE (50,151) (3,09D
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEFHEEZRER
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BIEBBAIERT 5( 28 11,597 —
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZ KRS H 32(0) (29,371) —
Interest paid [=EE NN — @®
Dividends paid 2K R 8 11 (134,247) (86,610)
Net cash flows used in financing activities — B4 & /GBI FH 2
RenEFe (152,021) (86,611)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ - ZF—NWF+ _-_HA=+—HIFFEZF

Notes 2019 2018
M &t —E-hEF —T-)\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND B & REBEESZEEEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS #inCRa) B (90,804) 28,370
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E ?}]Ziﬁﬁ EBReE Tﬁ THH 496,470 483,582
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SR BEY 2,405 (15,482)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF ER 2B SRR S EEER
YEAR 408,071 496,470
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRESSEBRERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIBITES 24 231,787 282,600
Non-pledged time deposits EIEATEBREFER 24 248,053 245,027
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the — BIISiR R TR AT AR € K&
statement of financial position BeEEER 479,840 527,627
Non-pledged time deposits with original REGRREI R BB =(EA
maturity of more than three months when — Z&EEIFTH TR
acquired 24 (71,769) (31,157)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the IRERMERAKAAMNIRES K
statement of cash flows iﬁ +EEIEB 408,071 496,470
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

involved in the

During the vyear, the Group was

following principal activities:

. media
. property holding
. investment holding

In the opinion of the directors,
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin

Luckman Trading
Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, land and buildings, certain
derivative financial instruments, equity investments and
debt securities, and financial assets at fair value which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

1.

2.1

+] A
B 75 e 5= MY 5
31 December 2019 —ZE—hNF+_-_H=+—H
ATER
EEVEEESRAR(AXARANDAEER
EAMKL2BRAT - ARAR ZEMPEE

BE AL 7A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

AEEFRAREZTEZXZHE

. K8
- PEES

. REER

EERANEBE X EEMAK 2 Luckman
Trading Limited & A2 7] Z R AR R ©

mRzEE

AUBHRERDBEETSEAMAG(EES
AEAg)EM B AT EREE (EEY
BHREEA DN ETBREMEEEVHHREE
Al BAGHEA(EASTEND R2E)
wmE UTEEEAREARAUREFAEAA
P2 BEMRTE o B 5 R JI A BE 5L AR
e EREME LtHREF BETE
TRTAE HatREREBESFURER
FEFEZVHBEERZAFENE - AH
BRRABTEY BREEHEIN A
HEHMEIAE TS -

REREZEE

REMBHRRBEARRNEWNEB AR (FHE
(AEEDBE-_ZFT-NAF+-_A=t—HL
FEZVBHREK MBRARRARFEERK
BEREFNER(EREBEER) - E45%
=38 18 2 BRI & 7 1) AR B R B A JE ] &
R E R FEAIZOE - I HERENE
R E T e D (BIMEAREE B AT A 68
TERRETNEBERDNIRGERN) ¥ E %
F I RE - BIEUS 2 6 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019

2.1

SF-AEFZAS+—A

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(© the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a
derecognises (i) the assets
and liabilities of the

amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the

subsidiary, it
(including goodwill)
subsidiary, (i) the carrying
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (iD) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iiD) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment

HKAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIO)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19,
and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle,
which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements, the nature and the impact of the
new and revised HKFRSs, are described below:

2.1

2.2

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

B EE(E)
ReREZEEE)

HAEBALAEH —BWHBRG 256 # - 8l
HAMHEROZMBRARZEE (BREEE) X
BE EMEERERZFEEERGDR
BEATHRZ 2T HREEZ8 REROHEK
REZRAFE FFREETMEKREZRAFE
RGDIEZFEFTAELEELEZ BHBLEIE -
LR REM 2R RERZANE B ESS
MEFHEABRIFRZEN(WER) &
ERMEAEBERLESHEERAGM
EEMER -

B BRRAREZ2E

AEBREANFEMBRREERRAUT
Ml RGBT BB B REER -

BREMBHRE AFEFERIEIETHE
R Eo5RAEET

BREMBHRE HE
R 1655

BB g &R FrEIEE - B E
F195R1E 7]

A ER HBERGHEELEFRL
E28FAEFT R

B8 (BERVBR AEHETETHNSHEE

EREZEE)
— BEFE3W

ZE-FEF HEBWEREERFE35%
ZE—LFHE BAMBREEREN

FEMEHE  BSGIENELERE
RAGEEHE  BEIEIEBRNET

SREAMBEHRESERNFEIRER BEEGE
QBB R —F—AFE—F—+FHY
BB ER 6 F R 2 E BRI R
ZEHRERBI - FFI MRERIBEMB
BEERNNOMEERFZEHAL T
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

@

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIO)-Int 15 Operating Leases
— Incentives and HK(SIO)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single
on-balance sheet model. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles

as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of
initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this
method, the standard is applied retrospectively
with right-of-use ("ROU") assets equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application, and the
comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HKJFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as
leases under HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 were
not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classitied as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
land and buildings, motor vehicles and furniture,
fixtures, equipment and others. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all
the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases
of low value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease
basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying assets). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from
1 January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation
(and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The Group
elected to present the lease liabilities separately in
the statement of financial position. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

The right-of-use assets were assessed for any
impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to include the right-of-use assets in
the balance of property, plant and equipment in
the statement of financial position.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

@

22 B BERENMEEZ22E (&)

(continued) (@ (%)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as //Fﬁzft/}fg A—SERI 7 BB E 4.2

operating leases (continued) E(#)

Impact on transition (continued) BETE(E)

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were HRBAIREEREMEBETAERATF

held to earn rental income and/or for capital B ETHEABRASKAR, HE

appreciation) previously included in investment AEEZHELTHNETF  KEERZ
properties and measured at fair value, the Group E-NF—A—REHEELEBEERE
has continued to include them as investment %%IE—F FNERAE AR FE405
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to be BRFEFE -

measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective RZE—NF—A—BERBBME®R

practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at EERFIGHEF - A& .E%FHL/\Tﬁ

1 January 2019: BEM2UTHLETR:

- Appling the short-term lease exemptions to - BREPEERPEAREEHRR
leases with a lease term that ends within 12 BEXEAB B 12 ARKIE
months from the date of initial application; ZHE:

- Using hindsight in determining the lease - HARBEER RIFTAE®EE
term where the contract contains options to B -FNBERAMARETHED
extend/terminate the lease; and fR o &

- Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio - AERCE-NF-—A-HNEE
of leases with similar characteristics when BER {J REREUNEESR
measuring the lease liabilities at 1 January AEAE—RRE X
2019.

Financial impact at 1 January 2019: RZE-NF-A-—AZUHBKZE

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS RZZE-NF-—A—BRABTEBHBR

16 as at 1 January 2019 was as follows: HEABICRNTZERNT

Increase
32
HK$000
TET
Assets BE
Increase in property, plant and equipment %13 - BRE R & HE R B EBLEE N
and total assets 74,532
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities and total HEBERABREEM
liabilities 74,532

The Group’s leasehold land previously included in
property, plant and equipment of HK$23,100,000
was reclassified to right-of-use assets included
in property, plant and equipment upon initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

B 75 R 2R BT 5
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22 ENBRERNEE2EE(E)

@) (continued) (@) (4&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019: (continued) RZE-NF—A—RBZUBTE: (&)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—HzHEGgaEER
reconciled to the operating lease commitments as —E-N\F+ A=+ —HZEERY
at 31 December 2018 are as follows: AYEHBEWMT
HK$000
TETT
Operating lease commitments as RZE-NFE+_HA=+—H2
at 31 December 2018 £ TH W R 14,425
Less: e
Commitments relating to short-term leases EHHEERFAKBARR - —NF
and those leases with a remaining lease TZA=t+—HRZRBARZEE
term ended on or before Z AR R
31 December 2019 a74)
Add: il
Payments for optional extension RARRZZE-NF+_A=+—HERZ
periods not recognised BRI TR BAEMNR
as at 31 December 2018 64,554
78,805
Discounted at the Group’s incremental Rn= %ﬁ —NF-—A—RRAEEZEE
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 e BN EPTIH 3.88%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-HA—RAZHEEAERE 74,532
(b) Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope b) FEGSAEAFE28FEIRE BEY

exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in
an associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than
HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-
term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the
net investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising losses
of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group assessed its business model
for its long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures upon adoption of the amendments on
1 January 2019 and concluded that the long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures continued
to be measured at amortised cost in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did
not have any significant impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

¥R & R £ 05k /0 FL [ 7] 5ME B 35 FE
B ZNEBE QAR RELLRTHRE
mo MABREE LEAEZERRHE
BERFREN Ao ESER(HE
WEERERE) - At BERERE
RPN ETRE  ERSTEMBER
TERNEN  BREEFEMBEHREER
FOE THBENER  MIEEE S
ZERIE285% - AT - (EAERERBE QT
FEECENBEBULBEQAREE
CEFRENBER  TERATEG
RERIFE 28R PNOFIRE - BRERSEE -
AEER-_T—NF—A—HRMNEF
% EBREEBEARLRAEEERDY
BammEER - WAKR

RERRBERT
REECENRBRERBREBEE B
% %

m 157 W2
SERFBOFRIRBE A E -
It - RSB AT AN & B ) B S RO
SRBELEEMERAZE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.3

©

HK(FRIO)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with wuncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the
interpretation, the Group considered whether it
has any uncertain tax positions arising from the
transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on
the Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing
study, the Group determined that it is probable
that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by
the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation
did not have any significant impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Definition of a Business'

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform!

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material'

and HKAS 8
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

N

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to transactions or other events that occur on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

SF-AEFZAS+—A

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address the effects of interbank offered rate reform
on financial reporting. The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (201D in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates
or joint ventures.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in associate and joint is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discounted Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures its land and buildings, investment

properties, equity
investments and debt securities at fair value at the end

derivative financial instruments,
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group wuses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 -

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or

liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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SF-AEFZAS+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting

period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(1 has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(1  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vid a person identified in (a)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viid) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

Not depreciated
Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 2% to

5%
Buildings 2% to 5%
Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20% to

33%
Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and others
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating
lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-
of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less

any lease incentives received.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of right-of-use assets are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or
loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation to
retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on
the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement

in reserves.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets are as
follows:

Leasehold land 28!/, years

Buildings 1 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures, 1 to 5 years
equipment
and others
Motor vehicles 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(©  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office
equipment and car park spaces (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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SF-AEFZAS+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EREFERRBERE)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Slle@qUt’H[ measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-

through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in

value through profit or loss.

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
trade and bills payables, other payables and certain
accruals.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
equity, for trading purposes. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

24 EREFERRBERE)

TTEEWMIA
R ME & B

AEEREEREMRERE TITESRT
B fImEMEEE0AREARER - %%
TEESRTAVIRITLITERHNZANR
FEER UBEAAFESTE - MAF
BEREH TTETANEBEAR MAaFE
HWARBE  AIABEARK-

METEZRAVFEESSMELE 2ETAEE
HEFABRRR -

K

FEEKAERAAZRFERET ZREE
SRR - RANETIRBEERKA - £ ALHE
snEFEEEUERE)FE -LERR N
HEmms KAERRBREEMH -BEEA
TREEL 2 KFEEER - 7] #IRFE
EETEEB MR LR ERTES ZEMG
ARG E -

RERBEESEEER

AR ERERMS BHekReFER
BEJEFBERS MIEHFRIA R R E %
ROMNBHEAT UESAEEZIER N
—BRRBARZEARNIBzERSRE T
BE  BAREXKHNKEEZRTES
THEKAEEREERSE AR

1/\ °

EAMBAREME  ReRBEFER
BERTERVWARFRALRITES (B
EMER) -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

24 EREFERRBMEE)

BE

fEBEEEMELRSEECERAME)
BEBRBAEFTEERRLABRNEBEEE
B - BIFER B MBEEM PR 2HBLAE
BER ML AL o

HWMRZFEBEXN  FIERBEEZHRET
REMAIXNBERBEEZRXAI N RSB
RZHE - ARGERAMERFAREIR 2 RE
BB NEABRGERZBEXAH ©

Fri&®

FIERERENMNERRE -BHEERDEN
SNEREIRBRTER - EREMAINEEER
o2 sk B R A RER) ER -

MR BEERBE  MERSHREHNT
MREL LEHTHREMBR) SER
REAREZEMEBRRAOBITREMER -
SRy 1 AR ETS S 1 E

Ho1E =
NIEETE °

BELERIE - RAEEL IR BERARZIEE
RBEZREMAREMBRERE K@
BZRBEEREEZRELEME -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(@  Advertising income

Revenue from advertisements is recognised at the
point in time when the advertisements have been
published or broadcasted.

(b)  Circulation income

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when the newspaper and
magazines have been delivered.

(©) Sales of products including contents

Revenue from the sales of products is recognised
at the point in time that control of the assets is
transferred to customers, generally on delivery of
products.

(d) Provision of news and project management
services

Revenue from the provision of news and project
management services is recognised when the
events or activity takes place.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

Securities transactions are accounted for on a trade date
basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, further details of which are given in note
29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. When
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
(loss) per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benetits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement

benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for
those employees who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
The assets of the

schemes are held separately from those of the Group in

with the rules of the schemes.

independently administered funds. When an employee
leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO
retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefit schemes overseas prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
the Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees
in Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benetfits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

2.4

BEXEHBEMERE)

BERER(E)
RIK1E P a1 2] R B 8 1k 45 7

AEEBEFERBINGERLE2HEE
ZRERYERBMBTRNENGE - RIT
ZERTEIZAA - HFBERSEAEIEEZ
EAXHFS IR —ADLFAESN  LKEH
ZHEFARBRRAMRG - ZFAEI2EER
AEBZEENH A BUERZESH
B HEENAEHEARAKE ZRBEHR
AR 5 78 #8008 B 1 AT & B R ORIKGT
SR B 2 BARE R G &) S E A /8 SMR KR F
FHE IR ERFE RN ZHREIREZ
FRO/M KR - LR FIERE S RIS
M@ (Rt 8)ms  AEEZEEH
RNeBER2EBRBESABAHKZES -

BRTPBEAEEXT HBAR 2R
RS BB T T BUF R 2R RB RS E
g - WEMBRBAREB S TR ZETE
ATBEAMEERFLEEHBEHER - HER
BERREKRSHERNERNBERERT
% o

m S+
X o

\

BrREF

BEEANETHMEAZARR: AEET
S D) IR (it B AR RIS R AR SR SN
B IR IR Pl 0 B A AR -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grants the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary

related asset, expense or income on the

liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.

The
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period,

functional currencies of certain overseas

the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to
the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of furniture, fixtures, equipment
and others due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable
period (i.e., up to 2 years) and there will be a significant
negative effect on production if a replacement is not
readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classitication between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset
value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the media sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period.
impairment annually and at other times when such an

Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for

indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases or transactions. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from fair market value by reference to
independent valuations. This conclusion is supported
by an independent professionally qualified valuer who
was engaged by the Group during the year to perform
valuations on the Group’s properties. The carrying
amounts of land and buildings and investment properties
at 31 December 2019 were HK$938,807,000 (2018:
HK$1,018,348,000) (note 13) and HK$119,122,000 (2018:

HK$65,526,000) (note 14), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. There were no deferred tax assets recognised
for tax losses as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31
December 2019 was approximately HK$654,217,000
(2018: approximately HK$648,316,000). Further details
are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Claims and disputes

The Group is the subject of various claims and disputes,
mainly involving libel claims in respect of alleged
defamation, which is common in publication industry.
Management assesses the claims and court cases
instituted against the Group on the basis of facts and
seeks legal advice when required. Moreover, the Group
is also involved in disputes as the claiming party. In
both cases, it involves subjective elements and projected
outcomes for estimation of provision for potential
liabilities or any disclosures of contingent liabilities
arising from the litigations. Further details are contained
in note 31 to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
publishing and distribution of newspapers, magazines
and books to readers in Hong Kong, Canada, the United
States of America, Europe, Australia and New Zealand,
and sales of respective content of such publications in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

The Group operates as a single operating segment.
The single operating segment is reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segment, have been identified as the executive directors
that make strategic decisions.

None of the revenue derived from any single external
customer amounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue during the year (2018: NiD).

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

AEBTERERNEL MEAN - XEH - K
MR EHF AR EEBTMDIRRE
MERERZEY  RRNFERTEAMHE

ELRTYZHBEARAR -

AEBIERE-—REDPEE

oo

R (5

fr B

MARMERRERRERB‘ 2 ABRE -
ZHAZ2H FTBRERAREATRKEDH
ZERDERRBENE  WBEEL/FLRE

BORTEZAITESE °

FRBEXETANE—IHIAZLZRAR
BAREBRKRA Z10% (ZF—/)\F: #)o

i & & B

@ FKEINRELZKA

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Hong Kong and Mainland China BERPEAH
(country of domicile) (BEED 973,438 1,100,038
North America it = 260,835 291,952
Australia, New Zealand and Europe BN - 3778 5 & BUM 27,506 39,714
1,261,779 1,431,704

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

AR A P R I R 0



Notes to Financial Statements
+ NN
B 75 s 2= B 7T
31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REHIBERE)
(h)  Non-current assets b EFREEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Hong Kong and Mainland China 748 & B A Hs
(country of domicile) (BEBED 1,203,472 1,226,176
North America it 3= 255,352 235,426
Australia, New Zealand and SEOM - TP A BUOM
Europe 88 1,502
1,458,912 1,463,104

The non-current assets information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes equity

investments

designated at fair value

through

other comprehensive income, financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss and deferred tax

LA EEENABEEMERIES
£ TABREERAFEFARMEZE
WeEzatRE - BRATVEAAER
ReUMBEERBELERBEE °

assets.
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HtARKZEFE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA ZDanT:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers KB & F & 4 WA 1,255,152 1,426,107

Revenue from other sources 2R B H A 2ROR B9 Y A
Gross rental income from operating KEBHOE WA B

leases 6,627 5,597
1,261,779 1,431,704

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HEMWARKZFHEHE)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers RKEEEEHAHNKA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information G SEEWAEF
2019 2018
—E-NE B \F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Type of goods or services EmfREER
Advertising income E AW A 964,714 1,127,443
Circulation income BEITRA 178,456 182,570
Content sales and news service income WA $5E M #7 H ARG W A 27,639 27,439
Radio broadcasting advertising income B AHEEE SR A 26,114 24,726
Project management income BEEERWA 34,844 32,317
Service income AR 75 U A 10,745 13,985
Others HA 12,640 17,627
Total revenue from contracts with KEBEFAHRIM A 2%
customers 1,255,152 1,426,107
Geographical markets B 5
Hong Kong and Mainland China HEAERREAM(FER)
(country of domicile) 971,806 1,098,822
North America B 255,840 287,571
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SEOM 3P0 R B BOM 27,506 39,714
Total revenue from contracts with REEFAEHMKARE
customers 1,255,152 1,426,107
Timing of revenue recognition LON A
At a point in time and total revenue from RE—RIHREKEEF G LHH
contracts with customers L ON-E 1,255,152 1,426,107

The following table shows the amount of revenue

TRARMEMUFABGLAE ZER

recognised in the current reporting period that REHRHCERZWASEE:

was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Circulation income BT A 20,573 22,158
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i)  Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Advertisements on newspaper, magazines and
radio broadcasting

The performance obligation is satisfied
upon issuance of the advertisements on the
Group’s publications and upon broadcasting of
advertisements and payment is generally due
within one month, extending up to three months
for major customers.

Circulation of newspapers, magazines and other
publications

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of these publications and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Content sales and news services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
transmission or delivery of contents and payment
is generally due with one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Project management services

The performance obligation is satisfied when
the event or activity takes place, and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Other services

The performance obligation is satistied upon the
transmission or delivery of the final products
and payment is generally due with one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

5. WA -HEtWARKEFRGE)

REEFENHNBRAGE)

]

EREIE

BRASEROET 2ERBAMT

BE MHLEARERES

BHOEBECRAKSEETY LT EESR
ERESRERT IRX—KR—@EA
REE REREPMEAERE=(E
A

BRITHME - MREREMTY

BHORERRXNZEFTMEERET -
R—RR—EARNIH HEEEPM
SULERE=fEA -

HE AT R E RS
BHOREREERLARXNARTKERT -
FHR—BR—EARZM REBEP
mMEAtkE=E=M@EA -

HAEERRE
BHEENZEBLADRLERERE
7 BNF—BRX—EAREH  3E
ErFMEALRE=A -

H b R 15
BHORERERARNERREMSEE

T NR—RR—EAREE AT 8
EFMEAERE=M@A -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -Ht ARKRZFREE)
(continued)
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: Hg A RKZR FRBZ oM :
2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Other income Hi g A
Bank interest income RITH B IA 5,372 4,046
Investment income BEW A 3,955 3,781
Dividend income from equity investments R B#m 1% & 2 % B U A 190 1,752
Others Hh 5,826 7,351
15,343 16,930
Gains/(losses), net W% (ER) B8
Fair value gains/(losses), net on: RNEEWE S (EB)ZF5E:
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFAEBRE UWBEE
profit or loss (832) (3,376)
Derivative financial instruments - MELBRIE — ~FEEH
transactions not qualifying as hedges B2 (397) 302
Investment properties (note 14) wEWE (M 14) (2,959) 7,211
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEWE MEMRBEBEEAZ
property, plant and equipment Wz, (E18) 2,029 1,752)
Gain on disposal of an investment HE-—BREME 2 W
property - 4,786
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary HEER —HMBAR 2 W s 1,677 -
Reversal of impairment of a loan to an  EBIM—fEEE A AFIRENERZ
associate B 1,057 -
Reversal of long outstanding payables 1 B & B R A5 JE 3K 6,006 -
Foreign exchange losses, net e EE - FE (3,345) (5,573
3,236 1,598
18,579 18,528
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BERAX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERRZ AT :
2019 2018
—E-nF —E-)N\EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FETT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFMNE 2,418 -
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE -
2,418 1
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

31 December 2019

7. BRBADER (BB

B 75 R 2R BT 5

—E-ANFL+ZH=1+—H

AEEzBBANERN (BB EHR/GIA)

charging/(crediting): T K18 -
Notes 2019 2018
B ZB-hE T\
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FiET
Cost of inventories sold BHERFERAK 222,508 282,125
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BMERERHITE
equipment (other than right-of-use assets) (ff A ERRIN 13 85,466 86,690
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEERE 13 32,075 -
117,541 86,690
Auditor’s remuneration Z 2L ED BN & 5,193 5,013
Leases payments not included in the Rt AEHEABFENHEERMK
measurement of lease liabilities 2,508 -
Minimum lease payments under operating BREBLERAOMEINz ZEHE
leases B - 16,322
Employee benefit expense (including EFEBRFHAZ(BEEEHNS
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (B 5E8)) :
Wages, salaries, bonus, allowances and T& 5B L4 2R
benefits in kind BEmEN 460,117 478,437
Equity-settled share option expense REAEERER 29 1,625 4,312
Retirement benefit scheme contributions®** IR AKAE F) 51 &1 4 51 20,062 21,377
481,804 504,126
Gross rental income el A @ (6,627) (5,597)
Less: Direct outgoings B BERX 4,772 3,932
Net rental income HEW A F5E (1,855) (1,665)
Impairment of trade receivables* & W BR SRR B+ 21 8,198 6,827
Impairment of items of property, plant and #1% - BE R F#EIE B RE
equipment (other than right-of-use assets)* (ff FAIEEERRIN = 13 1,160 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets* AR EERE 13 4,401 -
5,561 -
Impairment of inventories* FERE 5 -
Write-off of trade receivables* JE W2 BR SR R 160 -
Write-off of lease liabilities* HEa B 15(b) (4,610)
Reversal of impairment of a loan to an BEm—HEEEARRRNER
associate Z kB 18 1,057) -
Reversal of long outstanding payables B e R ERNERNKIE (6,006) -
Recovery of a loan receivable previously 1 [81 4 AT 45 A FE U B
written-off* - (1,500)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWHE  BELXEBEEEZE
plant and equipment 18 (as) (2,029) 1,752
Gain on disposal of an investment property & —HIEEWHE 2 - (4,7806)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B —EB ARz 1,677) -
Foreign exchange differences, net MEHZR - F58 3,345 5,573
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

7.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

ke

The impairment of items of property, plant
and equipment (other than right-of-use assets),
impairment of right-of-use assets, impairment of
inventories, impairment of trade receivables, write-
off of trade receivables, recovery of a loan receivable
previously written-off and write-off of lease liabilities
are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2019, there were no forfeited
contributions available to the Group to reduce its
contributions to retirement benefit schemes in future
years (2018: Nib).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), section 383(D(a), (b), (©) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

7.

BRBANER,(BE)(E)

dok

ME BEMRERAREEREEE
BRoN) - EREEERME FERME JE
W BR SORE - FE UL R SRAES ~ U3 5T AT K
HOERERMEERBEMEAARAE
BRATEAMMZ] -

RZE-NEF+ZA=+—8 WEAH#
N ER [ ORI R PR AR R A A8 B R 8 4 3K
ZRWHREBE(ZE-N\F &) -

EEME

AERESHWERBEBTEBRARZIMABRA
AREFLEMARATETRAD - FERB M
F£383M@ (b~ OROEMRAR (KEES
Mz ER) RO E2BMBENT

2019 2018

—E-AE —ZE-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Fees we 600 600
Other emoluments: B2 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEDREA 21,757 22,839

Discretionary bonuses B 15 T8 41 25 144

Employee share option benefits 12 B i E A 730 1,981

Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR R AE F 5T 8] 3 117 128

22,629 25,002

23,229 25,692
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

@

(b)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

8. EEME(E)
@ BIEHTES

FRARBIYFATEET Nz E W

directors during the year were as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZET-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina fa] #8318 20+ 150 150
Mr. King Richard Yun Zing ® IR A 180 180
Mr. Lee Cho Jat THELE 150 150
Ms. Judy Chan PR 5 22 & 120 120
600 600

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2018: Nil).

Executive directors and non-executive

TR BEABLIFATESNIEM
e (ZF—N\F:8)-

(b) BTEERIYITES

directors
Salaries, Retirement
allowances Employee benefit

and benefits Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
Fo o 2H R BHEF )
e REVER RERAL BREEA AEMR < 485t
HEKS$ 000 HEKS$ 000 HEKS$ 000 HEKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

2019 “E-hF

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak AE@EE - 1,515 3 144 18 1,680
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles AEELE - 8,182 3 122 - 8,307
Mr. Jia Hongping BAFEE - 1,538 3 90 45 1,676
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 2| T‘:F NhEAE - 2,542 3 144 18 2,707
Mr. Lo Wing Hung BEOKEESEE - 1,897 3 54 18 1,972
Mr. Siu Sai Wo Eu b - 6,083 10 176 18 6,287
- 21,757 25 730 117 22,629

2018 —EN\F

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak A E@% 4 - 1,515 3 388 18 1,924
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles B 5% & - 8,494 3 316 — 8,813
Mr. Jia Hongping BAFEE - 1,553 3 255 56 1,867
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis %) W X RE - 2,724 3 388 18 3,133
Mr. Lo Wing Hung EOKEESE - 2,032 3 133 18 2,186
Mr. Siu Sai Wo ML L - 6,521 129 501 18 7,169
- 22,839 144 1981 128 25,02
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2018: NiD.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the vyear
included three directors (2018: three directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above;
and two non-director employees (2018: two non-director
employees). Details of the remuneration of the non-
director highest paid employees are as follows:

=4 - AG-))

FAMEBEENEXREREEAME 2 X
BT N\F &)

EeEFrMnauES

FARRFMNOALEERE=-NUER(-F
—NEF = BR)(HMSFBEEN A LT
QNMUFEERE (T N\F MUIE
EREE) - EHFERERSFMNEEZMNE
FHEBEMT

2019 2018

“E-hE  —T\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FiE T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUNREYER 6,926 7,683
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 6 6
Employee share option benefits 1B BB ER T 71 1,549
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AKAE A 5T &4 5k 18 18
7,021 9,256

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

MeBUATHEAZESRSTHNER A
T

Number of employees

EEAHE
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000% JT 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017%8 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001,%8 7t £5,500,000/8 7T - 1
2 2
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10.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

INCOME TAX 10. Fis#®
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate BEAMEMDIEFRNRNEBEAE 2 HFTERT
of 165% (2018: 165%) on the estimated assessable & AA16.5% (ZF — N5 - 16.5%) Tt E B A -
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The first — & P /B8 2 A 2 & &R B¢ A P H2,000,0007%
HK$2,000,000 (2018: HK$2,000,000) of the assessable JTL(=ZF— )\ :2,000,000/8 1) #%8.25% (-
profit of a subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% (2018: 8.25%) —\FF 1 8.25%) Z TR RT - HAERB A
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. B4216.5% (ZF — )\F 1 16.5%) sk i - REH A
(2018: 16.5%) Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have S ERBHMN 2B IR R EF A £
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the ETBRRZIBITHESE -
countries in which the Group operates.
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Current: RV AR -
Charge for the year: FANXZH:
The People’s Republic of China REARHAM
(including Hong Kong) (BIEEB) 4,315 11,800
Elsewhere H b i = 106 503
Under/(over)provision in prior years BAFEBETR (BEEH) 232 (2,524)
Deferred (note 27) i FE (B 5% 27) 1,256 11,013
Total tax charge for the year FAB KRS B 5,909 20,792
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10.

INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRIB® (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable BARNTI R EAEKBHOMB AR MERR, T
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for FEERZAEMEFTEZEANKREA R
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and M (ER)2HEBERY (Ee)  EEEREBRE
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the AECBRERY R R) 2 HE LW EB
tax charge/(crediv at the effective tax rates, and a MEBEVEERE)BERREZ HERNOT :

reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Australia,
New Zealand

Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
B B Rt 1% BN - 3 7 B R BN At
HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
FET FET FET FET FET

2019 —B-0F
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAER/(B18) (5,506) 13,657 (11,155) (13,763) (16,767)
Tax at the statutory tax rate  EETEMEFEZHIE (908) 16.5 3,414 250  (2,670) 239  (3,908) 284 (4,072) 243
Lower of tax rate for specific {8 & 1347 £ & &P

provinces of local authority HAENRERX - - (2,939) (21.5) - - - - (2,939) 175
Lower tax rate at 8.25% for RE B ) R R I E

assessable profit up to HK$2 RBETLIRS.2S%H

million in Hong Kong BEMEE (165) 3.0 - - - - - - (165) 1.0
Adjustments in respect of IR 2 2 BB RHE

current tax of previous

periods (154) 2.8 - - 386 (35) - - 232 (1.4)
Profits and losses attributable & & 1 % R & AR B (G

to joint ventures and AR BB

associates (681) 12.4 (155) ((B)] 993 8.9) - - 157 0.9)
Income not subject to tax BEMT WA 6,227) 1131 (2,0000  (14.6) 162 1.4) - - (8,065) 48.1
Expenses not deductible for tax R A 1% 2 X 5,159 93.7) 895 65 1,621 (145) 3,908 (28.4) 11,583 (69.1)
Tax losses utilised from BRAEHEZRBER

previous periods (1,600) 29.1 1) 0.2) - - - - (1,621) 9.7
Tax losses not recognised VTEERZHBER 2,962 (53.8) 825 6.0 - - - - 3,787 (22.5)
Temporary differences not WEBERAZGREESR

recognised 5,300 (96.3) - - (176) 1.6 - - 5,124 (30.6)
Others Hity 1,049 (19.1) - - - - 839 6.1) 1,888 (11.3)
Tax charge/(credit) at the BRAEEERREHEL

Group’s effective rate BERS/(ER) 4,735 (86.0) 19 0.1 316 (2.8) 839 6.1) 5,909 (35.2)
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

10. FEHL(E)

Australia,

New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
B HEl 73 Jb% BN - HEEREM Ch
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HKS$'000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %
FET FET FHET FET FET

2018 —E-N\F
Profit/(loss) before tax BHAER/(B1R) 09,738 GA74) (1,989) (18,240) 45,035
Tax at the statutory tax rate  REEREFELHE 11,507 165 (1,119) 25.0 (843) 424 (5,042) 276 4,503 10.0
Lower of tax rate for specific  {& Bl &34 75 £ & #F9

provinces of local authority HAENRERX - - (82) 18 - - - - (82) 0.2)
Lower tax rate at 8.25% for REBOERT RN E

assessable profit up to HK$2 2RBETTIRS.2S%H

million in Hong Kong REHEHE (163) 0.2) - - - - - - (163) 0.4)
Effect on opening deferred tax HE 128 HEMIELEH BN

of increase in rates % - - - - (66) 3.3 - - (66) ©0.D
Adjustments in respect of ISR 8 BHERE

current tax of previous

periods (80) 0.1 - - (2,444) 1229 - - (2,524) (5.6)
Profits and losses attributable & & (% KB & A B 15 &

to joint ventures and kBB

associates (1,107) (1.6) (205) 46 (1,314) 66.1 - - (2,626) (5.8)
Income not subject to tax BEMNK WA (3,13 45 @] 0.1 (1,415) 711 - - (4,550) 10.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax /A M7 2 f % 2,694 39 630 (14.1) 4,076 (204.9) 929 (5.1 8,329 185
Tax losses utilised from BANTHRZHEEE

previous periods (2,680) (3.8) (74) 17 - - - - (2,754) 6.
Tax losses not recognised TERERZRBER 2,259 3.2 911 (20.4) - - 4,161 (22.8) 7331 163
Temporary differences not WEER BRI ESR

recognised 2,309 33 - - 9,763 (490.9) - - 12072 20.8
Others i 1,271 18 - - - - 53 03) 1,324 29
Tax charge/(credit) at the RASEERBEGEL

Group's effective rate BERY/(E) 12,877 185 57 13 7757 (390.0) 101 0.6 20792 46.2

The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to HK$198,000 (2018: expenses
of HK$1,931,000) is included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A R AR B IEE % 5198,000
BT (ZZE—N\F  53%1,931,0008 7T) © E&F
AFEBRRNBEEECERBE ARG
FREEIA -
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. BE
2019 2018
—E-nE B \F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Interim — HK3.5 cents (2018: HK2 cents) hH — SREBR3SE
per ordinary share ZE\EF 28 30,314 17,322
Proposed: K :
Final — Nil (2018: HK2 cents RNEKE — &
per ordinary share) ZE-)\F 28 - 17,322
Special — Nil (2018: HK10 cents FRIRE — &
per ordinary share) —E-NF 1081 - 86,611
30,314 121,255
12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. ZRTIEERESEAELGERERN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (E54|)
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic loss (2018: earnings) per BRENEE(ZZE—)N\F  HA)eELIEE
share amount is based on the loss (2018: profit) for NARNE B A E1822,676,0008 70 (=&
the year attributable to owners of the Company of — )\ i F1124,243,000/8 70) R FNE BT L
HK$22,676,000 (2018: profit of HK$24,243,000) and B A% 2 b #E 15 $1867,353,412 (=& — )\ F
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 866,106,137) I 5+ &
867,353,412 (2018: 866,106,337) in issue during the year.
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/ AREBRESRN_E—hErR_E—\F+=
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended A=+—Bz28BREREN (BE)2EE
31 December 2019 and 2018 in respect of dilution as the RBEEEE MUAFHE-_ZE—NEFERZ
impact of the share options had an anti-dilution effect in E-NF+-_A=1+—HBULFEM2Y 25K
the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts presented. EARSMN (BER)SEELFHE -
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13.
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31 December 2019

—F-AEFZA=+—A

N N
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ BENRS%E
Right-of-use assets Owned assets/Assets held under finance leases
ERERE BEEE/REREBHREZEE
Furniture, Furniture,
fixtures, fixtures,
equipment  Motor Land and  Plant and Leasehold  equipment Motor
Land Buildings and others vehicles Total buildings machinery improvements and others vehicles Total Total
&R &R
%E Rf I#R %E Rf
T BF R RE &t BF BERHE HENEES Rt RE &t &t
HKS$000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 — HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS$000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000
FET AT TEr TEr FEr  FEX FET FET FEr  FEr  TET  TET
(note a)
(Wiita)
31 December 2019 “2-AE+ZAZt-B
At 1 January 2019 (as originally presented): RZE—AF—A—R(&ZRJ):
Cost or valuation RAERREE - - - - - 1018348 300,721 32465 192922 11085 1555541 155,541
Accumulated depreciation 2HNE - - - - - - (117,264) (7,969 (167186)  (6,260) (298,679  (298,679)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - - 1018348 183,457 24,496 25,736 4825 1,256,862 1,256,862
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 (note a)  RAFEHBRE L1658
ZE (M) 3100 11527 62,551 B4 97632 (230000 - - - - @300 5%
At 1 January 2019 (as restated) RZF-NF-A—-R(BE]) 23100 11527 62,551 ds4 97632 995248 183,457 24,496 15736 4825 1233762 1331394
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated E-NE-A-B"
depreciation (as restated) NBRHFE(EES]) 23,100 11,527 62,551 B4 97632 995,248 183,457 24,496 25,736 (825 1233762 1,331,394
Additions RE - 4,462 - 219 4,681 - 8,000 331 5,899 3,885 21,221 25,902
Disposals ik - - - - - - - - © a1 Qs 1189
Transfer to investment properties BREREANE - - - - - (55,602) - - - - (55662 (55,662)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRHE&EE ®10 @250 (26,751) 63) (32075 (32,528 (34,602) (5932) 9729 (6%)  (65466) (117541
Impairment H{E - (4,401 - - (4,401 - - (714) (446) - (1,160) (5,501)
Surplus on revaluation EffRH 760 - - - 760 11,027 - - - - 1027 11,787
Exchange realignment Ex@Z - (186) - - (186) (2,328) - (13 (31 23 2399 @38
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated RZT—-AF+ZA=+-8"
depreciation and impairment MR R ERRE 23,050 7151 35,800 40 66411 915757 156921 21,188 21,420 4857 1120143 1,186,554
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-NF+ZA=+-8
Cost or valuation RAERIEE 3050 5777 62,551 673 102051 915757 308,373 35,789 195084 9998 1465001 1567052
Accumulated depreciation ZHNERAE
and impairment - (8,626) (26,751) (263) (35,6400 - (151,452) (14,601) (173,064) (5,141)  (344,858) (380,498
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,050 7,151 33,800 410 66411 915757 156,921 21,188 21420 4857 1,120,143 1,186,554
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. W% BERKREE)

Furniture,
fixtures,
Land and Plant and Leasehold  equipment Motor
buildings ~ machinery improvements  and others vehicles Total
BRI
RE R
TWRET WMERES HENEXE e nE CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2018 ZE-N§+ZA=t—-H
At 1 January 2018: R-ZZ-N\F—-HA—B8:
Cost or valuation B AN 8 5 1B 998,211 473,331 52,972 207,813 13,690 1,746,017
Accumulated depreciation 2T E - (263,029 (30,879) (174,833) (5,687) (474,427
Net carrying amount FREDRE 998,211 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,003 1,271,590
At 1 January 2018, net of RZE-NF-A—H
accumulated depreciation NhRITE 998,211 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,003 1,271,590
Additions mE - 13,479 7,857 3,804 250 25,450
Disposals HE - (4,978) (187) (96) (227) (5,488)
Transfers to investment properties % £ 1% &% (16,060) - - - - (16,060)
Depreciation provided FRFEEE
during the year (32,117) (35,340) (5,168) (10,930 (3,129) (86,690)
Surplus on revaluation A 71,344 - - - - 71,344
Exchange realignment 0 i 38 B (3,030) - (100) (82) (72) (3,284)
At 31 December 2018, net of RZZE-N\FE+-A=+—H
accumulated depreciation Nk 25t & 1,018,348 183,457 24,496 25,736 4825 1,256,862
At 31 December 2018: RZZ-N\F+-A=+—8:
Cost or valuation B AE S5 E 1,018,348 300,721 32,465 192,922 11,085 1,555,541
Accumulated depreciation BEME - (117,264) (7,969) (167,186) (6,260) (298,679
Net carrying amount RFHFE 1,018,348 183,457 24,496 25,736 4,825 1,256,862

The directors of the Company considered that certain items
of property, plant and equipment of the Group were subject
to impairment losses because an overseas operation has
suffered from substantial loss for the year. An aggregate
impairment of HK$5,561,000 (2018: Nil) (note 7) in relation
to this overseas operation was recognised in profit or loss
during the year. The directors of the Company estimated
the recoverable amounts of this overseas operation
based on value-in-use calculations which were evaluated
by management using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment.
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Note:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

Group’s land and buildings consist of three classes of
asset, i.e., commercial, industrial and residential, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. All
of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued on 31
December 2019 based on valuations performed by Chung,
Chan & Associates, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$938,807,000 (including the leasehold land
under right-of-use assets of HK$23,050,000). Each vyear,
the Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
chief financial officer has discussions with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results once a
year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

A revaluation surplus of HK$11,787,000 (2018:
HK$71,344,000) resulting from the revaluations on the
Group's land and buildings, net of income tax effect of
HK$2,057,000 (2018: HK$11,239,000), has been credited to
other comprehensive income during the year.

Further particulars of the Group's land and buildings are
included on page 222.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % BERRKEE)
it -

(@  The Group’s right-of-use of leasehold land represents @ XREEHEELHMERAEEERZRAT
prepared land lease payments which is measured BftB BT MEERE - HE L1
at fair value. The leasehold land, together with the E A Eﬁ@—?ﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ HE TP
owned building, is held for own use. The leasehold HME Tiﬁ R-_ZEWM+FXA=-+LtH
land is held on a medium-term lease expiring on 27 FHES o HBT
June 2047. The movement is as below:

Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January ENIEEREBEB(=ZCZE-NLE—A—8
2019) Al)
HK$°000
TET
Fair value at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\FE-—HA-—BzZzATE 23,100
Depreciation recognised in the statement of FARERRBERITE
profit or loss during the year (783)
Fair value gain N A = 783
Fair value at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 E/\\ —N\F+ZA=+—BEK
—NF-A—BZRAFE 23,100
The directors of the Company have determined that the BESVENEE  SEEER  AQRFES

BATE AEENLTHEEFEREZEEE
BEmE ITEREFEE-AEEB AL ME
FEEAR-_ZT—hhF+-_A=1+—BREABT
HELAERGEMGETETHGEEGAS
938,807,000 L (BIEN EAFEAEEENE
& T 1#523,050,000870) c BF - NEB KB E
AEEFEAEAEEMENINBEEZ INERY
B - BEERBREMSNGS B2  BUM
MREHBFEEKRE - KEBEPKEE ﬁﬁ@
%iiﬁzi%%$%Lﬁ%@&~¢

T wmEERERGES

RAEER  AAEELHWEEFZEBREE Y
EH A 11,787,000 7T (ZF —/\4F : 71,344,000
B TTXHER 2,057,000 70 (ZZF —/\F : 11,239,000
BIL)AIEM2EE) Bt AR ME2EKE -

AEELREF2E-—FHBRNF22E -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s land and buildings:

13. W% BERKREE)
DFEERFE

TREATAEELHEBTFORFEFES

A

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using

R-B-hE+-A=+-BNAFEHERA

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERME EATBRE EAFTTER

B WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&) (EH2) (E&=) CELl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET

Recurring fair value SEU AT ERE:
measurement for:

Commercial properties BMEME - - 147,473 147,473
Industrial properties* T¥EWE: - - 767,134 767,134
Residential properties TEME - - 24,200 24,200
- - 938,807 938,807

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HHRQ

{5 R R

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERME  BAAER ERTAEE
H) ¥R (B WAE WAE
(Level D (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F4—) (F&-) (FH=) G
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value FEU AT ERFE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties BEYE - - 166,969 166,969
Industrial properties* T¥WE - - 817,587 817,587
Residential properties TEME - - 33,792 33,792
- - 1,018,348 1,018,348
* The industrial properties include a right-of-use asset * T XY EBIE B & E23,050,0000 7T

of HK$23,050,000 (2018: land and building under
property, plant and equipment of HK$23,100,000).
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

ME - BERKREGE)
DVPESREEE)
REAFER BEESER - KER_2HE

BREASBHER = A TEFE(ZET—
NE ) -

DERRAFESRASER=NRFEFEN
iR

Commercial Industrial Residential
properties properties properties
[EEX/ES IEME EEWE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T#ETT T#ETT T#ETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—HH
FREE 159,076 806,544 32,591
Transfer to investment properties HEEREME (16,060 - -
Depreciation provided during the year 4 AT & B 5 (4,368) (26,692) (1,057
Net gain from fair value adjustment  7F E fth & I 25 7 1 52 &Y
recognised in other comprehensive KEAFEARNF W=
income 30,312 37,735 3,297
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B (1,99D - (1,039
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+_HA=+—H
and 1 January 2019 EZZ-NF—H—H
H) BRE B 166,969 817,587 33,792
Transfer to investment properties HEBESIEYE (14,352) (34,850) (6,460)
Depreciation provided FANERE
during the year (4,276) (27,957) (1,105
Net gain/(loss) from fair value TEE At 2T Y 28 R R Y
adjustment recognised in other KEATFEFARNF
comprehensive income Wi/ (EB#8E) 565 12,354 1,132)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 & (1,433) - (895
Carrying amount at AZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2019 H) AR E B 147,473 767,134 24,200

The fair values of the land and buildings were
determined using the comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspects of the properties.

THREFHORFEDRBLEE  RIED
SREUMELRZFMEROME - K/ #
AR TAEFEREHHEMEE -
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31 December 2019

13.

14.

SF-AEFZAS+—A

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation
of land and buildings:

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATTEHERRAE

13. W% BERKREE)
DVPESREEE)

ARt REFEHEEMRANTIEGA
BERNHE:

Range (weighted average)
EE (hnEFHIE)
2019
—E-hF

2018
—T-)\F

Commercial properties Adjusted price per square foot

BEME RBEFFHRER
Industrial properties Adjusted price per square foot
TEMHE RBEFFHRER
Residential properties  Adjusted price per square foot
EEME RBEFFHRER

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial and certain industrial properties
at the measurement date would be to convert those
properties for residential purposes. For strategic reasons,
the properties are not being used in this manner. While
for the remaining industrial properties, the Group has
determined that the highest and best use of them at
the measurement date has remained to be for industrial
purpose.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the land and buildings.

HK$5,529 - HK$11,625
5,529 7T -11,65378 T
HK$2,195 - HK$2,383
2,195/ T -2,383 /& T
HK$9,716 - HK$10,561
9,716 5T -10,5617% 7T

HK$8,325 — HK$9,805
8,325 7L 9,805/ JT
HK$2,155 — HK$2,349
2,155/ 70-2,34978 7T
HK$8,8906 — HK$9,857
8,806/ J7L—9,857/%8 JT

AEBDERE RtER AEBENRS
TIEMENEARERERE/BZFY
XBRETHE ENKBKEH ZZFWE
B RMER  -ERNERTEYME K&
BMEKRTE - RA2R  EEARESZER
BREBRIEIERSE -

RABSYHIREBBEABLA /(TR &Z
BEREFORFERE LI (TR) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZEHEE 65,526 49,762
Disposals & - (5,650)
Transfers from owner-occupied properties HEEEEAME 55,662 16,060
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NEEABRRTE (BB FHE
(note 5) D)) (2,959) 7,211
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 893 (1,857
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HB®EAE 119,122 65,526
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The directors of the Company have determined that
properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and
investment

the Group’s investment

risks of each property. The Group’s
properties were revalued on 31 December 2019 based
on valuations performed by Chung, Chan & Associates,
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at an
aggregate value of HK$119,122,000. Each vyear, the
Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s chief financial officer has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties

under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 15 to the financial

statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 223.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

14. REWMEE)

BRESWENOHEE  FREERER  AQAE
EERE FAEENKREMERNEDE -
REBZEEWEEN - ZT—AFE+-_A=+
—HRBEBUEESAERGEMEEITME
TR E B A48 {E119,122,0008 7T © FF
AEBVBBEITZXEAEAEEMEDN
SNEREE R NG ERD - BEERIBEMS
i BE BIUULEOHFTEENKE-
A 55 B B 7S 4B BS R B Bk & AT B A B R a8
TEFE-RETHERSRHEERRLGE
HER -

RELEHNBTE=ZTZREVER 2 E—
FEBEFBHNYHRRMELS -

ZREMERZE - THBHEMNE223

m B
° M
JiE

\
7

DFEERFE

TRETASEREMEN R FEAESTHR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using

RZB-NE+-HA=+-HHW LA FEFERRAE

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERWE EAUTERE EAFTTEERE

B E WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FH-) (=) (EH=) &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET

Recurring fair value measurement for: # & & A FEF 2

Commercial properties BENE - - 77,812 77,812
Industrial property IxEM% - - 34,850 34.850
Residential property TEME - - 6,460 6,460
- - 119,122 119,122
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14.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

14. REWMHE(E)
DFEERFEE)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using

RZE-N\F+-_A=+—-HBNAFEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

REMS  BAUEE EATAIEE

H) R 8 #WAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F4—) (FH=) (FH=) A&t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET

Recurring fair value measurement: #H & A FEF =

Commercial properties BEME - - 05,526 05,526

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

RAFER BEEER - LEFR_2HE
BREBANBHERA = A TEFE(ZET—

J\EE )

DERRAFEFEREFL=M

HER

HK$°000
T#ET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F-—A—BEKREE 49,762
Disposals & (5,650)
Transfers from owner-occupied properties EREERMmE 16,060
Net gain from fair value adjustment recognised in 1B 2 A E A Y A R Wi 55 0% RR
other income and gains, net in profit or loss BROKELAFEFAENFh = 7,211
Exchange realignment [ 5, 38 B (1,857)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+_A=+—HBHRK
and 1 January 2019 ZE-NF-AR—HNEEE 65,526
Transfers from owner-occupied properties EEBBRAME 55,662
Net loss from fair value adjustment recognised in TE18 25 0 B9 B U A B Wi 55 % BB
other income and gains, net in profit or loss HRANKERFEFABNFER (2,959
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B 893
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 N_E-NF+_A=+—BOKREE 119,122
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to Financial Statements

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties

determined using the comparison approach based on

was

market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspect of the properties.

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation
of investment properties:

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABERRAE

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

14. REWMHE(E)
DFEERFEE)
BREWEO R FELFEALEE - RIFEALU

MIZALE MRS L F YRR - A/
Bk RARTRAERARFLHABMET -

ATREBEEMEEHEZERABAEBMRE:

Range (weighted average)

2 8 (3078 7 59)
2019 2018
—®-n%E —2-\F

Commercial properties  Adjusted price per square foot

BEDE BYTREHEER
Industrial property Adjusted price per square foot
ITEME BYTREHEER
Residential property Adjusted price per square foot
EEME BYTREHEER

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial properties and industrial property
at the measurement date would be to convert those
properties for residential purposes. For strategic reasons,
the properties are not being used in this manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

HK$5,758 - HK$13,682 HK$8,464 — HK$9,952
5,758 T - 13,682/ T 8,464 7 — 9,952/8 7T
HK$5,110 - HK$6,643 -
5,110/ 7T - 6,643/ JT -
HK$1,248 - HK$1,560 -
1,248 T - 1,560/ T -

AREEERE R ER BHEBERME
RIXMENSGSARERERAZR/BZFD
XERETHE ERNREEH ZFWE
WA RIAVLER °

RBABBTHIREBRBLA(TR)EE
BREMENDRTFEKRE LA (TE) -
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31 December 2019

15.

% s % P &

SF-AEFZAS+—A

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for land and buildings,

equipment
Lump sum payments were made upfront

motor vehicles and other used in its
operations.
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 40 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of
plant and machinery generally have lease terms between
3 and 5 years,

lease terms between 2 and 5 years.

while motor vehicles generally have
Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/
or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable
lease payments, which are further discussed below.

(@  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-
use assets and the movements during the year
are further set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.

(b)  Lease liabilities

15.

HE
AEMEREBEA

AEEREEMBOHLIOEET  HERE
fRBEEBFAEESGN - RAX T EINE
HioFWHEELH SRNBSEN: MRE
ZELHWHOBRFBEFHENR - BER

HERWEH - RBEHNTFIESF - AENHE
A= F2E5F - A REHNBEH R
ﬁlszH%LAT % /AR5 = B E(E

@°*ﬂxﬁﬁm K’Elxﬁﬁé%lﬁiﬁ%l%?l\

HEMkOHBEEEE - ZHHESNHEREA

kﬁﬂ,ﬁ&t IERLEHENR  E—F
R e

@ EHEEE

AEENEREEERAERFAE
BB MR R L3 -

() MHEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FAMEEAGEERBELREZSH N T :
movements during the year are as follows:
2019
ZE-hF
HK$’002
FHETT
Carrying amount at 1 January )E/t\ —HA—BWEREE 74,532
New leases FHEE 4,681
Accretion of interest recognised during the year A TSR B R 2 G N 2,418
Payments NN (31,789)
Write-off (note 7) s 55 (B 3£ 7) (4,610)
Exchange realignment PE 3, 38 & (189)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+ —HNEERE 45,043
Analysed into: Pakiw=
Current UrE) 29,328
Non-current IERE 15,715

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

discussed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

LEASES (continued)

15. HE(#E)

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREBEAGE)
(©)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in © BHEREZKEZNLELT :

relation to leases are as follows:

2019
—E-hF
HK$°000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABERME 2,418
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEENEEHR 32,075
Expenses relating to short-term leases and other % HAE & K I #4718 A7
leases with remaining lease terms ended RZZE—NF+-A=1+—~H
on or before 31 December 2019 2 AIAERZ B EER
(included in administrative expenses) MR GEATTE R X) 21
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included EEEEEHEMNMHEBERX
in administrative expenses) (BGrATTH R X) 2,487
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RiEmRERN B 37,001

AEEBEREAA

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its properties consisting of five
commercial properties, one industrial property and one
residential property under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was HK$6,627,000 (2018: HK$5,597,000),
details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted minimum lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due are as follows:

REBRESEANLTHLAEME - B
SHmEYE 1IN IEMERIFEEYE -
HOBGKRT—BRRATHEREIMRES - TR
FHSTHEERTAARE - AEBEFR
WRHOEE WA E6,627,0008 T (ZF—/\F :
5,597,000/ 7T) * FEIBE R B F KM FES o

RZZE-NAF+-A=1t—8 KAEERKK
HA AR 3B 0O 51 A ) J m B9 1 AT RH AR 2
HMEWH AR SEHENRAER -

2019 2018

—E-hE -2 N&

HK$°000 HEK$000

FETT FET

Within one year —F RN 5,753 5,461
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 2,463 3,714
After two years but within three years MEBRB=FRA 1,466 2,463
After three years but within four years —FRENFAN - 1,466
9,682 13,104
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HttBEEE
With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
BR EIR
AERES ARAFEH Ch
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Cost at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R_ZT—N\F—H—H "
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019, —EZ-N\F+-A=+—8"
net of accumulated amortisation and —ET-hEF-H-HRK
impairment ZE-NAFTZA=T—H
ZRARME - HIR RET
ROR (B - 100 100
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December RZE-NF+-A=+—-8K
2018: - N\FF+ZRA=t+—8:
Cost NN 24,904 100 25,004
Accumulated amortisation and impairment B EBERREAE (24,904) - (24,904)
Net carrying amount RHEEE - 100 100
As at 31 December 2019, the intangible asset with A—_E-NFT+A=+—8 ERAEHEF
an indefinite useful life represents a motor vehicle HrEEEEERRBETRRG -
registration mark.
17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\¥
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FETT
Share of net assets fEIhE EFE 56,661 57,666
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures, all
of which are indirectly held by the Company, are as

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

IGRUNNE

ARBIEERBEZAKREIEGELRY

17. REELEZREHE)

e[l

2

follows:
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued ownership interest
registration share capital/ attributable Principal
Name and business registered capital to the Group activity
MR ERITRAEE REEENL
=x BTRRE Y FMERL FrEREZEIL FTEXEK
2019 2018
—B-AF —T)\F
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada Canadian dollar 25 25 Newspaper
mex (“CA$10,000 publishing
Class A WMEEAT
common shares
10,0000 7T
(T
BRAE B
Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited JIN& KX Series 1 publishing
common shares WEEAT

and
CA$15,780,809
Series 2
common shares
2,021,871 17T
F—HEEBERE
15,780,809 1 7T
FEEBER

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2019

17.

SF-AEFZAS+—A

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZREE)
Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited is Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited
considered a material joint venture of the Group. The WHREAEEB —BERKEEDE - TR
following table illustrates the summarised financial ~E BSing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988)
information in respect of Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada Limited R EMB AR 2 B ERBMZ (Bt
1988) Limited and its subsidiaries adjusted for any AR EEEEHARLE B RREmMEY
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the BR) -
carrying amounts in the financial statements:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Cash and cash equivalents ReMkIBReFEER 61,668 54,427
Other current assets HEmEh&E 37,732 47,751
Current assets MENEE 99,400 102,178
Non-current assets FERBEE 39,211 40,651
Trade payables J& 1 R R 6,067 5,172
Other payables and accruals b JE S 3B K FEET R 14,828 16,778
Current liabilities mEEE 20,895 21,950
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 4,416 6,394
Net assets BEEFE 113,300 114,485
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest MAEEREEREZ
in the joint venture: sz Hik:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 HA L 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets and the carrying AEBEZEGEEEFEK
amount of investment in the joint venture REELEREZREE 56,650 57,242
Revenue A 278,384 322,611
Interest income B WA 832 615
Depreciation and amortisation e M B (4,787) (5,337)
Tax credit/(expense) HEER (FHX) 1,972 (2,810)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/ ZN4F % & ) JS(EBRERE@E
(loss) for the year Wz, (E8)@sE (5,679) 7,652
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17.

18.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17.

The following table illustrates the financial information
of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

REBLEZIREE)

TRIFAKBENTEFEAN A B L E
1 5 A

material:
2019 2018
—E-hE T \F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T#ET
Share of the profits/(loss) and total SAEEer B M E T E K
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year of AECEARFERN
the remaining joint venture not individually (BB ER2EKE
material (B8 B (365) 412
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment in A& BN EHRERIME
the remaining joint venture not individually TERNEEPEZ
material & ERREE 11 424
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RBERTAZRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Share of net assets JEHEEFE 20,572 16,997
Loan to an associate m— B QARIEHNE R - 5,600
Less: Impairment of a loan to an associate A 1R — e Bk R m AR Y
B ZRE - (1,057
20,572 21,540
Classified as current assets DBERBEE - (4,543)
20,572 16,997

In the prior year, the loan to an associate included in
the Group’s current assets with a net carrying amount
HK$4,543,000 as at 31 December 2018 was unsecured,
bore interest at 1% per annum, and was fully repaid on
2 December 2019.

The impairment of a loan to an associate was reversed
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
current year.

RBAEFE AEBR-_Z—N\E+_A=+
—HBREBEEANEEREFE A4,543,000
BUE—EBREARIERENER  AEK
HARZI%EFNEAE  YER T —NLET
“A-HEEHEE-

—HEBERRRENEFRED B L L RNA
FEZEBHZRTPER -
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18.

SF-AEFZAS+—A

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates, all of which are

indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

18. RBERATZ2RE(E)

T

ARBEEBEZAEER 2

Az B

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued ownership interest
registration share capital/ attributable Principal
Name and business registered capital to the Group activities
aEMAR ERTRAHEE" KXEBEMGRA
=g BERKE WY SMESR EEZADL FEER
2019 2018
—®-nE —T )\F
Bastille Post Hong Kong HK$36,290,000 30 30 Internet and
Company Limited & B ordinary shares mobile media
ELT®kER AT 36,290,0007%8 7T business
A A B B 48 K m &
HBXEB
It REEEEHE  People’s Republic  RMB15,400,000 30 30 Provision of on-
BB R AR of China/ registered capital line and off-
Mainland China A R #15,400,0007T line corporate
hEARKEME S FMWMER and vocational
A A 4 training and
related services
RRAtE Ak
W RERE
& 9l B 48 B AR 7%
* Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise * hHNE B E

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not

individually material:

A HE R

TRIRAKEEERME TEANNKE QR

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ profits and total DG B E QR ARNF E R R
comprehensive income for the year 2 E W 5 3,873 7,137
Carrying amount of the Group’s investments AEBEREE QAR ZEERN
in the associates BRMEE 20,572 21,540
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19.

20.

21.
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19. EEARAFEFAHMZEKE 2
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE mEHRE
INCOME
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Equity investments designated at EEREBELAFETAHM
fair value through other PEHRB2EEMERE
comprehensive income
Listed equity investments, at fair value ERERMRE KA TE 47 47
The above equity investments were irrevocably HRAEBRAEZSEREBRBMEL - Hit
designated at fair value through other comprehensive BEREMRETAREMEETE AE AT ES
income as the Group considers these investments to be AEMEmEmUWE -

strategic in nature.

INVENTORIES 20. 7€
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Raw materials JR # % 34,512 58,378
Finished goods B o 1,062 1,097
35,574 59,475
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWERR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables JfE U BR 7Kk 298,403 383,896
Impairment A 12,667) (20,710)
285,736 363,186
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21.

% & N At

SF-AEFZAS+—A

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on payment due date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

21.

FE W BR K (48
BRTHEP —RERAMNRIN  AEEEHR

BEFZEZT2RDEHRPLALT  EEH
—®R—EA ET2EFALERE=MEA - &
EFARAEREER AREHERAKE
18 & U5 B 30 4 5 B AR AE I jﬁ%*ﬂ_{z,%j%
MAAFREREEERR - EEERE
mEtBBARN 2 R e %JﬁﬂJLL%IE&K
SERBERTIRRESTILEFER
B BEERBREF BN - AEEIL EH
H i W AR R A ﬁ?%ﬁfﬂﬁfﬁﬂiﬁiﬁzﬁm%%
R’ITY - BERERRRE

R EHR - EURRFRREFRR 8 A &
RERBERZEREIWEINDT:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Current to 30 days BlHR 230Kk 172,900 216,941
31 to 60 days 312 60K 41,703 47,456
61 to 90 days 61E90K 30,100 29,299
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 15,053 21,123
Over 120 days H@E120K 25,980 48,367
285,736 363,186
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

FE W BR K (42)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment W EEEERENESNT
of trade receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
At beginning of year F4 20,710 15,016
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI MAEEE (M E7) 8,198 6,827
Amounts written off as uncollectible S B8 U 2] 1 3 8 B & 5B (16,238) (1,104)
Exchange realignment ME 5, o # 3) 29
At end of year FR 12,667 20,710

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.

REREERGRABFEREETREIN -
U EFEREREX - BEXDENRELE
BREUBREANZETR D #BET 2 4E R
M - EmER - FF AR KR8 K
HEGFE - ZAtERBRIAXTNELER - &
BERERRBEAHASHEREESE
ERE SRR REE RN G IERA S
Bt —RMs BREFVBHBE—F
K BB R R BT/ BRI T LA
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21.

SF-AEFZAS+—A

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

21.

FE W BR K (48

BRASERARERETEMNERERY

EERBREREINMT :

R-Z2-AF+=-RA=1+—8H

Past due
gt
Current to 31 to 61 to 91 to over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
BAE30K 31F60KX 61F90K 91F120K #EB120K Bt
Expected credit loss rate  TEEiE B AR 0.73% 2.94% 3.15% 3.24% 25.00% 4.24%
Gross carrying amount RHAE
(HK$'000) (FHT) 174,164 42,965 31,078 15,557 34,639 298,403
Expected credit losses HHEREBEX
(HK$'000) (FHT) 1,264 1,262 978 504 8,659 12,667
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8
Past due
Current to 31 to 61 to 91 to over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
BVEZE30KR  31E60K  61E90K  91EI20K HiBI120K M
Expected credit loss rate TBHEREBLXR 0.15% 0.26% 1.59% 2.38% 28.48% 5.39%
Gross carrying amount FHAE
(HK$000) (F&T) 217,277 47,581 29,771 21,637 67,630 383,896
Expected credit losses BHEREBX
(HK$°000) (FAET) 336 125 472 514 19,263 20,710
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PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

22, ENRE HUEWREAREMEE

2019 2018
—2-hE T )\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Prepayments TE T R IE 15,102 12,046
Deposits and other receivables 7 & N HAth fE Y X8 96,136 88,213
111,238 100,259

Portion classified as non-current assets DEEIERBDEE 2D (75,903) (65,953)
Current portion BN 35,335 34,306

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and utility deposits. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default of comparable
companies with published credit ratings. In the situation
where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group
assessed the loss allowance under the application of
HKFRS 9 was insignificant.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

e hHEMERREIBHERAEES MKE
BIEG K EBCAMEETR ZAIE L&
DEEHZITREE  RESTRSREEH
ETHER - MITEAEEEETRZAE
LB AREER  BHEABREL2ELE
EBTEELERERERBRAREETRH
e BEARENEERFEELAZURBRE
BB R TR R SR E AR - RZZE—NF+
“A=+—BER=ZFE—NF+_A=+—8"
AEEEFERBE SV BREERFH B
TZEBRBHEATERX -

DALk B4R 2 B 75 8 B SR 30 Bl B R A
BEBMREBEZRERERR R_F—N
FRZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H BEEET
ERMTFEM -
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23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

23. RAFEFAEERZVBEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Listed equity securities, at fair value ERAES - mAFE 7,127 10,226
Listed debt securities, at fair value ITHEBKES  EAVE 69,312 70,379
Other unlisted equity investment, HEMFErmiEamtrE
at fair value -4 DN [=] - 4,524
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEE I 76,439 85,129
Other unlisted investments, at fair value and 2 \T‘@ EMEE BAFER
included in non-current assets SFAFERBEE 10,651 11,249
Total financial assets at fair value through EAVFEFABEREREZ
profit or loss MBEEMRE 87,090 96,378

The above investments as at 31 December 2019 were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as they were held for trading.

In the prior period, the Group had an unlisted equity
investment which was classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS
9. It was revalued on 31 December 2018 based on
valuation performed by Brilliant Appraisal Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at a
fair value of HK$4,524,000 according to the fair value
requirements under HKFRS 9. The investment was
disposed in the current year for a sale proceed of
HK$3,302,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not intend
to dispose of its unlisted investments within the next
twelve months and therefore they were included in non-
current assets.
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RBEBEEREE A FEFABRER MG
BE -

ﬁ’\ THRE AKREFEEEM GRS ER

FORB IO E/RAFEAABR KR 2
BEZIFLTHRRERE  -REFEHHBR
EREAEORIB T ZAFERE  ZREDR
—E)\Ft_A=T"BERBIERAE
% {5 {8 B0 Brilliant Appraisal Limited#E 17214
BEHARTES524,00087T - ZREER
RERAHE - 35 E TSI /3,302,000
I o
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24.

25.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BeRESEEHEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FETT FET
Cash and bank balances Re RiFIT& e 231,787 282,600
Non-pledged time deposits EEMTESHEX 248,053 245,027
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the PBRAKRICESERE
statement of financial position £EEE 479,840 527,627
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original & @ A BN B /R EI| Bf B 18 = (&
maturity of more than three months when Az mERERFR
acquired (71,769) (31,157)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BensxkmMilzcReRES
statement of cash flows £EIER 408,071 496,470
At the end of the reporting period, the cash RIERR  REBUARE(TARK]) A

and bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$32,662,000 (2018:
HK$34,361,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

25.

I 23R & RIR1T 4 8 532,662,0008 T (ZF
—\5F 34,361,000 70) - AREI T T B A
HBAHEMEE AW BEFPERLZIN
EEREN L ERE SERNESERTE
REEEENEBEREETINEES 2B
THEARBHBABEMER -

FR|IOTZREBEARITHERFNEZZR
AR HHEREREAEE ZNFE M
FOEF-REZ@ALET UEEAZRE
HATE B3 7 SRR SR R AR B o #R 1T 48 R M F AR

DERREERFNRIT  AYEAHKE
FCEE ©
BHERRES

RBERR  BENEALREBERERBAER
BZRREDTEINMT :

2019 2018

—E-NF —T—)\F

HK$’000 HK$000

FE T FET

Current to 30 days BIHEA 230K 21,814 38,056
31 to 60 days 31E60K 8,666 20,635
61 to 90 days 61E90K 5,368 9,524
91 to 120 days 91E120K 419 2,501
Over 120 days HBiE120k 1,312 15,944
37,579 86,660

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 25. ERBERREEE)
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are FENBEZIT TR B —KEBEROBERE -

normally settled on 60-day terms.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HihEN S ER EZIE
2019 2018
—E-1F —_E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Receipts in advance T8 U KA 37,224 34,871
Contract liabilities BHEE 21,704 20,573
Other payables H fth JiE 1< 5k I8 60,519 52,604
Accruals fEET A 63,581 93,093
183,028 201,201
Notes: B &t -

(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ AHBEFBOT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F —E-)N\F
+=—HA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET FET

Short-term advances received — B W .2 52 B 78 1 3
from customers

Circulation income BITW A 21,704 20,573 22,158
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an (b EtENFBEAETHE WAB=@EAYF
average payment term of three months. 2R ER o
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27.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation

31 December 2019

B 75 R 2R BT 5

—E-NEL+ZA=1—H

27. EEBE
FARERBEREMREEZEHNT
EEBBRAE

Fair value

adjustments

arising from

allowance acquisition of

in excess an additional Revaluation
of related interest in a of Recognition Withholding
depreciation joint venture  properties of tax losses taxes Total
KEeEhE
BEAE HEOMEEM
FEZFE HANATHE HEEEZ
RHR HE  EANE BR RIHAE @5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET TET FET TET FET TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-\&—H—H 58,276 4,864 78,972 (47,266) 18,910 113,756
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o FRREBREEANER /(TA)
the statement of profit or loss ZBRTEHIE (F 5 10)
during the year (note 10) (4,982) - 1,926 4,413 - 1,357
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEMFHE
revaluation reserve during RGBT B
the year - - 11,239 - - 11,239
Withholding taxes payment RAEENZH
during the year B - - - - (3,015 (3,015)
Exchange realignment R (3) - - - (5,791 (5,794)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-\F+-A=1—H
1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A—H 53,291 4,804 92,137 (42,853) 10,104 117,543
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FRRERRANEG,/(GIA)
the statement of profit or loss ZERTE
during the year (note 10) (H35E10) (2,694) - (510) 3,753 - 549
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREESMRERE
revaluation reserve during ANk EEHIE
the year - - 2,057 - - 2,057
Exchange realignment B AE - - - - 39 39
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hAE+=-A=t-H 50,597 4,864 93,684 (39,100) 10,143 120,188
SING TAO
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. ELEBREGE)
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE
Depreciation
in excess
of related
depreciation Recognition
allowance Provisions of tax losses Total
EBHE
WE<HE BIEEE
2B B 2R #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-NF—HA—H 2,604 10,615 425 13,644
Deferred tax credited/ FRARBREEANGTA S
(charged) to the statement (F0B%) 2 IE FEF 18
of profit or loss during the (FiF#E10)
year (note 10) 356 (9,587) (425) (9,656)
Exchange realignment fE X AR - (88) - (89)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\E+ZA=1+—H
1 January 2019 kR_ZE-hE—-H—H 2,960 940 - 3,900
Deferred tax credited/ FARBREREANGA S
(charged) to the statement () 2 BEF A
of profit or loss during the (P 5F10)
year (note 10) 131 (838) - (707)
Exchange realignment BE X R - 14 - (14)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZFB-NE+=A=1+—8H 3,091 88 - 3,179
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27.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$873,186,000 (2018: approximately HK$888,570,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of approximately HK$18,000,000
(2018: approximately HK$19,467,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$654,217,000 (2018: approximately
HK$648,316,000) have not been recognised as they have
arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and in the opinion of the directors, it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

a 25%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to

Pursuant to the Canada Income Tax Act,

foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Canada. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Canada
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 15% or 25%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Canada
in respect of earnings generated.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

27.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

i SE L E ()

RBBEER ARBEBAREEBEZ2HEEIBY
873,186,000/ JT (= Z — J\ 4 : 49888,570,000
BT AER AN IEEEELEBERZAR
ZARRERB AT - REB A RFERLFEH
A b B 7 7% 8 18 £918,000,0008 T (ZZE — N
F : #19,467,000/8 L) HFR —= AF A F
B JRAREERRERB SN - AR S
EEIREE THEBEEEE —BEMZW
BAR MEARREEZRAEETKAIEES
BRIRE TR EEOERE G - &)
b 4 kB IS B 1B 49654,217,00058 7T (T — 1\
F : #648,316,000/8 L) lERIEEF B & E ©

REBEMERNAEBE - RINE KK ZMNEA
BRELERIINEREET IR 2B EER2%
BERGWTEINR © WMMEXBINEREEZ
FEREEBRERIMBIGRY - MeEARIE
MIEBIMHE - BARAEEZH X H15%K
25% ° Ht - AEBEAEERTEL BN RZ
ERMERKILZMEBRARMAE IR 2K EE
MR AE -

ARRB A E BRSO B B R P S TS A

1=
2
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Shares Bz 4
2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Authorised: ETERRA
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares of 2,354,256,546 1% & % E &
HK$0.2 each 0.2/8 T2 & B 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable 1,291,486,908 1% & i% T &
cumulative convertible preference 018 T 25% 218
shares of HK$0.1 each 7] & [0 7] #8318 SR X 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: EBEITREH BRI :
876,622,987 (2018: 866,106,337) ordinary 876,622,987/ (=& — )\ :
shares of HK$0.2 each 866,106,337/% ) & % [l (&
0.2/8 7T 2 & il I 175,325 173,222
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RARIRAESE AT
capital is as follows:
Number of
ordinary Issued Share
shares in ordinary premium
issue share capital account Total
ERT E®1T
=ERRHE EERRE RORER it
HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2018, KRZZ-N\E—-A—H"
31 December 2018 and —T-NF+-B=+—H
1 January 2019 kZZT—-h&F—A—H 866,106,337 173,222 25,442 198,664
Exercise of share options 70 8 I 10,516,650 2,103 13,219 15,322
At 31 December 2019 R=FB-NF+=-A=+—H 876,622,987 175,325 38,661 213,986
During the year, the subscription rights attaching to RERA 10,516,650 (ZF—/)\F : T) B R #E
10,516,650 (2018: Nil) share options were exercised at the Mz REEERABBEETRLOE T R1.16/5
subscription prices of HK$1.01 and HK$1.16 per share ToATE (P 5E29) - F B3 1710,516,650% (= F
(note 29), resulting in the issue of 10,516,650 (2018: Nil) —N\F:T)FREE2E ARG, - KR H
shares of HK$0.2 each for a total cash consideration, T HIZ IR e REA11,599,3198 0 (ZF— N\
before expenses, of HK$11,599,319 (2018: Nil). An FE) BREETFEER - 3,7250008 (=
amount of HK$3,725,000 (2018: Nil) was transferred from E-N\F T )2RBEBCHEREREERS
the share option reserve to the share premium account B 1D B Bk -

upon the exercise of the share options.
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options granted under the schemes are included
in note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”)

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 28 May 2002 and had a term of 10 years
commencing from 28 May 2002, unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme.

Summary of the 2002 Scheme is set out below:
(@)  Purpose

The 2002 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business
relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

(b)  Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(1 any parttime or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group
or of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-
executive) of any member of the Group
or of any associate; or

(ii) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or
other adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the
Group.

28.

29.
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SF-AEFZAS+—A

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

©

()

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2002 Scheme (excluding options which
have lapsed) (the “General Mandate”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
General Mandate by obtaining the approval
of shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the General Mandate or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically

identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(e

®

Period within which the shares must be
taken up

The period during which a share option may

be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period expires no later than the

tenth anniversary of the date on which it is

granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be the highest of:

@

€

>iiD

the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s (the “Stock
Exchange”) daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant share
options;

the average of the closing prices of
the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
the five trading days
date of

grant of the relevant share options;

sheets for
immediately preceding the

and

the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

@

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(g) Remaining life

The 2002 Scheme expired on 27 May 2012.

A resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on
27 May 2005 to refresh the General Mandate limit
to 10% of the number of shares of the Company in
issue as at 27 May 2005. Such refreshment of the
General Mandate limit will enable the Company to
grant options carrying the rights to subscribe for
up to a total of 91,717,753 shares (adjusted due to
consolidation of the Company’s shares on 18 May
2006) of the Company under the 2002 Scheme
and other scheme(s) of the Company, if any.

On 23 May 2012, the
terminated and a new

2002 Scheme was
share option scheme
was adopted. Upon the termination of the 2002
Scheme, no further share options could be granted
thereunder. However, all outstanding share options
previously granted under the 2002 Scheme will
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with

their terms of issue.

At 1 January 2019,
options

there were 1,933,360 share
the 2002 Scheme.
During the year, no share option was granted
under the 2002 Scheme. A total of 66,680 shares
outstanding

outstanding under

share options previously granted
under the 2002 Scheme at the exercise price of
HK$1.16 per share were exercised, resulting in the
issue of 60,680 new ordinary shares for a total
of HK$77,349,
which was received by the Company. A total
of 800,000

previously granted under the 2002 Scheme at the

consideration, before expenses,

shares outstanding share options

exercise price of HK$1.16 per share lapsed.

As at 31 December 2019, there were 1,066,680
share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme,
with an exercise period from 12 April 2011 to 11
April 2020 at an exercise price of HK$1.16 per
share.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”)

The 2012 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2012 and has a term of 10 years
commencing from 23 May 2012, unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme.

Summary of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:
(@  Purpose

The 2012 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business
relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

(b)  Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(1 any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group
or of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-
executive) of any member of the Group
or of any associate; or

(i) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or
other adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the
Group.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

©

()

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2012 Scheme (excluding options lapsed)
(the “Mandate Limit”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically

identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(e

)

Period within which the shares must be

taken up

The period during which a share option may

be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2012 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided

that such period expires no later than the
tenth anniversary of the date on which it is
granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the
higher of:

@

€

the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant share
options; or

the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of
grant of the relevant share options.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(g) Remaining life

The 2012 Scheme will expire on 22 May
2022.

At 1 January 2019, there were (i) 34,380,000
share options outstanding granted in 2015 under
the 2012 Scheme with an exercise period from
4 May 2016 to 3 May 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$1.16 per share, and (i) 44,800,000 share
options outstanding granted in 2017 under the
2012 Scheme with an exercise period from 13
January 2018 to 12 January 2027 at an exercise
price of HK$1.01 per share. During the year, no
share option was granted under the 2012 Scheme.
Totals of 6,450,000 and 3,999,970 outstanding
share options previously granted under the
2012 Scheme at the respective exercise price of
HK$1.16 per share and HK$1.01 per share were
exercised, resulting in the issue of 10,449,970 new
ordinary shares for a total consideration, before
expenses, of HK$11,521,970, which was received
by the Company. A total of 1,200,000 and 800,000
outstanding share options previously granted
under the 2012 Scheme at the respective exercise
price of HK$1.16 per share and HK$1.01 per share

lapsed.

At 31 December 2019, there were 26,730,000 and
40,000,030 share options outstanding granted
in 2015 and 2017 respectively, under the 2012
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 1,066,680

(2018:

1,933,360) and 066,730,030 (2018: 79,180,000)

share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and

the 2012 Scheme, respectively, with an exercise period

from 12 April 2011 to 12 January 2027 and exercise
price ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.16 per share. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would,

under the present capital structure of the Company,

result

in the issue of 67,796,710 (2018: 81,113,360)

additional shares of HK$0.2 each, which represented

approximately 7.73% of the existing issued ordinary

share capital of the Company at the end of the reporting

period.
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year, movements of share options granted
to the directors and eligible employees under the share

B 7% 3 2= P 7%
31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H
20. BRETE(E)

RER SEZERAEREERBEARARE
PRSI ER T2 BREZFHMT

option schemes of the Company are as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise
Date of Exercise price of
grant of At  Exercised Lapsed At period of share Fair value
Name or category share options 1 January during during 31 December share options options  per share
of participant (dd/mm/yy) 2019 the year the year 2019 (dd/mm/yy) (Note 1) option
BRE i BRE BR
REBE Z—Z-n% RER REA  RZB-NF BRETER TEE R
SEREN LR (B/B/%) -A-H (g X% +=ZA=+-H (B/B/%) (K1) AYE
HKS HKS
BT T
Directors
=
Under the 2012 Scheme:
RE-Z-—F:8:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles 04/05/15 830,000 - - 830,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
HEEE 13/01/17 3,400,000 - - 3,400,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (Note 2) 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000  04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
Al I 5% 4 (fif T 2) 13/01/17 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Jia Hongping 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000  04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
BATEE 13/01/17 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
Elih & 13/01/17 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lo Wing Hung 13/01/17 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Bk &
Mr. Siu Sai Wo 04/05/15 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
BmMEE 13/01/17 4,900,000 - - 4,900,000  13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Total 31,130,000 - - 31,130,000
At
Other employees (in aggregate)
Hitfg & (25
Under the 2002 Scheme 12/04/10 1,933,300 (66,680)  (800,000) 1,006,080  12/04/11-11/04/20 1.160 -
RE-ZT_F:t3
Under the 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 23,550,000 (6,450,000)  (1,200,000) 15,900,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.380
RE-T——F:3 13/01/17 24,500,000  (3,999,970)  (800,000) 19,700,030 13/01/18-12/01/27 1010 0.321
Total 49,983,360 (10,516,650)  (2,800,000) 36,000,710
axt
=]

Grand total
ay

81,113,360 (10,516,650) (2,800,000) 67,796,710
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

2. Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu
Kwok, Charles who is a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and therefore an
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr.
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,625,000 (2018: HK$4,312,000) (note 7) during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
movements of share options granted under the share
option schemes of the Company are as follows:

29.

Hrat -

BRESE(E)

1. BEEZTEEAREEER  BITAK
RARF AR Z H b B E W

BE -

2. WEREERARFAEZTRTEZRRME
Bi4tzRF AR AAERLE 2B
ZAEER ETHAD -

REEBERARBE_Z-AFT+_A=1+—
BIEFEAERERSR1,6250008L(ZF

— A% : 4,312,000 7T) (Pt 3%7) o

R|EME  REARA B E

BhEZesmT:

Number of share options

FrEREZ

BRERLEH
Date of
grant of Exercised after Lapsed after Exercise period of Exercise price
Date of exercised/lapsed Share option share options the end of the end of share options of share
(dd/mm/yy) scheme (dd/mm/yy) reporting period reporting period (dd/mm/yy) options
1/ XREH BRERMAN BRETES
(B/R/%) BRET (B/R/%) REEWMREITE RBEEHREEHY (B/R/%) BREGHKE
HK$
BT
01/01/20 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 - 300,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160
T FiHE
01/01/20 2012 Scheme 13/01/17 - 200,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010
—-Fitd
08/01/20 2002 Scheme 12/04/10 766,080 - 12/04/11-11/04/20 1.160
“EERFHE
08/01/20 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 200,000 - 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160
ZE-CF5HE
07/02/20 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 220,000 - 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160
“T-CFEE
07/02/20 2012 Scheme 13/01/17 216,680 - 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010
B
18/03/20 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 300,000 - 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160
—E-CFiHE
18/03/20 2012 Scheme 13/01/17 200,000 - 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010
T F5tE
Total 1,903,360 500,000
&t

At the approval date of these financial statements, the
Company had 65,393,350 share options outstanding
under the share option schemes, which represented
approximately 7.44% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019

REERT B RRBE  ARRRIRERE

&I ARTT i 2 B AR /565,393,350 %

([ZRN

NAINE R BT Z A 497.44% o



Notes to Financial Statements

30.

31.

32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 86 to 87 of the financial statements. The Group’s
contributed surplus represents (i) the excess of the
nominal value of the shares issued by Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVD Limited in exchange for the aggregate
nominal value of the issued capital of subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1996,
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, amounting
to HK$9,899,000, and (ii) the credit of HK$488,930,000
arising from the reduction of the share premium
account in 2003 less the distribution of HK$18,181,000
in 2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000,
HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising from the
repurchase of shares during the vyears ended 31
December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 2000, respectively.

PENDING LITIGATIONS

The Group has received claims made against certain

subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged
defamation. Based on legal opinions, the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision has been made in
the financial statements to cover any potential liabilities

arising from the litigations.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$4,681,000 and HK$4,681,000, respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for buildings and
motor vehicles (2018: Nil).

30.

31.

32.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

it 8

AEERAFERBAFE 2REHBELE
FHEE2IRNANBRKRESCHESTE ZIRE
HRE2ER - NEEZ 8 A E% B OPerfect
Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited #7715 2
HE G BAARAKRMDETH - BEIKRIR
B QWA AFEEEABKNBENBERARD
BTRABREE 285D - £ 8 59,899,000
T EMHZZEZ=FHI BB G RERME
A4 7488,930,0008 LERRE S =F%H
K 218,181,000 T AN REE=—F ——F -
—EENF  ZEELEFR_FTERF+Z
A=+—BLHEFERNEBEERK KM 5=
5,935,000 JT * 1,073,000/ JC * 34,307,00078
JC X 31,443,000/ JC °

FRFHIRZFHAR

REEREE THBRR R N mER
HZER -REBEERER EFAR/LEKHE
ERAETFERRPIEL T HBREABEL
M ATRE AR AAME L 2B -

RERESRERME

@ IEBEFRREXH

FR AEECZFAREEREEAR
MEFRABEZHELTHEDRIREIER
© 104,681,000/ 7T M4,681,00078 7T (=
T-N\FE)o
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31 December 2019

SF-AEFZAS+—A

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

©

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

2019

32. GERERERMEE)

(b) BMEFHELEZEEED

—®-n%E

Lease liabilities

HEEE

HEK$'000

TET

At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+-_H=1+—H -

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2.2) RN E BB mEER

F165% 2 B (M 5£2.2) 74,532

At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZE—NF—A—B(EEZ) 74,532
Changes from financing cash flows MEBREREE (29,371)
Foreign exchange movement b 5, & &) (189)

New leases HEE 4,681
Interest expense (note 6) B X (i 5E6) (2,418)

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DERKEHEREZENNE 2,418
Write-off (note 7) s (P 5E7) (4,610)

At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=ZHA=+—H 45,043

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

© HERHRTHHE

AAREREXRZESERSRLERN

T

2019
=F-NF

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

MEEBHN

HK$'000
FET

2,418
29,371

31,789
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33. COMMITMENTS 33, &IE

(@ The Group had the following capital commitments @ AEBERBEHRAEUNTERKE:
at the end of the reporting period:

2019 2018
—EB-NEF —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETHE RS :
Plant and machinery 5= B i 23 2,029 201
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December b)) RZE—)\FT+_A=+—HZKZEH
2018 # R E
The Group leased certain of its office properties AEEBRBEKEHHOLTHAEETHA
and printing equipment under operating lease EYENORESE BERBIWERD
arrangements. Leases for these properties and Bl E s HOBHE—2=2£F -
printing equipment were negotiated for terms
ranging from one to seven years.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future RZE—NF+ZA=+—"H £%£E
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RIBRTZEEE R 2 T HE &L E
operating leases falling due as follows: HWEMN 2 ARKRZEESRER -
2018
—T—)N\F
HK$’000
FET
Within one year —&R 5,697
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZENF(BEEREME) 8,502
After five years RF % 226
14,425
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEALRS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances @ BUBEHmREKXZAEMMFEFENRZZSELE
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, BN REBEBRFANIERBRE ATE
the Group had the following material transactions THZERRS:

with related parties during the year:

Notes 2019 2018
B ZB-NE —FF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
News service fee income KEGEREZEWIE
received from joint ventures AR 7% & A WA ® 15,877 16,317
Service fee income received KEGEREZER
from joint ventures AR 75 & B U A €h) 215 2,662
News service and other REBE AR ZE W
services fee income B PR 78 & E A AR 7
received from associates &Rk A (ii) 1,270 1,564
Advertising income received RE—fEEE AR 2
from an associate EESKA (GiD 479 416
News service fee expenses INTFT-—HEBE AR
paid to an associate FERBEERAX ® 1,440 1,440
Advertising fee expenses INT-—HEBE AR
paid to a joint venture BEER Gv) 246 -
The related party transactions in respect of service BB BENBEARZREE
fee income, advertising income and news service WA EERARFERSE RO EE
expenses received from/paid to associates above ALTRZGMEX ETRBEUAZTE X
also constitute continuing connected transactions WEBHEERS -
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Notes: Mt -
(1) The news service fee was charged on an €) FTERSE BB IEERHERS
annual fixed amount basis pursuant to the HOFERWE -
relevant news service agreement.
(i) The service fee was charged at cost plus a pre- G AR & AR 3R A A 00 T8 E A0 A IR
determined mark-up. Eo
(iii) The advertising income was determined Gid) BEHEWRABRBASHZXERITME
between the parties with reference to the EE -
prevailing market price.
(iv)  The advertising fee expenses were determined v EBEEEAHEBISHFLERTHE
between the parties with reference to the EE -

prevailing market price.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BEALTRB(E)
(b) Outstanding balance with a related party: b)) BHBEEBEALTZRAEETLE:
Details of the Group’s balance with an associate RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H X&&
as at 31 December 2018 are disclosed in note 18 W ERNR 2 EBRFBRMBRE
to the financial statements. B 5F18%% 5 o
(©) Compensation of key management personnel of © AKAEETFTEEEASZFHM:
the Group:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Short term employee benefits I E BT 22,382 23,583
Post-employment benefits B 218 A 117 128
Share-based payments LA 19 73 B 88 2 - 3K 730 1,981
Total compensation paid to key MEZEBRAEZNZ
management personnel B & 1858 23,229 25,692
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EEMeE—TH BRI HRERMNF
included in note 8 to the financial statements. S EE o
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35.

%\
it

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
31 December 2019

Financial assets

k>
@l

35. ITR7

X
H
o &

REHR

—E-AE+=-A=+—H

MBEE

Financial assets

BEeRMTANKEERT:

at fair value through Financial
profit or loss assets at
BEAFEFABREEZ fair value
HBEE through other
Designated comprehensive Financial
as such Mandatorily income assets at
upon initial  designated - Equity  amortised
Notes  recognition as such investments cost Total
RASERAE BHETER RLTVETFA
HERATE ATEFA HU2EREN RE#H
FABEKRR BEke BREE RAIEZ
i HBEE BHEE -#zEfRE HREE CEl
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FAT FET
Equity investments designated at fair value 16 BAEAFEFA
through other comprehensive income H2ENE 2
BaltiRE 19 - - 47 - 47
Trade receivables FEU R 3 21 - - - 285,736 285,736
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFIE » Hfth Lk
other receivables and other assets RERAMEED
HBEE - - - 19,881 19,881
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A B A B &R
or loss BIBEE 23 10,651 76,439 - - 87,090
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeFEER 24 - - - 479,840 479,840
10,651 76,439 47 785,457 872,594
Financial liabilities B aE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Notes cost
3 F PO
5l AR B9
B i MKaE
HK$°000
FET
Trade and bills payables ENERREE 37,579
Financial liabilities included in other payables FHACE fth & BRIE K JE R SRIE
and accruals ZHBaR 106,491
Lease liabilities HeEaE 15(b) 45,043
189,113
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. @M ITEEE)
(continued)

31 December 2018 —E-N\FE+-A=+—8H
Financial assets BBEE

Financial assets

at fair value through Financial
profit or loss assets at
BRATEGFABREZ fair value
BBEE through other

Designated comprehensive Financial

as such  Mandatorily income assets at

upon initial designated - Equity amortised

Notes recognition as such investments cost Total

ROFRRAE  BElEER  RLFERA
HERATE 2FESA Atzakan BHH
SIARREZ Bake VBEE RANEZ

Mt HBEE HBEE -#uiRE  HBEE =k

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair 1§ AR ATFEEA
value through other comprehensive B 2E E
income ERERE 19 - - 47 - 47
Trade receivables JE W BR 3% 21 - - - 363,186 363,186
Financial assets included in FABNHIE - EfER
prepayments, other receivables and HEREMEED
other assets HMBEE - - - 21,919 21,919
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFABEEZ
profit or loss HHREE 23 11,249 85,129 - - 96,378
Loan to an associate m—EEEARRENER 18 - - - 4,543 4,543
Cash and cash equivalents RehBReEEESR 24 - - = 527,627 527,027
11,249 85,129 47 917,275 1,013,700
Financial liabilities MEaE
Financial
liabilities at
Note amortised cost
R AR
5| BR &Y
M &t M aE
HK$000
TFET
Trade and bills payables ERERREE 25 88,660
Financial liabilities included in other payables A E At FE S 3B K R AT R IE
and accruals ZHBaE 126,017
214,677
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36.

SF-AEFZAS+—A

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

36. ERMIANATFERATFEERFE

REREEATEAEROEN AEET
MIANEEENLRAFENT:

Carrying amounts Fair values

B TH B n¥E
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hAF )\ ZB-hF ZZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET FET TET
Financial assets HMBEE
Equity investments designated 1§ 7E & & AFEFA
at fair value through other HEh 2w E 2
comprehensive income TR E 47 47 47 47
Financial assets at fair value & 2QFHEFAEZRE
through profit or loss ZHEEE 87,090 96,378 87,090 96,378
87,137 96,425 87,137 96,425

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
financial controller is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

reporting.
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36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments were based
on quoted market prices. In the prior year, the fair
value of an unlisted equity investment designated at fair
value through profit or loss had been estimated using a
market-based valuation based on assumptions that were
not supported by observable market prices or rates.
The valuation required the Company’s directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise
value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation ("EV/EBITDA") multiple and price to
earnings ("P/E") multiple, for each comparable company
identified.

the enterprise value of the comparable company by

The multiple was calculated by dividing

an earnings measure. The trading multiple was then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and
size differences between the comparable companies
based on company-specific facts and circumstances. The
discounted multiple was applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
The directors believed that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation

to measure the fair value.

technique, which was recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related change
in fair value, which was recorded in the statement of
profit or loss, were reasonable, and that it was the most
appropriate values at 31 December 2018.

36.
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EMIANDFERAFESRABE
(%)

MBEERAEMHATENLTARERS
FEERBEHERINEN TS THAR
SE WAL - FHIERBE AU A
T

EHREEEREZAFEDENRTISRE -
RBEFE EE/RAFEFABRELZ
FLETRAMEREZRAFEERLEABR
TMEXEXER/KENBRREAMSHEE
FHEE - BEREARAETERNTE
M EREERREBREAELR ETAF (R
X)) UHECERNESAELRARNEE
EBRES PIMEXEEHEMNE  BHE -
MERBHIBMN(EXEE HAME B
R FEREBHERNAN ) FEEHARX(MA
KNEH - BHERUELBRARNDEE
BERABFGE XZEHEERREAFA
BEERBER ZEIFRDERTELERR
AIZHEMREZEREZRNRRE - MREH
AR EEMESEREZHBAENE
NG ERTE - EZRRMEERIMSHOME
AR FEGIAREMBRARNR) RAFEZ
EREHGIABER)IBEE Y ARZ
E-\Ft-_A=t—HRAEZEER"
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

ERMITANAFPERLAFESRHE

(&)

UTAR-ZZE-N\F+A=+—HEEH®T
AfEZEATABERAEBNEERTEE

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018: B E DT
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable inputs Value value to the input
EXFTABE NP EHBAEZ
i {8 B 1l BAE BIE BRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average EV/Sales 13.4 10% increase/(decrease) in
investment multiples multiple of peers multiple would result in
increase/ (decrease) in fair
value by HK$93,000
EEmREEERE HEEH REFHLEEBHE 10% & g O ) & 85
ONER S NFAEE I, O 4) 93,000
BT
Risk free rate 2.48 10% increase/(decrease) in risk

2 R b FI &
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. TRIEBENATFTERATESLREE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy AFEERFE
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETAKRERSRMITENATEHAEZEERN
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial | E
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: HBAFEGTENEE:
As at 31 December 2019 R-E—-hhE+=-HA=+—8H
Fair value measurement using
AFEFERAH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EB ™G B KA BEARFTA
HE BE@AE BE@HAE
(FE&/—) (&EH=) (54 =) &&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FE T
Equity investments BERERNTFERA
designated at fair HEth2mEk R 2
value through other BaMERE
comprehensive income 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair AT EFAEREER
value through profit B EE:
or loss:
Equity investments R E 7,127 - - 7,127
Debt instruments BEBEIA 79,963 - - 79,963
87,137 - - 87,137
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. TRIENATFERATESREE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) APEESERFNEE)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BLFEAENEE: (&)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NFE+-_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
NFEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
V& BB T 35 E | FEANT
wE R AE #HERHEAEB
EH—) (E&HD) EH%=) a5
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FETT FAEIT
Equity investments EERERAFETA
designated at fair HEth2mEkRZ
value through other BmMRE
comprehensive income 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair AT EFAEREER
value through profit B EE:
or loss:
Equity investments EmERE 10,226 - 4,524 14,750
Debt instruments [0 =t 81,628 - - 81,628
91,901 - 4,524 96,425
The Group did not have any financial liabilities N—_E—-HNEER-_ZE—-N\EFE+_A=+—8"
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019 and AEBTETANEAFEFENMEEE -
2018.
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFEER BEESH —AEfH_2EE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BEEASBEERF = AN FEHAE(ZZE—
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil). N\ ) o
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts, for
trading purposes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, joint ventures and associates. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

37.
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BEEARERERRBE

AEBZTIESRMIAGTEIARINBERE
RekBFER - ZFeMTAZIERN
REKESUBAEELELHRT - A&HE
TR % E B K BE (140 78 W iR 3R N FE A AR
RAERE) TEREEELERE -

AEBTRILZAMETA
FEBERGRZERREBED -

7 ITEBRH

Xt

AEBEeRTIAEZFERBRAEERR 7
FEcEREMSER - EFRIRHBTE
BEESEHARER 2EE WM OAT K&
BB BITEE M2 T RSN B 7% Wk M
FE24 0

EERR

AEEREERARGEERYZE=ZTT &
EEENMBERFRETRS AEBEZHK
RAEBAEURHEERHALETRSZE
P VLEERXEEEZRRF - UI AKE
SN B REWGRIAG S MAKBE AR
ZIERBEBRIRN o IFABRELEMN 2B
ERAEZIRD  AEEERBEEEER
TEREHERN  TEREEES -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37, BIEEABREEBEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) =8 RME)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging = A B R R FKEERZ
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRAENAEBEERR ZEREEZ KR
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s KEERR  ZBRTFERBE@EBER (BRIE
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due HMERNBARETIUERARLE NHEIAIE
information unless other information is available without BIERTZA=+—B2FREEE D EH
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification HE LT EEEEMS  AEEER
as at 31 December. For listed debt investments, the I EEFRTFTUNER - T2 2o 5 A8
Group also monitors them by using external credit BEEZEHRENMTBERENZEER
ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying S e
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit
risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE-hE+=-A=+-—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEAR
=S >HFEHERAEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 approach Total
F-RR SRR F=ZBR 5 5 5% e
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FETT FET FET
Trade receivables* JE LT BR - - - 298,403 298,403
Financial assets included in & AFE[FKIE -
prepayments, deposits, Be - HiER
other receivables and other FIEREME E
assets ZHMBEE
— Normal#* — IEE 19,881 - - - 19,881
— Doubtful** — BJ Ef - - _ _ _
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIER
- Not yet past due — &) 7 4 Hf 479,840 - - - 479,840
499,721 - - 298,403 798,124
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

BEEAREEERRBE(E)

FERRGE)
RARBRRFRERE S (&)

RN_E-N\F+_A=+—H

7

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121& A
T8 815 A
Bx > HITEEEAE X
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—HBR F_BR F=ZBR B2 HBEt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET T T T T
Trade receivables* & Uk BR X+ - - - 363,186 363,186
Financial assets included in FTATER HIE -
prepayments, deposits, e EMER
other receivables and other RIENEMEE
assets 2B EE
— Normal** — IE s 21,919 - - - 21,919
— Doubtful** — AJ R _ _ _ _ _
Loan to an associate M — & AR M
B E 5K
— Normal** — IEE 4,543 - - - 4,543
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHEFEER
- Not yet past due — &) 7R a6 EA 527,627 - - - 527,627
554,089 - - 363,186 917,275
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies * MAEBRERSLRESZEKER

the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.

o The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
are considered as “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets are considered as
“doubtful”.

ERBEREREZERN M BRI 21

= o

= fETATRMNRIE - HEEREREGE
EZMBEEY RBPALEEHBT
ZEVBEEBVRERRBEIEM - &
EMHBEEZERERREARILE]- B
A ZEMBEEZERERNARA

Rt e
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flow from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The Group’s policy
is that not more than 20% of its interest-bearing bank
borrowings should mature in any 12-month period.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.

BEEAREEERRBE(E)

RBETER

AEEERBERADESTI TAERELE
ERROBER - ZTASRESRTARM
BEE WD MEKRS) B HE I RFE &
EEBHRERE -

AEENBERRERRITEIRRITERNA
REMENFHELEBEIMNHTE - AEE
R 2 B ZR20%H 51 B IR1T &8 KR
1218 AR EIE] -

RBERR REAORFTRNRE A&
B HEEENRRBERAT

2019

—E-h#E

Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
SRIE 1EsE &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables ERERRZEE 37,579 - 37,579

Financial liabilities included in other FT A E#bJE 718 & B 708

payables and accruals RMETiEasE 106,491 - 106,491
Lease liabilities HEAE 30,526 16,302 46,828
174,596 16,302 190,898
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31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37, BIREABREEBEERBRE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEESRERR(EZE)
2018
—T-N\F
Less than
1 year
NS
HK$’000
FET
Trade and bills payables JENBERREE 88,660
Financial liabilities included in other payables T A B A FE A FRIE K FE ET A
and accruals M BaE 126,017
214,677
Market risk ™ i5 Ak

The Group trades in financial instruments, including
derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group is exposed to market risk through its derivative
financial instruments and other investments.

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and
its general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various
trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.

AEFEESMIA BETEIAE KA
EHREHES

mEERESRTAZ AFEIARKRESR
ERRAMNE EXRRESFHHEHRMLD -
AEEFRETEEMITAREMKEMAR
M5 E g

AEBEABRERS - HIEBRBEHRE
HASERREENE-—REAREEER I
RIUBEFEERZEHSERS A RERERE
Z T3 AT o
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BIREAREEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued) miE AR (E)
Foreign exchange risk ) B 2] B2
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of an SNERBRIEAINE BBEMNEE « BfENTE
asset, liability or highly probable forecast transaction HABARETARGZEBEREXREEM
denominated in a foreign currency will fluctuate REHER - SRELCTHIEEE A ER
because of changes in the foreign exchange rate. When B AEEARE TR IR ER BT AINE &
seeking to optimise the returns on its funds available BEMNNIEE -
for investment, the Group may invest in investments
denominated in currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar from time to time.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TERHEBPEPBEFRR AEBBBAER
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible (B )M EREETEERNESIEEEHL
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variable BRRE  FTEEMEEGREEANE -
held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and
equity.
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
USD rate before tax in equity*
EnER BR B AT S 18 REzmiEm
EH (TR WD (8h) (@ D) =
% HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
2019 —E-1F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens 205 & JT #8 ¥
against USD E EE 0.77 535 -
If the Hong Kong dollar IR TR Y
strengthens against USD ETHEA (0.77) (535) -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
USD rate before tax in equity
EITEXR B B A 4 A REmEm,
AR #EmCrl ) Ot )
% HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
2018 —E-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens 205 & JT #8 ¥
against USD E EE 0.72 505 -
If the Hong Kong dollar PUES P EF )
strengthens against USD ETEA 0.72) (505) -
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Equity risk

Equity risk is risk that the fair values of financial assets
and derivative financial instruments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
values of individual securities. The Group is exposed to
equity risk arising from individual investments classified
as mandatorily designated as such. The Group’s
investments are listed or linked to securities listed on
stock exchanges in Hong Kong and are valued at quoted
market prices or quoted prices from investment banks.
stock

The market equity index for

exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading

the following

day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:

37.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

BEEAREEERRBE(E)

miEE kR (E)

e

1 7 B[R

BaRREMBEERMIEERTANRYF
BERBRAREFEBARERNESNEEZ S
R B R o AN 5 B A M Y 0 28 S 08 il 3%
HHEEZREMmAEDER - NEENE
BNERARSAEMAEEZME EHZ
ERABME HEMEHREIRERITRE
[N

UREEARROREPRNRZAEER
BERE U TESX ST SRR -
ARAERFEANZSLLRKELET:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2019 2019 2018 2018
—E-AF —E-AF —E-NF —E-N\F
+=HA=+—H &1k T-A=+—H =/ &
Hong Kong B
- Hang Seng index - BEEH 28,190 30,280/24,897 25,846 33,484/24,541

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair value of the financial assets,
with all other variables held constant and before any

TRETAEERBARRN, (BB R K#E
HHMBEENAFEMRBEEN RS HRNOK
EE)B2E0%BXE - A EMERY

impact on tax, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax REAE U EAREHIBENEMZE -
and equity, based on their carrying amount at the end

of the reporting period.

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Investments listed in: ETYHE ETRREE :
Hong Kong BB 6,175 920
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group complied with
the externally imposed capital requirements and there
was no indication of breach of covenants. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following significant events which
took place subsequent to the end of the reporting
period:

(@ After the end of the reporting period, on 5
February 2020, the board announced that Sing
Tao Newspapers Pty. Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in Australia, was in a creditors’ voluntary
liquidation, and the joint and several liquidators
were appointed on the same date. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 February 2020. The liquidation
and management’s assessment on the financial
impact to the Group were still in progress as at

the approval date of these financial statements.

(b) With respect to the outbreak of the coronavirus

pandemic, the Group will keep continuous
attention on the development of the pandemic
and take all possible and reasonable measures to

mitigate the effect on the Group’s operations.
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BEEAREEERRBE(E)

EXER

AEEEAERNTIZARRREAEEE
BREBEKEEELENRN LR
MEBEARLE U FHEEBLEERMNRR
BfE -

AEEEZERIZEBENRLBBEEENRR
FHEREEREARRE YHEERFHE -
MENHABEARER  AKEAESHE
SNHTFRROBRE  REEATHRRKET
ik  R-FT-NAF+_A=1t—RH X%
BB AREINKINEEARER - AW &
ERRFHNPR -RBE_ZF-NAEFR-F
—NF+ZA=t—BLLFER  BEEEXH

B BESEFULELD -
FEMAEEE

AEERBERRBEENTERNSH:

@ AEREHR EFEN_FT_FTF_A
hAHEMAR R —HEE2EHRAL
PR M A 32 2 MY /8 A B Sing  Tao
Newspapers Pty. Limited B FA A B # A
BERABEERIETF  VWEZEHRAR
EREBRA ABFRARANR -
TE_AZTREAELEHNRE - B
WBmERENZAE  BHEFEREFK
ERENMEYAEENERTBEED
TEHEITH -

b HFETRSEEREMNES  AEEKS
SEEIRBER  YERI—YIIATT
BBz WREHAREEL Y
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= °



Notes to Financial Statements

39.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

31 December 2019 —

— =

B 75 R 2R BT 5

39. B AT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value

of issued

Percentage of equity

~hE+=A=+—4A

ARREEWBAT ZHBENT

registration and share capital/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
RN ERTRAEE
oy INCIECR BN A AMEA XAREEREEIE FEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Chinese Information Radio  United States US$100,000 - 100 Radio broadcasting

Job Market Publishing
Limited

KB % H AR A IR~ A

Land Profit Development
Limited

Perfect Treasure

Investment Limited

BEERARAT

Premier Printing Group
Limited

HiRZ KRB EEERAR

Rayma Limited

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

Sing Tao Limited

EBERAT

of America

xH

Hong Kong
&8

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REBRRHEE/
=B

Hong Kong

s

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
e

Canada

mE X

Hong Kong
e

common stock
100,000 7T & i ik

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B TLE AR

US$1
ordinary share

1ZE T EER

HK$100,000
ordinary shares
100,000 7T & 38 %

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B T LB

HK$100
ordinary shares

10078 7T & i i

CA$1
common share
10 7T & i AR

HK$77,650,000
ordinary shares
77,650,000 JT

B3 R

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

BERREE

Newspaper publishing
HEET

Securities trading
and investment

EHEENMRE

Securities trading

and investment

EHEENEE

Printing

EN Rl

Operation of

a website
CERAR

Investment holding
and property
holding agency

BB
MERFERHE

Newspaper publishing
WEET

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019




Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+-H=+—H

39.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39.

MEBARFE(E)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration and share capital/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
HEMAL BRTRAEE
MEBAR AR BN A AMEER XARNEEREBREILE TBER
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Sing Tao Magazine Group British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Magazine publishing
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share and advertising
EEHFEEERERAR EBRELESE/ 1ZE T E AR agency
EB MRBITR
EERE
Sing Tao Publishing Limited Hong Kong HK$133,332 - 100 Book publishing
ESHMmRAERADF BB ordinary shares EREEAT
and HK$66,668
preference shares
133,332/ T & @A I
66,6688 T 12 5 X
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$100,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
Los Angeles Ltd. of America common stock WEHEAT
EH 100,000 7t % 38 A
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$5,550,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
New York Ltd. of America common stock BREHEAT
EET 5,550,000k 7T % i A%
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia AU$250,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
Pty. Limited BN ordinary shares WERET
250,000)8 7T & 38
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$2,335,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
San Francisco Ltd. of America common stock BT
e 2,335,000 7T & @ K
Sing Tao (U.K. Ltd.” United Kingdom GBP2,500,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing

R

ordinary shares
2,500,000 38 &5 & 38

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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39.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39.

31 December 2019

B 75 R 2R BT 5

MEARFEE)

-z

— =

~hE+=A=+—4A

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration and share capital/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
RN ERTRAEE
oy INCIECR BN A AMEA XAREEREEIE FEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE i
IRESEBERRIN People’s RMB23,000,000 - 100 Software development
R B R A E™ Republic of China/ registered capital B/ QRN
Mainland China A R #23,000,0007T
hEARLMES M E AR
RE A
REBEERFIHEELR)  People’s RMB30,000,000 - 100 Distribution

EREERA”

Republic of China/
Mainland China

hEARAMBE
A

registered capital
A B #30,000,0007T
M EA

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

of print-media
publications in
Mainland China

R BE R ETFE
e BNl o

I IERFE B %K R TR S5 T S E A B B
RXBFTEN BB BEX

SMEEERE

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group.

EEZRB LRVIRTEFEARFEESE
IERAEEEER LBEFEZIEES
DZARBMBRAR - EERA > HFIIAN
REITEMERR  RESBRITE -

To give details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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31 December 2019

SF-AEFZAS+—A

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AT BEMRRE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as T

follows:

BREARARNHERRBBEARNK 2EF A

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERZRE 32 7,890
Investment property WEWE 6,460 -
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIEE 1,388,394 1,515,958
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 1,394,886 1,523,848
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - HAb EURIA K&
other assets Hib&EE 630 619
Cash and bank balances REe RRITHE 8,794 5,933
Total current assets MEEELE 9,424 6,552
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals Ho{th FE 1 BOE K B BT FUB 7,698 6,843
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (BE)FE 1,726 (291)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BRABEBZEERAE 1,396,612 1,523,557
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEARE 1,577 1,871
Net assets BEFE 1,395,035 1,521,686
EQUITY i
Issued capital EETRA 175,325 173,222
Reserves (note) & 8 (BT 5) 1,219,710 1,348,464
Total equity gk 1,395,035 1,521,686
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31 December 2019

—E-ANFL+ZH=1+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. RATHBARREKE)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: it -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARIEEER T :
Share Contri- Asset Share
premium buted revaluation option  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
EEEfM
ROBER BARK wE BRERE RKRIERN it
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HEK$°000 HK$000 HEK$°000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—A—H 25,442 502,941 4,996 22732 878,835 1,434,946
Loss for the year AEEERE - - - - (4,802) (4,802)
Other comprehensive income — F& EM2HE M

for the year:
Gain on property revaluation ) ¥ EfH M & - - 824 - - 824
Income tax effect on property MEEMHZFERTE

revaluation - - (206) - - (206)
Total comprehensive income/ ~ FE2EKE /(FE)BH

(loss) for the year - - 618 - (4,802) (4,184)
Equity-settled share option REEEBREL

arrangements - - - 4,312 - 4,312
Transfer of share option reserve 72U B % # B 88

upon the forfeiture of share BRERE

options - - - (99D 991 -
Final 2017 dividend paid BERN-E—tFREKE - - - - (34,644) (34,644)
Special 2017 dividend paid ERN-ZE—tFHRERE - - - - (34,644) (34,644)
Interim 2018 dividend —E-\ERHRE - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+ZA=+—-HBK

1 January 2019 —Z-NFE-H-H 25,442 502,941 5,614 26,053 788414 1348464
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31 December 2019

SF-AEFZAS+—A

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. ADFHMBEMRRKE)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

Wit - (&)

Share Contri- Asset Share
premium buted revaluation option  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
BEEfM
ROEER SARR wE BREFE REEAN G
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HEK$°000
FET TET FET TET TET FET
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-AFtZA=t—-HR
1 January 2019 “T-NEF—-A—-H 25,442 502,941 5,614 26,053 788414 1,348,464
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (4,722) (4,722)
Other comprehensive income — F & Efth 2 A :
for the year:
Loss on property revaluation ¥ B EE - - 1,175 - - 1,175
Income tax effect on property WEEMfLMERTE
revaluation - - 294 - - 294
Total comprehensive loss for FEEEBEESE
the year - - (881) - (4,722) (5,603)
Issue of ordinary shares BTEEK 13,219 - - (3,723 - 9,496
Equity-settled share option REEERRER
arrangements - - - 1,625 - 1,625
Transfer of share option reserve 72U 8 % 2 5 88 &
upon the forfeiture of share BRERE
options - - - (276) 251 (25)
Final 2018 dividend paid BERNZZ2-NEXRBKRE - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
Special 2018 dividend paid BERNZZ2-NEHHRE - - - - (86,611) (86,611
Interim 2019 dividend ZE-NEFRERE - - - - (30,314) (30,314)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AF+-BA=1+-H 38,661 502,941 4,733 23,679 649,696 1,219,710
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40.

41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents (i) the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1996,
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor, amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000,
and (ii) the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000
arising from the premium
account in 2003 less the distribution of approximately
HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000,
HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising
from the repurchase of shares during the years ended 31
December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

reduction of the share

The share option reserve of the Company comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2020.

40.

41.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

RRB Y HAMR &K (E)

Kiet - (&)

ARABZEBABHBEOARR KRG LT ATRE
—NMNANFEBSHAMBREZHNBRAR KRG
NEE BHARRAERBZSERMHMETZR
MEEZ Z% » B149104,950,000/8 7T @ KD =-Z
T = F IR 9 5 (B BR FTE A 2 #9488,930,000
BTHEERERE_ZSZ=F 5K 2 #18,181,000/8
TARRBE-T——F —ZTT)N\F - —ZTZF
+tER_EENF+_A=+—HIEFEEARAR
B8 [01 B 19 1 99 B8 255,935,000 7T~ 1,073,00078
T~ 34,307,00058 7T &2 31,443,00078 7C ° RIEE &
E-NAN—FRRNEEEE])  AREAIEE T
BRAT  UEABBRKREELDIK °

ARPBEREFREEEEREERMRITEZE
Ptz AF1E - RS RERM 245 B
MAERZMNRZEHBER - EHEBREE
T ZeBRNBRERMEER: EHEE
PRI B oe W RIS B RS F -

iR RN R S

EEgN_ZT_TF=-A=+THHERUEE
T AR | EK
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Schedule of Major Properties

TEVEHRE

31 December 2019 —ZE—NF+_-HA=4+—H

Approx. gross

Address Lot No. Use floor area
BEREHRE

it 31t it B R 5 itk o HNEY
(square feet)

(FLTR)

Group’s Lease
interest expiry Main occupants
N3 BHE®
ik & 8 IEHRE
%
%

() PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:
BEBRZNE:

Located in Hong Kong
I REE

1. Rooms 1401-02, 05-06, 14/F, Inland Lot Commercial 3,330
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A Ex 255
IR
T 5 /E 1137435
REWEAE
14181401-02 » 05-06%F

2.7 Chun Cheong Street, Lot No. 39 Industrial and 322,805
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, i B2 395% headquarters
Tseung Kwan O IXRES
BER
BERIZD
S EMHT7R

Located in Mainland China

i R B
3. Units 501 and 502, N/A Commercial 7,938
The Spaces International Centre, TEH GES

No. 8 Dongdagiao Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
EtrRmHGE
RATHSH

11 0 B

S01E R502%

Located in the United States of America

REH

4. 215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7 Industrial 14,935
South San Francisco Block 4 I¥%

5. 188 Lafayette Street, New York Lot 40 Commercial 16,200

Block 473 HE
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100 2842 Flash Bright Development
Limited

RHERBRAA

100 2047 Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited

EBHNEEEERAR

100 2052 Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited

EBHHEERERAR

100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers San
interest Francisco Ltd.

100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
interest New York Ltd.
KA R



Schedule of Major Properties

TEVEHRE

31 December 2019 —ZFE— N F+_-_A=+—H

Approx. gross  Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area  interest expiry Main occupants
HEEEER ZEE  HYER
31t i B 4R 5 Rz NE FEER £ TEHRE
(square feet) %
(FIR) %
(II) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
RENR:
Located in Hong Kong
LREE
1. Rooms 1305-06, 13/F, Inland Lot Commercial 1,632 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [EES (long term) B E=7
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A R 257 (REH)
R
T EE #37-43%
REBEAE
13181305-06%
2. Rooms 1403-04, 14/F, Inland Lot Commercial 950 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 HE (long term) BUE=J
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A Ex 257 (REH)
PR
KA E #37-43%;
REBEAE
14121403-04 %
Located in Mainland China
12 5 B 4
3. Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion, N/A Residential 1,132 100 2064 Independent third parties
Beijing Jindao Garden, TEA = BYE=H
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing,
Hebei Province
BRI HE R
P A B 1R
tREEEE
WA BSEE
Located in Canada
TR MEA
4. 411-417 Dundas Street West, Part of lots 6 and Commercial 23,000 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
Toronto, Ontario 7 Plan D-116 EES interest (Canada 1988) Limited
KA R
Located in the United States of America
L REH
5. 17059 Green Drive, City of Industry, Tract Industrial 03,500 100 Frechold Independent third parties
Los Angeles No. 26265 Ix interest BUE=FH
Lot 7 KAES
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Five Year Financial Summary

DFHHHE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is

set out below.

AEEBEREMBFEZLETHRESE EENA
BEHME  DRHEECTREERZTBRERET -

RESULTS E¥
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-HA=1+—HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-F —T)\F —_FT—+tF —FT-RF —_FT-1F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
CONTINUING FEREEK
OPERATIONS FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 1,261,779 1,431,704 1,511,864 1,608,966 1,862,998
Profit/(loss) for the SEBREERY
year from continuing KEZRH
operations (E518) (22,676) 24,243 41,349 33,822 76,946
DISCONTINUED ERIEEEEIE
OPERATIONS
Loss for the year from a BEILEEEBZ
discontinued operation REEEIBE - - - - (14,666)
Profit/(loss) for the year  ANFEHF,(EE) (22,676) 24,243 41,349 33,822 62,280
Attributable to owners of LA TATFE(S:
the Company PA/NEIE SN (22,676) 24,243 41,349 33,822 62,280
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE ZE)N\F ZE—tF ZT—RF ZE—1F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FE T FET FET FET FET
Total assets EERE 2,390,763 2,554,999 2,613,149 2,486,518 2,460,401
Total liabilities BELE (387,415) (418,703) (471,617) (413,255) (399,520)
2,003,348 2,136,296 2,141,532 2,073,263 2,060,881
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